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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHEA

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company” or
the “Group”), | hereby present to the shareholders the
2015 annual results of the Group. The revenue and profit
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Year"”) were HK$4,321,302,000 and HK$508,053,000,
respectively. Basic earnings per share were 5.73 HK cents.
The Group's profit increased significantly as compared with
last year. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net assets
stood at HK$5,755,575,000.

In 2015, the Group's profit continued to grow significantly,
reaching a historical high level since the Group has entered

the area of renewable energy business.

During the Year, power generation output attributable
to the Group was 1,565.76 million kWh, representing a
growth of 40.52% over last year, of which, wind power
generation output was 1,037.20 million kWh, representing
a growth of 19.78% over last year, while solar power
generation output was 528.56 million kWh, representing a
growth of 112.79% over last year.

As at the end of the Year, the Group’s attributable installed
capacity was 1,250MW, of which the proportion of
attributable capacity in areas without curtailment increased
to 69%, while solar power attributable installed capacity
increased to 40%. The Group achieved further improvement

in asset composition and quality.

In 2015, substantial growth in business was experienced by
the Group in various aspects. The Group has obtained the
approvals from the energy authorities in relation to a total
of 25 projects (with total capacity of 1,077MW), undertaken
21 external and internal integrated EPC projects (with total
capacity of 998MW) and 50 operation and maintenance of
wind power and solar energy power plants.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHA

Considering the sluggish growth in the global economy and
the increased downward pressure in the Chinese economy,
the achievements we made have not come easily. This is
the result of our persistence with the development strategy
which looks for growth in the south and by way of solar
energy development. It is also an accomplishment due to
our additional hard work in carrying out internal reforms,
the great efforts made by all the employees, as well as the
full support provided by the shareholders and directors. |

hereby express my heartfelt gratitude to everyone.

In recent years, the Chinese government has been resolving
the bottleneck of development in renewable energies
through a number of measures, including optimizing various
approval procedures, strengthening the construction of
power grids, improving the distribution of electricity tariff
subsidies for renewable energies, and promoting the quotas
for renewable energies. The development environment for
the growth of renewable energy has been continuously
improving. The Chinese government’s full support for the
development of wind power and solar power in generating
electricity will not change. As compared with primary
energy, the Chinese government is striving to achieve the
committed 15% and 20% of total energy consumption
derived from non-fossil energy sources by 2020 and 2030
respectively. With the continuous technological advances
in the areas of wind power and solar power, they have
become the most valuable forms of renewable energies,
and we are very confident with the development of this

industry.

Despite the fact that the development prospects for the
global economy are still uncertain, it is clear that the
industry of renewable energy will continue to enjoy steady
growth in 2016. We are in the opinion that the financial
environment will continue to improve in the coming year.
The lending rate in China is still within a downward trend in
its interest-rate cycle. It is easier for new projects to obtain
financing, and the costs for financing are getting lower.
Meanwhile, the finance costs for the existing power plants
will be reduced, which will be beneficial to the profits of

the power plants.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHEA

At this moment, we possess a power generation capacity
which is ever increasing, the locations of our power
plants are geographically distributed more reasonably.
With further optimization of capital structure, continuous
uplifting of management skills, significantly improved
financing capability and a team of stable key workforce,
the Group maintains a definite advantage in project
development, provision of EPC services, operation and
maintenance services. While the Group is getting stronger
in its capabilities, there will certainly be a lot more room for

its development in the future.

In the coming year, the Group will continue to maintain its
development toward the south area without curtailment. Its
focus on the strategic objective in solar energy development
will not be changed and its attributable installed capacity
will continue to grow steadily. The capital structure will
be further optimized and adjusted, and the disposal and
replacement of inventory assets in the areas of curtailment
or future curtailment will be expedited. The production
safety management in power plants will be strengthened
and their economic efficiencies will be improved. The
development of capabilities to serve different new energy
business sectors will be further enhanced to achieve
business growth. We will continue to implement the
cost control mechanism, enhance management skills and

improve efficiency.

We believe, with the leadership of the management team
and the efforts of all the employees, the Group will make
further progress in the coming year, and deliver excellent
results to the shareholders and contribute to the society.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNRE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2015, the recovery of global economy was full of
difficulties and uncertainties. Despite of the increased
downward pressure experienced by China’s economy,
its growth pace was still ranked among the top in
the world. In terms of macroeconomic policies, more
attention has been paid to structural reforms and
optimization of economic structure. The vigorous
development in renewable energy has become an

important driver for economic development.

Throughout 2015, China’s total electricity
consumption was 5.55 trillion kWh, representing
a year-on-year growth of 0.5%, down by 3.3
percentage points as compared with the same
period last year. This is the lowest growth pace
since the introduction of the economic reform and
opening policies. Nevertheless, the energy structure is
developing toward the direction of clean, renewable

and non-fossil energies at full speed.

During the year, the operating environment of
renewable energy in China displayed the following

characteristics:

1.  Production Capacity of Wind Power and

Solar Power are at Historical High

According to the data issued by National Energy
Administration, in 2015, the newly installed
wind power capacity in China was 32.97GW,
setting another historical high level. The total
installed grid-connected wind power capacity
reached 129GW, representing 8.6% of total
installed power generation capacity. In 2015, the
national wind power generation output in China
was 186.3 billion kWh, representing 3.3% of
total power generation output.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN
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In 2015, the newly installed solar power
generation capacity in China was 15.13GW,
also at a historical high level. The total installed
grid-connected solar power capacity reached
43.18GW, making China the country with the
world’s highest installed solar power generation
capacity.

The development of wind power and solar power
generation has become one of the important
measures to achieve steady economic growth
and structural optimization in China.

Transformation of Energy Structure Has
Begun

According to the data issued by National Bureau
of Statistics, in 2015, the total power generation
output in China was 5.618 trillion kWh,
representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage point
as compared with last year, and the first drop
since 1964. Meanwhile, the power generation
output of wind power, solar power, hydropower
and nuclear power achieved a significant
increase, with growth of approximately 17
million kWh. With the decrease of total coal-
fired power generation output by approximately
16 million kWh, the proportion of coal-
fired power decreased from 74% in 2013 to
69% in 2015, representing a five percentage
point decrease in two years. To protect the
environment, reduce air pollution and fulfil its
commitment to emissions reduction, the Chinese
government has been reducing coal-fired power
and ramping up the development of power
generation using renewable energy. That means
the transformation of energy structure has
already begun. In practice, it is also known that
the conditions for large-scale commercialization
of non-fossil energy are ready. Not only can the
demand for additional energy be met, but also
considerable fossil energy, particularly coal-fired
energy can be substituted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNRE DM

(Z) LHEEREFTH  RWEDK

3. Feed-in Tariff Rate Will be Gradually

Reduced and Technological Advancement
Has Become a Driver for the Development of
the Industry

On 24 December 2015, the National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC)
issued the “Notice on the Improvement Policy
on Benchmark Feed-in Tariffs (FITs) of Onshore
Wind Power and Photovoltaic Power Generation”
which clearly specified the reductions in FITs of
onshore wind power and photovoltaic power
generation. With regard to benchmark FITs for
onshore wind power projects, the tariffs for the
four types of wind power resource areas are
RMB0.47, RMB0.50, RMB0.54 and RMBO0.60
respectively in 2016; and RMBO0.44, RMB0.47,
RMBO0.51 and RMBO0.58 respectively in 2018.
Areas in southern China where curtailment is
not enforced are generally classified as Type
IV, and enjoyed the slightest reduction in tariff.
As for photovoltaic generated electricity, the
benchmark FITs of the three types of resource
areas in 2016 are RMBO0.8, RMB0.88 and
RMBO0.98 respectively.

The reduction in tariff has compelled the
decrease in the costs of renewable energy
facilities with improved conversion efficiency.
During the year, the technology of renewable
energy was further enhanced. The lengths
of turbine blades were increased and wind
energy conversion efficiency was improved.
Turbine quality and operational stability were
also improved significantly. In terms of solar
power, conversion efficiency of battery modules
improved continuously and the costs of raw
materials declined continuously. Moreover,
new construction technologies were emerging
and the quality of power plant operation and
maintenance also improved. All of these could
offset the economic impact of tariff reduction
on newly constructed power plants, and more
southern wind power projects will become
attractive to investments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNRE DM

10

Government Aims to Solve Renewable
Energy Consumption Problem in Various
Ways

In March 2015, CPC Central Committee and
State Council jointly issued “Certain Opinions
on Further Deepening the Reform of Electricity
System” and put forward the “no-discrimination
and easy access to on-grid power generation by
implementing protective purchasing mechanism
for renewable energy power generation in
accordance with the regulations”. In the same
month, National Development and Reform
Commission and National Energy Administration
jointly issued the “Guidance on Improving Grid
Operation and Promoting the Utilization of Clean
Energy”, according to which the annual power
generation plans were required to give priorities
to hydropower, wind power, solar power and
other clean energy generation; clean energy
power generation suppliers were encouraged
to participate in market activities; additional
flexibility of power grid allocation was requested
by giving overall consideration of supplementary
power and clean energy, and giving priority
to clean energy transmission with defined
power transmission ratios. The “Guidelines on
Managing Protective Buyouts of Renewable
Energy Power Generation (Consultation Draft)”
drafted by National Energy Administration was
also seeking opinions from the general public.
The paper has specified, among others, the
definition of protective buyouts of renewable
energy power generation, the subject of
responsibility, the scope of protection and the

methods of compensation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

To address the issue of regional imbalances in
electricity supply and demand, China increased
the construction of power grids and ultra-high
voltage (UHV) transmission lines construction
experienced accelerated development in 2015.
The "two A/C, two D/C Projects”, i.e. the West
Inner Mongolia-South Tianjin 1,000kV UHV A/
C line, Yuheng-Weifang 1,000kV UHV A/C line,
Jiuguan-Hunan £800kV D/C UHV line and Jinbei-
Jiangsu +£800kV D/C UHV line, have obtained
approvals to commence construction.

Further Increase of Levy for Subsidies to
Renewable Energy

In December 2015, the National Development
and Reform Commission issued a notice
regarding the decision of increased levy for the
subsidies to renewable energy on electricity
consumptions other than those for private
domestic use and agricultural production, in
which the levy was raised to RMB1.9 cents/kWh,
representing a RMBO0.4 cents increase from the
standard of RMB1.5 cents/kWh implemented
previously. The project subsidies included in the
first five batches in the “Catalogue of Subsidies
for Renewable Energy” would basically be
available on time, and the sixth batch of subsidy
has already been opened for application.

Favourable Financing Environment with
Continuous Decline in Interest Rates

In 2015, the People’s Bank of China lowered
the RMB benchmark lending rates for financial
institutions for 5 times, accumulating a total of
1.25 percentage points; the required reserve
ratio was reduced three times, accumulating a
total of 2 percentage points for all banks; and
the required reserve ratio was reduced once
more for targeted banks. During the year, the
overall financing environment has improved
significantly with lowered project financing costs
and enhanced investment efficiency for the
power plants.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year 2015, the Group’'s revenue amounted
to HK$4,321,302,000 (2014: HK$3,549,639,000),
increased by 21.74% as compared with the same
period last year; profit attributable to owners of
the Group amounted to HK$508,053,000 (2014:
HK$317,188,000), increased by 60.17% as compared
with the same period last year. The basic earnings
per share were 5.73 HK cents (2014: 3.62 HK cents);
and the fully diluted earnings per share were 5.72 HK
cents (2014: 3.62 HK cents).

As at the end of the year, the Group’s net asset value
was HK$5,755,575,000 (2014: HK$5,755,621,000).
As at the end of the year, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents were HK$1,905,131,000 (2014:
HK$1,105,341,000).

During the year, the Group’s revenue and profit
increased significantly mainly due to the significant
increase in power generation output attributable
to the Group, the improved efficiency of power
plants and the increased revenue from Engineering,
Procurement and Construction (EPC) projects.

1. Power Plant Investment in Development and
Operation

i Power Generation Output Surged with
Improved Power Plant Efficiency

In 2015, the Group’s generation output
attributable to the Group was 1,565.76
million kWh (2014: 1,114.29 million kWh),
up 40.52% as compared with last year, of
which wind power generation output was
1,037.2 million kWh (2014: 865.91 million
kWh), up 19.78% as compared with last
year, while solar power generation was
528.56 million kWh (2014: 248.39 million
kWh), up 112.79% as compared with last
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the year, the Group's power plants
generated electricity output of 3,048.05
million kWh (2014: 2,439.33 million kwh),
up 24.95% as compared with last year,
of which wind power generation was
2,487.41 million kWh (2014: 2,166 million
kWh), up 14.84% as compared with last
year and solar power generation was
560.64 million kWh (2014: 273.33 million
kWh), up 105.11% as compared with last

year.

During the year, the revenue from
controlling power plants amounted to
HK$539,766,000 (2014: HK$239,096,000)
and the share of results of associates and
joint ventures of HK$85,809,000 (2014:
HK$49,707,000).

Power Plant Operation Indicators
Maintained at a Comparatively
Satisfactory Level and Average Tariff
Rates were Stable

During the year 2015, the wind turbines of
the Group’s wind power plants recorded
95.01% of availability rate (2014: 95.43%)
and 1,618 hours of equivalent full-load
utilization hours (2014: 1,665 hours).
The Group’s solar power plants recorded
availability rate of 99.15% (2014: 99.80%)
and equivalent full-load utilization hours
of 1,553 hours (2014: 1,601 hours).
The average grid curtailment rate of the
Group's wind power plants was 20.40%
(2014: 14.12%) and 2.16% (2014: 1.70%)

for the Group’s solar power plants.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

AEE SEMBERA
5t % = £304,8058 T FLEF
(20144 : 2439338 T R
Br) MAFIER24.95% °
Ha o @ % E 2248,741
BT E (20144 : 216,600
BTRR) BREFHEE
14.84% : KI5 gL &&=
56,064 & T F K (2014 4F -
273338 T EK)  REF
#K105.11% °

NEE - S B ERE R
& I8 I A 539,766,000 JT
(20144 : 239,096,000
) c EESEHENTIRE
1> 2% F))H 85,809,000
JC(2014 4 : 49,707,000
TT) °

EMETERRIFEBRILK
F o PHLAEEELXEE

20155 % - EEFTERERK
[2 % #2457 R A % 95.01%
(20144 : 95.43%) : ZF &%
mBERA/NEE,618/)
B (20144 : 1,665/ 85 ) o
EEMBAGEZEERY
A A %L99.15% (2014 4 :
99.80%) i & M im & fr
B3 /)N B 81,553/ B (2014
F 1,601/ NE) - SEFTE
[2E BT E R X 20.40%
(2014 F & 89 : 14.12%) -
EEFMBAGEERTHE
HE2.16% (20144 [A 87 -
1.70%) °

2015 F 3R 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

14

iii.

During the year, the weighted average
feed-in tariff rate of the Group’s wind
power plants was RMB0.5585/kWh
(including VAT) (2014: RMB0.5631/kWh).
The weighted average feed-in tariff rate
of the Group’s solar power plants was
RMB1.016/kWh (including VAT) (2014:
RMB1.075/kWh).

Scale of Projects under Development
Remained Stable and Power Plant
Capacity Achieved Steady Growth

In 2015, the total installed capacity of
power projects that the Group invested
in and held equity shares was 663MW,
among which there were 7 continued
projects with installed capacity of 214MW
and 11 new construction projects with
installed capacity of 449MW. 9 were wind
power plants with capacity of 469MW
and attributable capacity of 384MW, and
9 were solar power plants with capacity
of 194MW and attributable capacity of
18TMW.

During the year, the Group added 12 new
wind and solar power plants to production,
with total capacity of 365MW and
attributable capacity of 291MW, of which
4 were wind power plants with capacity
of 181MW and attributable capacity of
120MW and 8 were solar power plants
with capacity of 184MW and attributable
capacity of 171TMW.
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iv.

As at the end of the year, the Group held
interests of 49 grid-connected wind and
solar power plants, with a total capacity
of 2,196MW and attributable capacity of
1,250MW, of which 32 were wind power
plants with total capacity of 1,681MW and
attributable capacity of 753MW, and 17
were solar power plants with total capacity
of 515MW and attributable capacity of
497MW.

Outstanding Performance in Project
Development and Abundant Resource
Reserves

During the year, 25 projects of the Group
with total capacity of 1,077MW have either
been approved by or submitted to energy
authorities, among which 17 projects were
wind power projects with total capacity of
872MW and 8 solar power projects with
total capacity of 205MW.

17 of the Group’s wind power projects
with a total capacity of 860MW have been
included in “the fifth batch of the wind
power project approval list under the 12th
Five-Year Plan” issued by the National
Energy Administration, all of which are
located in regions with good access to the

grid and no curtailment.

During the year, the Group entered into
agreements in relation to wind power
resources of 1,150MW, and solar power
resources of 200MW. As at the end of the
year, the Group’'s wind power resources
reserve amounted to over 28GW and solar
power resources reserve amounted to
approximately 8GW, which have provided
the assurance of the Group's sustainable

development.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

HEAFR A5£EHEFH
AR PN BEE REM
KIZEEER BRERTE
2,196MW - R EHE A E
1,250MW o E A &, E #§ 32
M KA E1,681IMW -
B w K KA 2753MW
AIBEEEMI7ME  EHRE
B5I5MW - BEHERE S
497MW

BRI R TERMEE &
Bl#ET

RFEE EEHBF25EIE
& 5H1,077MW 2 158 88 TR
TEFPIMZESER
Ho - BEIEEF 178 H 5
872MW + KF5ZRETE B 8 A
z+205MwW

£ BB RER B A
(+ZH]FA#RAEE
BiEsE)P AEH
HBE17E R H 3 EIEE
(860MW) = A 1% f 51 &l &
o 2RLRERE AL
817 - TREME

REE  SEHEEDHRER
1,150MW + ¥ 2 E K587
JR200MW o & Z AN F K -
rEBEBEREERFEBRE
B28GW - K5EEBRFHE
8GW ' REBEMIFERR
RETIREE -

2015 F 3R 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

16

2.

Renewable Energy Service Sector

Significant Growth of Engineering,
Procurement and Construction (EPC)

Business

During 2015, the Group’s company in
the EPC sector undertook 21 external
and internal EPC projects with a total
capacity of 998MW. Among the external
projects, Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation
Limited (Huadian Fuxin)'s Inner Mongolia
Siziwanggi wind power project (49.5MW),
Henan Yiyang wind power project
(49.5MW), Inner Mongolia Damaogi wind
power project (200MW), Hebei Kangbao
wind power project (96MW) and Shenzhen
Energy Group Company Limited’s Jiangsu
Sihong wind power project (50.4MW)
have already commenced production. In
addition, Shanghai Electric Power Co.,Ltd’s
Anhui Lingshan wind power project
(48MW) and other projects have been

progressing smoothly.

In addition to providing construction
design services for the EPC projects, the
Group's design company, as a member of
the integrated EPC group, also provided
resources assessment and consulting
services for the Group and external
renewable energy investors. During the
year, the Group completed 150 wind or
solar resources assessment and technical
advisory reports, 56 feasibility studies and

13 construction designs.

During the year, the Group’s EPC companies
generated total revenue of HK$3,677,684,000
(2014: HK$3,187,217,000).
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ii.

Power Plant Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) Business Remained
Stable

The Group’'s O&M companies provided
full O&M services, equipment preventive
tests, technical renovation overhaul, wind
power forecast and other services to
internal and external power plants, as well
as carried out warranty period inspection
and maintenance services contracted by
turbine manufacturers. The Group’'s O&M
companies use big data, cloud computing,
networking, Internet and other technical
means to actively create new cloud O&M

pattern.

During the year, the Group's O&M
companies provided O&M services to 50
wind and solar power plants. In addition,
11 scheduled inspection service contracts
were signed with turbine manufacturers,
and 18 service contracts for preventive
tests, technical renovation overhaul and
wind power forecast were signed with

wind power plants.

During the year, this business segment
contributed revenue of HK$103,852,000
(2014: HK$123,326,000) to the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND COMPLIANCE
WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Environmental Protection

In addition to financial performance, the Group
believes that high standard of corporate social
responsibility is critical in establishing good corporate
and social relations, motivating employees and
creating sustainable returns for the Group. The
Company is committed to active contributions to the
environment and the development of community
sustainability in the regions where the Company

operates and the Company's stakeholders reside.

The Group is engaged in the business of renewable
energy power generation such as wind power and
solar power generation, it focuses on the investments
in environmental protection and conservation of water
and soil. It also strives to maintain the sustainable
development of the environment as well as the human
race, and commits to its responsibilities in improving

the energy structure and reducing air pollution.
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During the year, the electricity generated by the wind
power plants and solar power plants invested by the
Group was equivalent to the reduction of 2,860,000
tons of carbon dioxide emission, 28,265 tons of
sulfur dioxide emission and 2,507 tons of nitrogen
oxide emission. Moreover, as compared with the
electricity generated by coal-fired power plants, the
Group’s wind and solar power plants saved 960,000
tons of standard coal and 8,000,000 tons of water.
As at the end of the year, the Group’s invested wind
and solar power plants had cumulatively reduced
carbon dioxide emission by 13,530,000 tons, sulfur
dioxide emission by 134,075 tons, and nitrogen oxide
emission by 11,876 tons. 4,560,000 tons of standard
coal and 37,900,000 tons of water have been saved
cumulatively. The reduction of emissions of pollutants
has made a contribution to the reduction of PM10
and PM2.5 concentration in the atmosphere to reduce

smog.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year, to the best knowledge of the
management, the Group has complied with the
relevant standards, laws and regulations that have
a significant impact to our businesses. At the same
time, the Group always maintains a safe working
environment for staff in accordance with relevant

safety policies.
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Employment and Labour Practices

The Quality of Work Environment — Emphasis on
People

Human resources is the main force of the Group's
sustainable development. We have firmly established
the concept of people-oriented and comprehensively
harmonised sustainable development, and built a
platform for the promotion employee development.
We strive to build a congenial enterprise by
stimulating positive energy and enhancing
cohesiveness among the employees. The Group
attaches great importance to safeguarding the
legitimate rights and interests of employees and has
established a mutual fund to help the employees and
their families who are in need.

Health and Safety

The Group has great concerns over social responsibility
and pays attention to employees’ safety, health and
improvements of work abilities. Employees health
inspections are organised annually and waling events
are organised regularly. We support professional
education in universities financially.

Community Involvement

Actively fulfilling social responsibility is an important
part of the Group’s effort in building a harmonious
and responsible enterprise. Apart from business
growth, we also strive to repay to the society through
events such as active participation in community
services, organising employees for volunteer services
and donating to areas in Tibet which suffered from
earthquake.

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group maintains a good

relationship with the customers and the suppliers. No

material dispute was noted.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$1,905,131,000
(31 December 2014: HK$1,105,341,000), the
current ratio was 1.11 times (31 December 2014:
1.21 times), gearing ratio (long term debt divided
by owner’s equity) was 0.59 (31 December 2014:
0.27). At the end of the year, the Group’s borrowings
amounted to HK$3,807,076,000 (31 December
2014: HK$1,716,242,000), and the consolidated net
assets of the Group stood at HK$5,755,575,000 (31
December 2014: HK$5,755,621,000).

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the income and expenditures of
the Group’s principal businesses (including capital
expenditures) were denominated in Renminbi. The
Group did not engage in the use of any financial

instruments for hedging purpose.

Charge of Asset

As of 31 December 2015, equipment of the Group
was pledged as security for outstanding loan
amount of RMB936,950,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB492,000,000).

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged
its 49% equity interest of Erlianhaote Changfeng
Century Concord Wind Power Exploiture Co., Ltd.
("Erlian™), with total value of its share of registered
capital amounted to HK$44,451,000 (31 December
2014: HK$47,207,000). The outstanding balance
of banking facilities of Erlian as at 31 December
2015 was RMB64,739,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB75,225,000).
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The Group has also provided the corporate guarantee
for Gansu Guazhou Century Concord Wind Power
Co., Ltd. ("Guazhou”) in a loan facility with
amount up to US$140,000,000, and has pledged
its 49% equity interest of Guazhou, with total
value of its share of registered capital amounted to
approximately HK$391,354,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$415,618,000). As at 31 December 2015, the
outstanding balance of the loan was approximately
US$57,895,000 (31 December 2014: US$68,310,000).
The loan was completed on 15 January, 2016 and the
pledge was released on 11 March, 2016.

Save for the information as mentioned above, the
Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital
commitments of HK$2,789,483,000 (31 December
2014: HK$2,778,432,000) which were not accounted
for in the financial statements. The amount was
mainly capital committed for investment in power
plants of HK$757,641,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$803,680,000) by the subsidiaries, and capital
committed for payment of equipment purchased
of HK$2,031,842,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$1,974,752,000) by the subsidiaries.
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VI.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 1,068 (31
December 2014: 1,069) full-time employees — 98 for
the Group’s headquarter, 287 for project development
and management, 217 for engineering consultancy,
design, procurement and construction (EPC) and 466
for operation and maintenance.

During the year, the Board approved the adoption of
share award scheme as an incentive to recognize the
contributions of employees, and retain the employees
for their continued effort in the Group’s sustainable
development, as well as to attract suitable personnel
to participate in the Group's further development.

During the year, the staff cost was HK$146,449,000
(2014: HK$149,861,000), representing a decrease of
HK$3,412,000 year-on-year.

PROSPECTS

In 2016, the world economy is still intricate and
difficult with uncertain outlook for recovery. The
overall growth rate of the Chinese macro-economy is
expected to show a steadily slow down trend with a
slow growth rate in electricity consumption. 2016 is
the first year of China’s 13th Five-Year Plan and it is
expected that, newly installed wind power capacity
will exceed 20GW while newly installed solar power
generation capacity will exceed 15GW. The Chinese
government is currently exerting great effort to
resolve the problems including electricity consumption
and electricity tariff subsidies. Meanwhile, there is
continuous technological advancement in renewable
energy power generation. With a relatively loose
financial environment, there will still be a lot of room

for future growth.
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Following the implementation of a series of measures
including the south-bound development, solar energy
development and optimization of capital structure
in recent years, the Group’s assets in power plants
as well as its proportion of earnings from power

generation business have been increasing.

The Group will persist in the following operational

strategies in 2016:

1. Put more effort in getting more project
approvals and persist without wavering in the
business strategies of development in south
areas without curtailment and in solar energy
and maintain a steady growth in the Group’'s
attributable installed capacity and developing
wholly-owned or controlled wind power and
solar power projects with good economic
benefits in southern China where no curtailment
is enforced.

2. Strengthen safety production management in
power plants and improve economic efficiency
of power plants, strengthen the refined
management in production, uplift the technical
standards of power plant operation and adopt
various effective measures to increase equivalent
available hours and reduce the loss from

curtailment.

3. Strengthen the capabilities of the service
business segment, continue to expand in
external business and ensure the achievement
of established targets and various operation

indicators.
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4.  Continue to optimize and adjust the Group’s
capital structure, improve strategic planning,
expedite the disposal and replacement of
inventory assets in the areas of curtailment or
future curtailment, dispose of inefficient assets
and make full use of idle assets.

5.  Improve management effectiveness, enhance
efficiency and continue the implementation of
cost control, promote the reform of award and
incentive mechanisms and optimize the work in

auditing, supervision and risks prevention.

In the coming year, all the staff in the Group will
work together, strive for innovation and make every
possible effort in the new development direction of
the Group so as to create excellent return for our
shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shunxing, aged 54, joined the Group in 2007. He
has become the Chairman of the Company since June 2009.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree of Electricity Generation
from Tianjin University and a Master degree of Energy
Resource Economic Management from the Management
College of Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Liu is the
vice president of China Energy Research Institute and an
executive director of China Energy Council. He was formerly
the Vice CEO of China Energy Conservation Investment

Corporation for eight years.

Mr. Yang Zhifeng, aged 45, joined the Group in 2007.
He is the Co-Vice Chairperson of the Company. He is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Yang
holds his Master degree in International Finance from
Renmin University of China and an EMBA from China
Europe International Business School. He once worked in
China Energy Conservation Investment Corporation and has
extensive experience in industrial investment and corporate

management.

Ms. Liu Jianhong, aged 47, joined the Group in 2007.
She is the Co-Vice Chairperson of the Company. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Liu holds her Master degree from the Law School
of Renmin University of China and an EMBA from China
Europe International Business School. She was the Chief
Legal Officer of China Energy Conservation Investment

Corporation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Yu Weizhou, aged 51, joined the Group in 2009.
He is currently the Chief Executive Officer (“the CEOQ") of
the Company and is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in statistics and a
Master degree in finance from Renmin University of China
and a Ph.D degree of Engineering Management from Xian
University of Technology. Mr. Yu once worked in State
Economic & Trade Commission, State Power Management
Commission and China Shenhua-Guohua Energy Investment
Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Gao Fuchun, aged 45, has been a non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2015. Mr. Gao
graduated from Central Party School majored in law. Mr.
Gao is the Deputy Director of Hydropower and New Energy
Industries of Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited
("Huadian Fuxin”), a shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Gao is very familiar with plant operation management,

equipment management and safety management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David,BBS,JP, aged 58, has been
an independent non-executive Director since 2006. Dr.
Wong received a doctorate degree in Economics from the
University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. Wong has extensive
experience in manufacturing, direct investment and
international trade. Dr. Wong is active in public service.
He is a Hong Kong deputy of the 12th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (E+ -2 &
ARMKFEARE). He is also the Chairman of the Land and
Development Advisory Committee, Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority and Protection of Wages on
Insolvency Fund Board. Dr. Wong was appointed a Justice
of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) in 2012 for his valuable contribution to the

society.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation
Limited (Stock code: 419), Redco Properties Group Limited
(Stock code: 1622), Reorient Group Limited (Stock code:
376), Shenzhen Investment Limited (Stockcode: 604) and
Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (Stock code: 934).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, aged 70, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 2006. He holds
a master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, in the United Kingdom.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in finance and
accounting. He retired as the managing director of Johnson
Matthey Hong Kong Limited in June 2007 and prior to that
appointment he was the general manager of Sun Hung Kai
China Development Limited. Mr. Yap is also an independent
non-executive director of Frontier Services Group Limited
(stock code: 500), and Brockman Mining Limited (stock
code: 159).

Dr. Shang Li, aged 41, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2012. Dr. Shang holds
a Ph.D degree in Computer Engineering from Princeton
University, USA. Dr. Shang has extensive experience and
knowledge incyber-physical systems, embedded systems,
computer systems and nanotechnologies & etc. He is
an Associate Professor of the Department of Electrical,
Computer and Energy Engineering in University of Colorado
at Boulder and the Chair Professor in Tongji University.
He was formerly the vice president and Chief Architect
of Intel China Research. He has published over 90 articles
in international top journals and conferences in related
fields. In 2012, Dr. Shang received the

from FPGA” from ACM International Symposium on Field-

“25 Best Papers
Programmable Gate Arrays and the “Computational
Sustainability Award” from the Computing Community

Consortium.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Ms. Huang Jian, aged 47, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since December
2012. Ms. Huang holds a Master degree from the Central
University of Finance and Economics of the PRC. She is also
a certified public accountant in the PRC. Ms. Huang has
over past 20 years of professional experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation. Ms. Huang was the senior partner
of RSM China Certified Public Accountants and a full time
member of SME Board Pubic Offering Review Committee of

the China Securities Regulatory Commission.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gui Kai, aged 57, joined the Group in 2015. He is
the Vice President of the Company. He holds a Master
Degree of China University of Mining & Technology. He
had served as General Manager of Shenhua Trading Group
and Shenhua Science and Technology Development Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Niu Wenhui, aged 45, joined the Group in 2010. He
is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Hangzhou Dianzi University. He had
served as vice president of China Ruilian Industrial Group
and Chief Financial Officer of Rainbow Group Shenzhen

Branch.

Mr. Shang Xuelian, aged 52, joined the Group in 2008.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Shandong University. Mr. Shang had
served as Vice Chief Engineer and General Manager of
thermal power plant of Shandong Lubei Enterprise Group
Limited.

Mr. Liu Ruiging, aged 51, joined the Group in 2011. He is
an assistant to CEO. He holds a Master degree from North
China Electric Power University. He had worked for Huadian
Group New Energy Limited and Guohua New Energy

Development Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREEEEAENBEAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Yao Wenjun, aged 48, joined the Group in 2015.
He is an assistant to CEO. He holds a Master degree from
Tsinghua University. He has worked for North China Gird
and Jibei Electric Power.

Mr. Ma Suoming, aged 42, joined the Group in 2015.
He is an assistant to CEO. He holds a Master degree from
North China Electric Power University. He has worked for
North China Gird, National Grid and Jibei Electric Power.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Year”). On 8 January 2015, the Company proposed to
change the English name of the Company from “China
WindPower Group Limited” to “Concord New Energy
Group Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company “ 1%
AHFLREEAR AT " was adopted to replace " EHEE
SEERAR"

to the Company’s announcement dated 8 January 2015 and

for identification purpose only. Please refer

circular dated 14 January 2015 for details.

On 3 March 2015, the Certificate of Registration of
Alternation of Name of Non-Hong Kong Company was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
confirming the registration of the new name “Concord New
Energy Group Limited (& #TeeREEAR AT *)" of the
Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
17 to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
income and contribution to operating profit for the Year is
set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 65. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

* for identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Year are set out in Note 33 to the

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company are set out in

Note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the

Company are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2015 are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and
equities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 267 and 268.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors do not recommend to declare a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: Nil). An interim dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share
was paid in 2015.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
had repurchased 73,530,000 shares of the listed securities
of the Company with the aggregate consideration of
HK$33,298,000 on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, all of the purchased shares were subsequently
cancelled by the Company and the issued share capital of

the Company was reduced thereon.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the existing share options cheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) on 16 April 2007.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions of the Qualified Persons
(as defined in the Share Option Scheme, including but not
limited to, the directors, employees, partners and associates
of the Group) of the Group.

Pursuant to this 10-year term Share Option Scheme, the
Company can grant options to the Qualified Persons for
a consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the
Qualified Persons. The total number of the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each Qualified Person (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares then in issue. During the Year,
no share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme. The share option scheme limit was refreshed by
a resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on
20 June 2011. The maximum number of options that can
be granted by the Company was refreshed to 739,377,996
share options.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Subscription price in relation to each option pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme shall be not less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of the shares. There shall be no minimum
holding period for the vesting or exercise of the options
but the options are exercisable within the option period as

determined by the board of directors of the Company.

Movements of the share option are set out in Note 32
to the financial statements. As at the date of this report,
the total number of share option that can be granted was
739,377,996, representing 8.46% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted a Scheme on 15 June 2015. The
Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme for
the purpose of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Reference
is made to the announcement dated 15 June 2015.
Capitalised terms therein should contain the same meanings
unless otherwise specified. The principal terms of the
Scheme are outlined below.

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to (i) recognize the
contributions of the Employees; (ii) provide additional
incentives in order to retain the Employees to continue to
work for the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for

further development of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.

Administration

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board (or a committee from time to time authorized by
the Board to manage the Scheme) and the Trustee in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the Trust
Deed. The Board may, from time to time, at its sole
discretion determine the number of Awarded Shares to be
awarded to the Selected Employees. The Board is entitled
to impose any vesting conditions, as it deems appropriate in
its absolute discretion with respect to the entitlement of the
Selected Employees to the Awarded Shares. Any grant of
the Awarded Shares to the connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors (other than the
independent non-executive director who is the Selected
Employee). The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to deal
in any shares in the market during the period when any
Director is in possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company or when the dealings in the
Company’s securities by Directors are prohibited under any
code or requirement of the Listing Rules or any applicable
laws.

Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further Awarded which will
result in the nominal value of Shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding five (5) per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date (the
“Scheme Limit").

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded
to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not exceed
one (1) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date (the “Individual Limit").
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Scheme Limit (Continued)

Each of the Scheme Limit and the Individual Limit shall
be refreshed automatically on each anniversary date of
the Adoption Date during the duration of the Scheme as
stipulated under the above stated in the Duration, such
that (i) the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall not exceed five
(5) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as
at each anniversary date of the Adoption Date: and (ii) the
Individual Limit so refreshed shall not exceed one (1) per
cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at each

anniversary date of the Adoption Date.

Operation of the Scheme

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall give notice to the Trustee in
accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed to purchase
any Awarded Shares in the market. The Company shall pay
the Trustee sufficient funds for any purchase including the

cost of the Awarded Shares and the relevant expenses.

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall inform the Trustee the names
of the Selected Employees, the number of shares awarded
to them, the vesting date, the vesting conditions (if any)
and other relevant information under the Scheme and
the Trust Deed. Within 20 business days (on which the
trading of Shares has not been suspended) after the Trustee
receives the cash for the purchase of the Awarded Shares,
the Trustee shall apply the same towards the purchase of
the Awarded Shares at the prevailing market price at its
discretion. The Awarded Shares so purchased will be kept
by the Trustee until the relevant vesting conditions are met
and until then the Awarded Shares will be transferred to

the Selected Employees accordingly.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Vesting and Lapse

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
fulfillment of all vesting conditions, the relevant Awarded
Shares and Related Income held by the Trustee on behalf
of any Selected Employee shall vest in such Selected
Employee on the Vestng Date and the Trustee shall cause
the Awarded Shares and Related Income to be transferred
to such Selected Employee. If the Selected Employee fails
to deliver the signed and completed transfer doucments to
the Trustee within the stipulated period, unless the Board
determines otherwise, the Awarded Shares and the Related
Income shall not vest and shall revert to the Trustee as the
Returned Shares.

In the event that prior to the Vesting Date the Selected
Employee ceases to be an Employee, any unvested Awarded
Shares and Related Income that the Selected Employee
is entitled to shall lapse accordingly, unless the Board
determines otherwise.

In the event that a Selected Employee dies before any
Award to him as vested, unless the Board determines
otherwise, the Award to him shall lapse immediately and
the Awarded Shares to which the Award relate and the
Related Income shall revert to the Trustee as Returned
Shares. If Awarded Shares have vested before the death
of the Selected Employee but have not been transferred
by the Trustee to him, such vested Awarded Shares and
Related Income shall be held by the Trustee for the personal
representative(s) of such Selected Employee and the Trustee
shall transfer to such personal representative(s) such
Awarded Shares and Related Income pursuant to the terms
of the Scheme and the Trust Deed.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Vesting and Lapse (Continued)

Where any Awarded Share does not vest in accordance with
the relevant provision herein and becomes Returned Share,
the Board may grant Award(s) of such Returned Shares
to other Selected Employees subject to such conditions or
limitations as the Board may decide.

Notwithstanding any other provisions provided in the Share
Award Scheme, if there occurs an event of change of
control of the Company, whether by way of offer, merger,
scheme of arrangement or otherwise, unless the Board
determines otherwise, all the unvested Awarded Shares
shall immediately vest on the date when such change of
control event becomes or is declared unconditional and
such date shall be deemed to be the Vesting Date.

Rights

The Selected Employees shall not have any interest or rights
(including the right to vote or receive dividends) in any
Awarded Shares or in the Related Income unless and until
the Trustee has vested the ownership of such Awarded
Shares in the Selected Employees.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any Shares held under the Trust.

Termination

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the 10th
anniversary date of the Adoption Date or such date of early
termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of the
Selected Employees.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares that can be
awarded under the Scheme is 447,311,748. As at the
date of this report, no Awarded Shares have been granted
pursuant to the Scheme. On 5 April 2016, 61,700,000
Shares have been awarded to the Selected Employees.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shunxing

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (resigned on 19 June 2015)
Mr. Wang Xun (resigned on 15 July 2015)

Mr. Yang Zhifeng

Ms. Liu Jianhong

Mr. Yu Weizhou

Mr. Zhou Zhizhong (resigned on 13 March 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ko Wing Yan, Samantha (resigned on 19 June 2015)
Mr. Gao Fuchun (appointed on 13 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David,BBS,JP
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry

Dr. Shang Li

Ms. Huang Jian

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Liu Shunxing, Dr. Shang Li and Ms. Huang Jian shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election at the forth coming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-

election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and the Company considered that they are

independent.

DIRECTORS’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period of
notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation or
make other payments equivalent to more than one year's

emolument.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of each director and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), or known to
the Company, were as follows:

(i) Long positions and short positions in the shares

of the Company:

EERFEITRAERA D A S IEMB
ERTzRO  HERORESPHES
ZRBER /LR

MR2015F 12 A31H S REBITHA

RANBREAAHERR(EEREFK
BEKRAI(TEHFRBEGERN D EXVE) 2 &
B HEROREFPHEELENAAD T
ARBESRPEEMEIIETE ZER
MAZEZRAR  KEREEFFRBER
BISEXV Bk BB AR SHATAER AR (B
FrDEHE EmBB(T EMAB DT EMRA]
EFRTEFRZIOZESTR([IZESFA)
MEARRQNFREZET » kAR EE MEBZ#E
mERBIT

=

(i) RAERXARBZHFRRALR :

Number of shares held and nature of interest

Name of the Directors Personal

EEpg A Eq
Liu Shunxing —

2| &

Liu Jianhong 1,210,000

Elj=an

Yap Fat Suan, Henry 200,000

ES
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2,476,479,387° (L) 2,476,479,387" (L) 27.68
1,910,682,927 (5)  1,910,682,927 (S) 2136
- 1,210,000 0.01
- 200,000 0.002
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

()

(ii)

44

Long positions and short positions in the shares
of the Company: (Continued)

Notes:

1. “L" represents long position in the shares of the
Company and “S” represents short position in the
shares of the Company.

2. 2,361,469,387 shares are held by China Wind Power
Investment Limited, China Wind Power Investment
Limited is wholly-owned by New Energy International
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Concord
International Investment Limited (“Concord
International”). Mr. Liu Shunxing holds 46.77% of the
issued shares of Concord International. 115,010,000
shares are held by Guangfeng International Holdings
Limited which is wholly owned by Beijing Guangfeng
Energy Technology Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing holds
99% of the issued shares of Beijing Guangfeng Energy
Technology Limited.

Long positions in the underlying shares of share
options of the Company:

Details of the movement of the share options are set
out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015,
none of the directors and chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code adopted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors (including their respective spouse and children
under the age of 18) to acquire benefits by the means
of the acquisition of the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any of its associated

corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, save as disclosed under the
section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/
or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Long positions and short positions in the shares of the

FERRE)

REQATRRDZHFRRKR :

Company:
Approximate percentage
Number of the shares of of the total issued
Name of shareholder the company held share capital
B BITRA
RREHE BFEARARRAEE WA T DL
(%)
China Wind Power Investment Limited (2) 2,361,469,387 (L) 26.40
1,910,682,927 (S) 21.36
Huadian Fuxin International Investment
Company Limited (“Huadian Fuxin”)
EERNEFIREBRAR(TEEREHN]) 880,000,000 9.84
Note: Htat -
(1) “L” represents long position in the shares of the Company (N TURTEARTRDZ2TERISIRIRAAT]

and “S” represents short position in the shares of the
Company.

(2)  The shares are held by China Wind Power Investment Limited,
China Wind Power Investment Limited is wholly-owned by
New Energy International Limited, which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Concord International Investment
Limited (“Concord International”). Mr. Liu Shunxing holds
46.77% of the issued shares of Concord International.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, there
were no other persons who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

46 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

Befn 2 %A

(2)  #ZZR{D A China Wind Power Investment
Limited# & o China Wind Power
Investment Limited & New Energy
International Limited® & # & M New
Energy International Limited Bl % Concord
International Investment Limited ([ Concord
International |) 2 2 &M BA ) o BUNEF 54
# A Concord International 2 46.77% & #
TR -

Br EXXCAT#BEES - BR20154F 128318 ¢
BEEMATRARAB 2RO EAEERDF
A EREE S KA ERDIZE 336 (RMAA T
5 SEREFES KRB KRGS 336 5tk
RARRFEZ Bz EmAR -

BEHEREEARD A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all losses and liabilities
& etc which they may incur or sustain by reason about
the execution of their duties, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors. The
Company has also arranged appropriate directors’ and
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of
the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's largest 5 customers
accounted for 69% of the total sales for the Year, and the
largest customer included there in amounted to 30%.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for 56% of the total purchases for the Year, and the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 14%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had interests in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to

61 of the annual report.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of the post balance sheet event are set out in Note
42 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there was sufficient of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
Pricewaterhouse Coopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shunxing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

48 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

HEREER

BEARFHEARIANYBHRRME42 -

BARBAAHRGBGZEMERESHA
MARERH  NAGHEE ETRAUREZ
ARABHRIADNBIBE ©

AT
MBEBRREKBERBKEGTERIE

% ZARBENEITRE RS EBRLER
ARRERERFBFRE LRERE -

RREFS

E:

21 )i 82

EF& 20163 A30H

BEHEREEARD A



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate

governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
has reviewed the Group's corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“the
Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised of nine
Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors. Biographical details of the Directors are stated
under the section “Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

A major shareholder of the Company, China Wind Power
Investment Limited, is held 46.77% indirectly by Mr. Liu
Shunxing. Mr. Yang Zhifeng and Ms. Liu Jianhong are also
two of the indirect shareholders of China Wind Power

Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between the

Board members.

For a Director to be considered independent, that director
should not have any director indirect material interest in the
Group. In determining the independence of Directors, the
Board follows the requirement set out in the Listing Rules.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a specific term
and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election

at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and
overseeing, the functioning of the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interest for the Group. The Chairman
is responsible for approving the agenda for each Board
meeting, after taking into account the matters proposed
by other Directors. With the support of the executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chairman also actively
encourages all Directors to be fully engaged in the Board's
affairs and make contributions to the Board’s functions. The
Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to provide
effective communication with shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The CEO is responsible for managing the business of the
Group, attending to the formulation and implementation
of group policies, and assuming full accountability for the
Group’s operations. Acting as the principal manager of the
Group’s business, the CEO develops a strategic operating
plan that reflects the long-term objectives and priorities
established by the Board, and is directly responsible for
maintaining the operational performance of the Group.
Working with the senior management and the Board, the
CEO ensures that the funding requirements of the business
are met and closely monitors the operating and financial
results against the plans and budgets. He also takes
remedial actions when necessary and advises the Board of

any significant developments and issues of the Group.
Ongoing dialogues are maintained with all Directors to keep

them fully informed of all major business developments and

issues.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly, and at least 4 times a year.
Between meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to Directors the information on the activities and
developments in the business of the Group on a timely basis
and when required, additional Board meetings are held. In
addition, Directors have full access to the information of the
Group and the independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. During the year ended
31 December 2015, a total of 11 board meetings and 2
general meetings (“2015 SGM” and “2015 AGM") were
held and the attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of directors

Exg@)

sxerfaAes TR —FREDE74
ReZ - ReHE2H AEEaEEEAB
ERNNESREFAEASEEHNELERE
ZER TREATERETHEINZESES
Fol BEEUREEREBERTEREA
MAEEENERNSKBIEEER - B
HZ2015F 12 A31HIEFE » KARARAH
BITNMAREFSEZR2ERAE([2015
FREFR RS ] RI2015F R EBF X
gl ZSEFZERBEREIOT

Number of meetings attended in
the year ended 31 December 2015/
Number of meetings eligible to attend
BZE2015F12A31H1LE

FEHEZEEHE

RERHEZERYE
Board 2015 2015
meetings SGM® AGM®

2015 RE 2015 FKRK

=3 o EEE2ER BRlxg® BEXg®
Chairman Liu Shunxing 11711 11 171
i 2 I £
Vice Chairman Ko Chun Shun, Johnson? 717 171 171
BIEE =ixIE>
CEO Yang Zhifeng 11/11 1/1 1/1
THRHEAR 158 1E
Executive Directors Wang Xun* 9/9 171 171
HITES T
Liu Jianhong 11/11 11 11
24T
Yu Weizhou 11/11 11 11
RHUEN
Zhou Zhizhong' 4/4 1/1 0/0
e
Non-executive Directors Kf Wing Yan, Samantha® 717 11 11
FHITES =’
Gao Fuchun’ 6/6 0/0 1
mEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors Dr. Wong Yau Kar,

BAEBITES David,BBS,JP
® R 5181 BBS,JP

Yap Fat Suan, Henry

2329
Shang Li

s
A 37

Huang Jian

o ke

HE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Notes:

Mr. Zhou Zhizhong has resigned as executive Director on 13
March 2015.

Mr. Gao Fuchun has appointed as a non-executive Director
on 13 March 2015.

3 Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson and Ms. Ko Wing Yan Samantha
have been resigned as an executive Director and a non-
executive Director on 19 June 2015 respectively.

Mr. Wang Xun has resigned as executive Director on 15 July
2015.

> 2015 SGM was held on 9 February 2015.

e 2015 AGM was held on 5 June 2015.

Professional Training for Directors

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the Group’s
businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Group also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good

corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings by reading
relevant materials on the topics relating to corporate
governance and regulations and have provided their

training records.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Besides, the Company has set up three
committees including the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. Each
committee has its specific terms of reference with reference
to the Code:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Wong
Yau Kar, David,BBS,JP with Mr. Liu Shunxing, Ms. Liu
Jianhong, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Dr. Shang Li being
the members. The Remuneration Committee meets for the
determination of the remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters such as making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior

management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Under its term of reference, the Remuneration Committee
assists the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategies across
the Group’s operations. The Committee also assists the
Group in the administration of the fair and transparent
procedure for setting policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. The
written terms of reference are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held
1 meeting with all members present. The Committee has
reviewed the remuneration packages for Directors and

senior management of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members,
namely Mr. Liu Shunxing (Chairman), Ms. Liu Jianhong, Dr.
Wong Yau Kar, David,BBS,JP, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and
Ms. Huang Jian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code and are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Under its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors of the Company. Potential new
directors are selected on the basis of their qualifications,
skills and experience which the Nomination Committee
considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board. During the year, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting with all members present.
The Committee has reviewed the structure, size and

composition of the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and the other members of the
Committee are Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David,BBS,JP and
Ms. Huang Jian. Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry is a chartered
accountant in England and Wales and is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the Code and are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under its terms
of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors, to review the Group's interim and annual financial
statements, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control system,

and to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee has held 2 meetings during the year

with all members present.
There are no disagreement between the Board and the

Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is as

follows:

BB &

ZEERIFREURT 2 B ARSI T

31 December 31 December

Nature of the services 2015 2014
2015 F 20144
Rt E 12H31H 12 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Audit services ZH R 3,533 3,397
Other services H AR — —
3,533 3,397

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS RIS R P EL
The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management NEEZEKREIER KN IPEEIE Z

and internal control system and has the responsibility
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Company and its
subsidiaries have adopted a set of risk management and
internal control procedures and policies to safeguard
the assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting
records and reliability of financial reporting, and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The
internal control system is designed to ensure the financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions are in place and functioning effectively. The
Board has conducted a review of and is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group.

The Board also reviews, at least annually, the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their

training programmes and budget.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view
and are in compliance with the statutory requirements and
applicable financial reporting standards. As at 31 December
2015, the Directors was not aware of any material
misstatement or uncertainties that might put doubt on the
Group’s financial position or continue as a going concern.
The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,

position and prospects in financial reporting.

A statement by the auditor about the auditor’s responsibility

is set out on page 62 and 64 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
the activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and
effectively. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
to prepare agendas and Board papers for meetings and
disseminates such documents to the Directors and board
committees in a timely manner. The Company Secretary
is responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully briefed
on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments when making decisions. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, including publication and dissemination
of Report and Financial Statements and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating
to the Group to the market and ensuring that proper
notification is made when there are any dealings of the

Director in the securities of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensure that the standards and disclosures required by the

Listing Rules are observed.

During the year, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, the Company
Secretary of the Company, has undertaken no less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and

knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (“SGM")

Subject to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”) and Bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, shareholders holding in aggregate not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general

meeting

Any number of shareholders representing not less than
5% of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act for putting

forward such proposal at a general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company

Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suite 3901, 39/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2866 0281

Email: cs@cnegroup.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the

general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed in providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of interim and annual reports. In
addition to the circulars, notices and financial reports sent
to shareholders, additional information of the Group is also

available to shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
is given. The Chairman and Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meeting.
Subject to the Act and the bye-laws of the Company, all
shareholders shall have statutory rights to call for special
general meetings and put forward agenda items for
consideration in the general meetings. All resolutions at the
general meeting are decided by a poll which is conducted

by the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong.
The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort

to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.

Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.
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CONSTITUTION AN DOCUMENT BEXH

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional RAREERN KRB ZEEXNH LB o
document during the year.
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e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CONCORD NEW ENERGY
GROUP LIMITED
(Formerly known as China WindPower Group Limited)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
65 to 266, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
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B R R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B AR E
OPINION =R
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a 17 Jd

true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F 12 A3 BILFE

2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
it FET FET
Revenue e A 6 4,321,302 3,549,639
Other income H AU A 6 38,708 25,383
Other gains, net Hithlzs - J#58 7 33,585 170,252
Expenses F <
Cost of construction and EREBEFE
inventories sold [B#N 10 (3,312,662) (2,916,660)
Inventory write-down FERE 20 (10,510) —
Write-off of amounts due from LA &1 2 TR TE I SH
a joint venture (13,848) —
Employee benefit expense EERAFZ 8 10 (146,449) (149,861)
Depreciation and amortisation W& X5 10 (166,231) (109,431)
Operating lease payments RS TH S (20,846) (4,052)
Other expenses EMFEY (144,399) (117,358)
Finance costs BT RK ZAR 9 (115,475) (105,722)
Share of results JEIE 4
— Associates — Bt AR 18 17,525 7,645
— Joint ventures — A 19 68,284 42,062
Profit before income tax R P15 BL AT F 548,984 391,897
Income tax expense FTiSfi X 11 (42,601) (73,786)
Profit for the year REERF 506,383 318,111
Profit attributable to: BHEBR
Owners of the Company RABEB A 508,053 317,188
Non-controlling interests FEVES R (1,670) 923
506,383 318,111
HK cents HK cents
JEAL JEAL
Earnings per share attributable ZREEZRAQF
to owners of the Company BEEAELEZ
during the year BRER
Basic earnings per share SREARZF 12(a) 5.73 3.62
Diluted earnings per share TFHREE BT 12(b) 5.72 3.62

HNE73EE266 A M E R EFMERE
ZEBEEMD o

The notes on pages 73 to 266 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHZE2015F 12 A3 HIEFE

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$°000
FET T
Profit for the year REEFBR 506,383 318,111
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Ht2E(EE) Kk :
Items that may be reclassified to AlgEE D EEER
profit or loss ZIEE
Currency translation differences BRER =5
— Group — £E (221,991) (7,023)
— Associates — B RA] (20,826) (1,229)
— Joint ventures — EELHE (97.621) (4,352)
— Recycling upon loss of control — RKEMBATR
over subsidiaries 2V il (3) (12,446)
— Recycling upon disposal of — REBZE AT
an associate 857 —
Total other comprehensive loss AEEHMEEEIBERE
for the year, net of tax HBRHLE (339,584) (25,050)
Total comprehensive income AFEELHKSERE
for the year 166,799 293,061
Total comprehensive income PHKRREEERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATHER A 175,401 291,866
Non-controlling interests FEVES R (8.602) 1,195
166,799 293,061

The notes on pages 73 to 266 are an integral part of these &
<z

L

puia)

consolidated financial statements. ERiten

66 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

o

F73EE266 A2 M RULZEH B K

BEHEREEARD A



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEEREBR

As at 31 December 2015
M2015%F12 A31H

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRS 14 4,659,114 2,817,908
Leasehold land and land use HETH N T
rights 1 A% 15 340,014 149,214
Intangible assets mEEE 16 1,276,035 1,355,554
Interests in associates REEE N B 2 18 329,032 370,741
Interests in and advances to joint REEREIERER
ventures B 19 1,598,475 1,623,384
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHESmERE 22 3,672 697
Prepayments, deposits and other ENFIE - B2k
receivables H fth E U R IE 24 384,051 253,391
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 34 18,920 7,418
8,609,313 6,578,307
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 178,321 350,374
Trade and bill receivables EWE SRR RER 23 1,549,835 550,183
Prepayments, deposits and other EHIE - B2k
receivables H fth E U RIE 24 811,942 928,732
Amounts due from associates JE U B 2 2 ) FROR 18 173,093 85,992
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUA & FEFIE 19 1,147,947 1,167,519
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 22 26,451 —
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABR
through profit or loss ZEREE 25 18,292 —
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEFMBEIAE 26 1,905,131 1,105,341
5,811,012 4,188,141
Non-current assets held for sale BEFEZIERHEE 37 — 23,643
5,811,012 4,211,784
Total assets BEERE 14,420,325 10,790,091
LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings CES 30 3,347,841 1,358,756
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 34 5,538 6,023
Deferred government grants I SE AT #65 Bh 35 22,178 21,435
Loans from a joint venture BEGTEZER 79 43,234 155,833
3,418,791 1,542,047
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEERERE)

As at 31 December 2015
M2015%F12 A31H

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bill payables EREZERAREE 28 3,965,835 2,355,188
Payables for construction in 18 B i 2 R RUE -
progress, other payables and HAtb R HRIE R
accruals fEstzE 29 592,098 529,918
Amounts due to associates ARl NEIE S 18 2,498 29,039
Amounts due to joint ventures BT A E D ERIE 19 223,612 187,276
Borrowings BN 30 459,235 357,486
Current income tax liabilities TR IE 2,681 33,516
5,245,959 3,492,423
Total liabilities EEEE 8,664,750 5,034,470
Net current assets RBEEZFE 565,053 719,361
Total assets less current EEABERRE
liabilities =L 9,174,366 7,297,668
Net assets BEFE 5,755,575 5,755,621
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners KATEREA
of the Company EihfEz
Share capital A& X 37 89,462 89,462
Reserves GG 5,545,800 5,564,813
5,635,262 5,654,275
Non-controlling interests FEIEH MRS 120,313 101,346
Total equity fERAEE 5,755,575 5,755,621

The notes on pages 73 to 266 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 65 to 266 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and were
signed on its behalf.

Liu Shunxing

2| )ig &

Director
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERSER

For the year ended

31 December 2015

HZE2015F 12 A3 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RLTAEEARE
Premium
arising on
acquistion
of non- Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ controlling ~~ Exchange Other  Retained controling Total
aptal  premum  surplus interests fleserve  Teserves - earnings Total  interests equity
Wi
fEamEL
BE RbEE  HARR CRE ERGE  HbEE  REEA & satEs  Eag
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
it Hr fE TEr fEr fEr TEr TRt TR fEn
Balance at 1 January 2014 H0UE1 518 80187 264881 2675788  (35481) 448094 122685 1415007 4971450 0435 4993886
Comprehensive income LE%E
Profit for the year REE AT - - - - - — 378 317188 0 318101
Other comprehensive R2A(E) /i
(Ioss)/income
Currency translation differences ~~ SBEY2E
—Group - 58 - - - - 1% - - 19 m o)
— Associates —BEL7 - - - -1 - -1 -1
— Joint ventures —REPE - - - - {43 - - 43 - 3
—Recycling upon loss of — kBN
control over subsidiaries i - - - - (12448) - - (12,446) - (12440)
Totalother comprehensive Efe2A(BR)/ g
(lss)income, net of tax 2% kA - - - - B - - B mo 500
Total comprehensive 2i(FE) /Wi
(Ioss)/income 3 - - - - (530 — 317188 291,866 119 293,061
Total contributions by and HERERERL
distributions to owners of the ~ AFEAEAZ
Company recognised directly ~ RANAEAE
in equity
Subscription of new ordinary TR
hares 8800 369,600 - - - - — 378400 — 378400
Brercise of share options fieERE a5 2094 - - -0 - 1434 - M
Share-based compensation WRhBEEZfi7 - - - - - 3,098 - 3,098 - 3,08
Total contributions by and NERERED.
dstrbutions to ownersof e~~~ AFABAZ
Company BARALSE 9275 390,55 - - - % - 3580 — 305840
Non-controllng interests ariing on - B ENBARES 2
partal disposal of subsidiaries ~ FEAEEER - - - - - - - — 10095 100965
Acquiston of non-controling ~ E2EiA4 5%
interests (Note 40) (i) - - - - - (4,882) - (488 (u (137
Dividend paid to non-controling X TRE FHEeciEs
interests - - - - - - - - (755) (755)
Total transactions with owners ~ EEEAETZXAEE 9275 390,55 - - - B8n - 0%8 TG d686T4
Balance at 31 December 2014 W2014%12831R 80460 655435 2675788 (35481 42772 113814 1732485 5654275 101346 5,755,001
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

REREEER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F 12 A3 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLAERARE
Premium
arising on
acquisition
of non- Non-
Share  Treasury Share Contributed  controlling ~ Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital share  premium  surplus interests  reserve  reserves earnings Total  interests  equity
bl P37
ERfiEL
Be  EFR  REEE HARE  ZEE  ENRE  EMRE  RERA B3 FoGMEE  RESGS
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
tér TEr FEn TET fEn TET fEn T fER FET TER
Balance at 1 January 2015 H15E1R1A 89,462 — 055435 2675788 (35481) a2 113814 4732485 5654215 101346 5,755,621
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year RERER - - - - - - — 508053 508,033 (1,670) 506,383
Other comprehensive AH2E(EE) /W&
(loss)/income
Currency translaton differences EUEizE
— Group —-%8 - - - - — (215,059 - — (215,059 (6932) (221,991
— Associates —BELT - - - - - (208) - - (208 - (208
— Joint ventures —-aERE - - - - - (e - - ) -G8
— Recycling upon loss of control — %ZHBLA
over subsidiaries i - - - - - B - - 0 - 0)
— Recycling upon disposal of an - RERELT
as0ciate - - - - - 857 - - 857 - 857
Total other comprehensive loss,
net of tax - - - - - (33265 - — (33265 (6,932)  (339,584)
Total comprehensive 2E(FE)/ b
(loss)/income g - - - - - (33265 — 508053 175401 (8,602) 166,799
Total contributions by and NERERBIZATREA
distributions to owners of the LRAIARES
Company recognised directly
in equity
Repurchase of ordinary share for BEEGIH 28R
cancellation - (339 - - - - - - (3% - (339
Repurchase of ordinary shares under TR 4Bi:1E 2 LA
share award scheme - (82699 - - - - - - (82699 - (82699
Share-based compensation WRAEEE R3 - - - - - - 15 - 15 - 1588
Interim dividends paid RREEDES - - - - - - - (89462) (89,460 - (89462)
Total contibutions by and disroutions  EREZETZATEAA
to owners of the Company LEMINESE - (115%) - - - - 1583 (8946)  (189,616) - (189516)
Non-contralling intersts arsing RARHEMBRTEE,
on partial disposal of a subsidiary FEHER - - - - - - (4,798) - (479) 2260 1780
Contrbutions by non-controling nterests 3125/ 812 - - - - - - - - - 4% 49
Total transactions with owners ~ EEEAEFIREHE - (15990) - - - - MM5 (89460 (194414 27569 (166,845)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R15E12831A 89462  (115,097) 655435 2675788  (35481) 90,120 124859 2151076 5635062 120313 5755575
The notes on pages 73 to 266 are an integral part of these HREIZEE 2668 VT AL EG ST

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHZE2015F 12 A3 HIEFE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Cash flows from operating REKETEHZ
activities BeRE
Cash generated from operations IR AR S T IH S 36(a) 1,006,377 353,097
Income tax paid SRS (82,463) (59,035)
Net cash generated from RETHEEZ
operating activities RE&BE 923,914 294,062
Cash flows from investing REBRETHZ
activities RE&ERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  BER
equipment B (2,275,830) (1,863,807)
Capital injection to joint ventures MaEtETE (16,800) (85,149)
Prepayment to an associate TE{TH & N B8 — (19,688)
Purchases of leasehold land and EEHELTHR
land use rights T HhfE A (85,914) (8,034)
Net proceeds received from joint WEIERHEFIE
venture partners FEE 36(b) — 16,822
Net proceeds from disposal of an Bo BB N R PTIS 0E
associate FER 36(c) 31,057 —
Net proceeds from disposal of B BB A R AT IE
subsidiaries R 36(d) 262,730 346,347
Net proceeds from partial iR EME N B PR
disposal of a subsidiary T8 358 11,286 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of  UrBER B A RS FIE
cash acquired F B 36(e) — 2,579
Acquisition of non-controlling SIS s
interests — (27,376)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEME - BB MRE
property, plant and equipment PR 3R1E 36(g) 43,224 116,424
Net proceeds from disposal of HERBHEEEMS
non-current assets held for sale RIE 37 21,521 —
Net proceeds from disposal of HERARBERTA
financial assets at fair value BnsemEE
through profit or loss FrS 3R 14,576 14,030
Purchase of financial assets at fair ~ BEZ AR EEFAER
value through profit or loss ZEmMEE (32,156) —
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLESREE
financial assets (235,641) —
Dividends received from joint BEEREL
ventures 8N 14,336 —
Settlement of prior year disposal Y [el i@ 7 B L A )
consideration receivable 2 HE 277,726 —
Contributions by non-controlling ESuill et
interests H&E 4,969 —
Loan to a third party TRIE=ZFZER — (1,340,825)
Receipts of government grants BT 47 B 2 W5k 3,975 5,863
Interest received B UFE 14,199 7,963
Net cash used in investing REZTEBHFAZ
activities REFH (1,946,742) (2,834,851)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F 12 A3 BIEFE

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Cash flows from financing REMETEHZ
activities REnE
Proceeds from issuance of RELBRAERIE
ordinary shares — 378,400
Net proceeds from exercise of TR BB AR PR FRIA
share options FEE — 14,342
Payment for share repurchase for 1D 5E 5 2 B E
cancellation (33,298) —
Payment for share award scheme f“i%%ﬁ]”ri\JZQHj (82,699) —
Proceeds from borrowings {ﬁ*hﬁﬁ?%*ﬁ\ 2,573,480 2,547,937
Repayment of borrowings BEEX (295,228) (1,062,618)
Dividends paid to owners of the IRBRETATHEB A
Company (89,462) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling SEHHQ LTI
interests FEZS —_ (755)
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ (154,649) (74,157)
Net cash generated from MELZBMELEZRS
financing activities HE 1,918,144 1,803,149
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REFBESEEEHEM
and cash equivalents S OB ) BEE 895,316 (737,640)
Cash and cash equivalents at FcHEekBEeSE
beginning of the year EH 1,105,341 1,850,209
Exchange loss on cash and cash RekREEFMBEEHZ
equivalents ERESTE (95,526) (7,228)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZ2ESRBELEE
end of the year HE 1,905,131 1,105,341
Analysis of balances of cash and BRERBESEEEE &k
cash equivalents 2R
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTEE G 26 1,905,131 1,105,341

The notes on pages 73 to 266 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Concord New Energy Group Limited (Formerly known
as China WindPower Group Limited) (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Suite 3901, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty,
Hong Kong.

On 9 February 2015, a Special General Meeting
("SGM") was held by the Company which the English
name of the Company was approved to be changed
from “China WindPower Group Limited” to “Concord
New Energy Group Limited” and the adoption of “ %
BFEREBMARADTE " replacing " FEEELEA
[R’AA]" as the Chinese name of the Company and

become effective on 9 February 2015.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities of engineering, procurement,
construction and equipment manufacturing, power
plant operation and maintenance, and investment in

power plants.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 March 2016.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B R M

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Int”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

There are no new and amended standards
that are effective for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2015 that would be expected to

have a material impact on the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to
presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial
statements.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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TEEHBRBEE)

2.1

RBLEE(F)

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

76 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

New standards and interpretation not

yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments

to standards and interpretation which
have been issued by the HKICPA as of

31 December 2015 may have impact to

the Group in future years but are not yet

effective for the year ended 31 December

2015 and have not been early adopted in

these financial statements:

HKAS1T (Amendment)
BERQERE 15 (BETA)

HKAS 16 (Amendment) and
HKAS 38 (Amendment)

BB ERE 165 (BFTA)
REEGTERISE 385
(BIA)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

BEGERIE 275K (BRI R)

HKFRS 9 (2014
BRI HREERE 95 (2014)

Disclosure Initiative

BT E

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

TEEHBRBEE)

21 REEBEE)

(c)

WEREHZAIRREZER

Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements

B RATERERA

Financial Instruments

cRTH

EEEA RN 2 H 5T ER K
2B

LATR2015F 12318 %
BT AGE BB ZHE]
AR ERZEFT RERER]
BRERRFEHAEEES
& EREE2015F12
ANMBLEFERARERR
WA I E I mRIER K
o

Applicable accounting
period to the Group
BERARAEEZ

S HE

1 January 2016
201651 H1H

1 January 2016

201651 A1 A

1 January 2016

2016 5F1 A1 A

1 January 2018
201851 A1 H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TEEHBEBEE)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBEEE)

(c) New standards and interpretation not (c) FTEBAREMZEATERR

yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 10 (Amendment) and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of

(Amendment) Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

EAMBRERAFE10REFTA) REFRABFELQRK

REEGTERE 285 (BFTK) RECEMZEEHNEITE

HKFRS 10 (Amendment), Investment Entities: Applying

HKFRS 12 (Amendment) the Consolidation Exception

and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BEE(E)

Applicable accounting
period to the Group
BRAREAEEZ
el

1 January 2016

2016F1A1H

1 January 2016

BEEMBRESEANFE10FERTA) - BFRRENLEE  BRAMZ 2016F1 A1 H
BEMBRELRE 12K(BTAER)  BIIMRE
REBGHERE 285 (BFIA)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 1 January 2016
in Joint Operations
ERUBRERNENRETAR) KEARLEREZGHE 2016F1 A1 H

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

EREUBREERE 145 EBRETELEREP

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

ERETBREERE 155 HENEFARZMAER

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

ERUBREERN(BRIA) FEMGE2012-2014 B

The Group has commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new, amended
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether they would
have a significant impact on its results of

operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEeikE#E4s)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation 2.2 SftRE

78

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their

fair values at the acquisition date.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement

are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income
statement (Note 2.6).

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment (Note 2.8). The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.

Associates and joint ventures (“JVs")

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. JVs are joint arrangement
whereby the venture partners that have
joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Investments in associates and JVs are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after

the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B R M

2.

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates and joint ventures (“JVs")

(Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ and
JVs' post-acquisition profits or losses are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in
associates or JVs equal or exceed its
interests in the associates or JVs, including
any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associates or JVs.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in the
associates or JVs are impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associates or
JVs and their carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of results of
associates/JVs' in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

TEEHBRBEE)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 AHHRB(E)

(b) Associates and joint ventures (“JVs”) (b) BELNFGREELE(EE

(Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between
the Group and its associates or JVs are
recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associates or
JVs. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates and
JVs have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. Gains or losses on
dilution of equity interest in associates
and JVs are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in associates and JVs are stated
at cost less impairment (Note 2.8). The
results of associates and JVs are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2.

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal/partial disposal

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

When the Group receives a consideration
from another venture partner as a
compensation for the Group to contribute
its non-monetary assets/business to a JV,
the difference between the fair value of
consideration received from the venture
partner and the portion of carrying
amount of non-monetary assets/business
contributed attributable to equity interests
of the other venture partner is recognised
as a gain or loss in the consolidated
income statement. The unrealised gains
or losses on non-monetary assets/business
contributed to JVs are eliminated against

the investment under the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal/partial disposal (Continued)

If the Group’s ownership interest in a joint
venture is reduced, but the investment
continues to be a joint venture, the
Group shall reclassify to profit or loss
only a proportionate amount of the gain
or loss previously recognised in other

comprehensive income.

If the ownership of interest in a joint
venture, which is accounted for under
the equity method, is reduced, and the
investment becomes an associate which
continues to be accounted for under the
equity method, the Group shall reclassify to
profit or loss only a proportionate amount
of the gain or loss previously recognised in

other comprehensive income.

If the ownership of interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2,

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal/partial disposal (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control
or significant influence over an entity,
any retained interest in the entity is
re-measured to its fair value at the
date when the control and significant
influence is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. As a result, the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified

as the executive directors that makes strategic

decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IEeNKZHME4S)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation 2.4 HEEmE
(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) TEERZZEH
ltems included in the financial statements AEBEEERMGHRER
of each of the Group’s entities are EZEHENEEMAZEE
measured using Renminbi (“RMB"), LEREZEE(NEE
the currency of the primary economic B —ARBEARYE)E
environment in which the entity operates - HRARBEEBH A
(“the functional currency”). As the RGFTE#IR ET - WESE
Company is listed on the Main Board of the RBEBRAATRIEH
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the directors EERRBIZ 2V EREREG
consider that it will be more appropriate to e REEEUBHmMRIE
adopt Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") as the TTEF °
Group’s and the Company’s presentation
currency. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS.
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XBR#EZE

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within ‘other
gain, net’ in the consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘other income’ and
‘finance cost’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the

income statement within ‘other gain, net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified
as available for sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all

the group entities (none of which has the

currency of a hyperinflationary economy)

that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of

the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2,

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from translation of inter-company
loan balances between group entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under ‘exchange
reserve’ when such loans form part of the
Group’s net investments in foreign entities.
When such loans are repaid, the related
exchange gains or losses are reclassified to

the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. ITEEeNHRERBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

24 HNEBRE(E)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) EHNEBEZEEFHOEE

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and

partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over
a JV that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in
equity under ‘exchange reserve’ in respect
of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement as a

part of gain or loss of disposal.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in the consolidated
income statement. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates or JVs
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to the
consolidated income statement as a part of

gain or loss of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IEeNKZHME4£)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 YFE - BEREE

92

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged in
the consolidated income statement during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which
includes borrowing costs incurred to finance the
construction, and is proportionally attributed to

qualifying assets.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:
Buildings 20 to 25 years

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of useful lives

and lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 20 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 YFE - BERSZEE)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end

of each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale
is considered highly probable. The non-current
assets are stated at the lower of carrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, associates and JVs and
represents the excess consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates or JVs is included
in interests in associates or JVs and is
tested for impairment as part of the overall

balances.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value
of goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
Gains or losses on disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing,

goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit
or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in business
combination are identified and recognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of intangible assets and their
fair values can be measured reliably. Such
intangible assets are recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The other
intangible assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate
the costs over their estimated useful lives

of 20 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IE@NKZHE4)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights 27 tTiHERTHERE

96

2.8

The leasehold land and land use rights have
finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the costs of land use rights over the

lease terms.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

associates, Jvs and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable operation segments (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment

at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, JVs and non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investments in the associates and joint
ventures are impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associates and joint ventures and their
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of results of associates’ and
‘share of results of joint ventures’ accounted for

using equity method’ in the income statement.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.
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mEMBRERME
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Assets
in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise trade and bill receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts
due from associates and JVs, loan to a
JV and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheets (Notes 2.13
and 2.14).

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

2.

TEEHBRBEE)

29 SREEE)

(a)

(b)

BARBEFABGZZZH
gE

BARBEAAERZZER
BERFBAEEZERE
E-HEMEEDTEBA
UHEEHALE - BID8E
RULER - R Z B ER
ERHENRBEARNGE T
DRARDEE  BAINER
RIERBDEE -

B REWS

ERkERRBEREBERE
5% A 8 7E 15 3R e 3 A A E BB
MBREZIETELESRHE
E - BRREWHIET AR
BEE  BKIFNHHERLE
BRH%12MEA - ADEAE
MENEE - BERREWKIA
PIERAEEABRAZE
WEZEXR - Re K EMAE
WHIE - Bl E R A RAE
ERERIE AECEZE
P BHeRkBESFEEE (W
F£2.13%2.14) -

BEHEREEARD A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the end of the

reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss categories
are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains, net’ in the

period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustment recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income

statement as ‘other gains, net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

TEEHBRBEE)
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2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) FIBHER

(d) Financial guarantee

MBEREO/ETAAR

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts

that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on
behalf of JVs to secure loans.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised
in the financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. The fair
value of a financial guarantee at the time
of signature is zero because all guarantees
are agreed on arm'’s length terms, and the
value of the premium agreed corresponds
to the value of the guarantee obligation.
No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the company’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18, and the
best estimate of the amount required
to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of
similar transactions and history of past
losses, supplemented by management’s
judgement. The fee income earned is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
life of the guarantee. Any increase in the
liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated income statement within
other operating expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Financial guarantee (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group assesses at each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Impairment testing of trade receivables
is described in Note 2.10.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

TEEHBRBEE)
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2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

UBHEAE SRz EE (&)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (a)

(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.

Management determines the provision
for impairment of receivables. This
estimate is based on the credit history
of its receivables and the current market
condition. Management reassesses the

provision at each reporting date.

Significant judgement is exercised on
the assessment of the collectability of
receivables. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range
of factors such as results of follow-up
procedures performed by sales personnel,
customer payment trends including
subsequent payments and customers’
financial position. If the financial conditions
of the customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional

allowances may be required.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

(Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s

fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below
its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income

statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEeikE#E4s)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Inventories 2.11 8

106

2.12

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
specific identification of their individual costs.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Construction contracts

A construction contract is defined by HKAS11
as a contract specifically negotiated for the
construction of an asset. The accounting policy

for contract revenue is set out in Note 2.22.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably and it is probable that
the contract will be profitable, contract revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the stage of completion. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the reporting date. When it is probable that
total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of
a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are

likely to be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

TEEHBRBEE)

212 BERR(E)

2.12 Construction contracts (Continued)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably

measured.

The Group uses the percentage of completion
method to determine the appropriate amount
to recognise in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to the
percentage of surveys of work performed for
individual contract up to the reporting date.
Costs incurred in the year in connection with
future activity on a contract are excluded from
contract costs in determining the stage of

completion.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset of a liability. A
contract represents an asset where costs incurred
plus recognised profits exceed progress billings
and a contract represents a liability where the

opposite is the case.

The Group presents as an asset the gross
amount due from customers (including associates
and JVs) for contract work for all contracts in
progress for which costs incurred plus recognised
profits exceed progress billings. Progress billings
not yet paid by customers and retention are

included in “trade and bill receivables’.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. I E@iREHE 2)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Construction contracts (Continued) 2,12 BEERE)

108

2.13

2.14

The Group presents as a liability the gross
amount due to customers (including associates
and JVs) for contract work for all contracts in
progress for which progress billings exceed costs

incurred plus recognised profits.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Other receivables mainly represent amounts due
from the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
local government authority in relation to the
amounts paid to guarantee the construction
projects of power plants. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade, bill and other receivables and amounts
due from subsidiaries, associates and JVs are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impairment.
Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash

and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where the Company purchases the company’s
equity share capital for cancellation, the
consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to

owners of the Company.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
subsidiaries, associates and JVs are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

2.

110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost,
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method except for borrowing

costs capitalised for qualifying assets (Note 2.5).

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over

the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and JVs operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

2.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill and
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and JVs,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. ITEEeNHRERBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.19 ENIRIEEREH(Z)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised FEFREHBEENRERTEES
on temporary differences arising from the 2EREEREMES - HBKIES
elimination of unrealised gains on transactions EAnAzEETEREITHE -

between subsidiaries of the Group. They are
amortised at a rate according to depreciation

rate of assets retained within the Group.

Investment tax credits are tax benefits received WEBMBHARERKREERIIH
only for investment in specific assets. The tax BEE - HREEERBELEBTH
benefit is recognised separately from related BB EE D BIER - GRS
assets as deferred government grant and = 2% B RA & EE TR R0 A SR PR HAR
amortised over the estimated useful lives of BEiH -

the related assets in the consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

114

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are recognised within ‘employee
benefit expense’ in the consolidated
income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF
scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of
the payroll costs to the central pension
schemes. The contributions are recognised
within ‘employee benefit expense’ in the
consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (shares and options,
respectively) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any service and non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period). Forfeiture occurs
when either a service or a non-market

vesting condition is not met.

Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of shares
and options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At each reporting date, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of awarded shares and options that
are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2,

116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the awarded shares are vested
the related cost of the vested shares is
released from the employee share-based
compensation reserve to eliminate the
related amount of shares held for the

Share Award Scheme.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share

capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to interests
in subsidiaries undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent

entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the

reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

2.

TEEHBRBEE)

2.20 EERFEZ)

(c)

(d)

BT ERAEZ

BIsFHRE=mTtRAZET
EHTIRER ARIEMR
fREmES 2 FRMEE
& REBEEEDEEDE
1o

BT 2B ERER
RAT T ERERR -

2B
AEERBECHERAENHA
X AREMBARERK

KEBEMEEEHRER
B AIMERESR -

2015&% 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEeikE#E4s)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Provisions 2.21 &%

118

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

TEEHBRBEE)

2.22 Revenue recognition 2.22 RARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of discounts and value-added tax and after
eliminating sales within the Group. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity, and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities as described

below.

(i)  Sales of goods are recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyers and
the goods are accepted by the customers
and collectability of the related receivables

is reasonably assured.

(i)  Sales of services are recognised in the
accounting period in which the services
are rendered, by reference to the stage of
completion of the specific transaction and
assessed on the basis of actual services
provided as a proportion of the total

service to be provided.

(iii) Contract revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage
of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of surveys of
work performed (Note 2.12).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. I E@iRZHE 2)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 WARR(E)

120

2.23

(iv) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis taking into account the
principal outstanding and the effective
interest rate applicable. Dividend income is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.

(v) Dealings in securities and sale of
investments are recognised on the
transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are exchanged or on the
settlement dates when the securities are
delivered.

(vi) Electricity income is recognised when

electricity is generated and transmitted.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the

Group will comply with all conditions attached.

Government grant relating to land use rights
and property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grant and are credited to the consolidated
income statement within ‘other income’ on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
in the

consolidated income statement over the period

and recognised within ‘other income’

necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEeikEfE4s)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Leases 2.24 HHE

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and the

present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement
is, or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at inception date of whether
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the

arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. IE@NKZHE4L)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Dividend distribution 2.25 REDE
Dividend distribution to the Company’'s R B R A BAFE S BL 48 2 FIAR

122

2.26

shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s owners or directors, where

appropriate.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. ;I\j'i’%]ﬁllﬁﬁ
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 BEMEE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety
of financial risks. The management periodically
analyses and reviews measures to manage
its exposure to market risk (including foreign
currency risk and cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding its risk management and has
not used any derivatives or other instruments for
hedging purposes.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s financial
instruments mainly consisted of trade and bill
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, amounts due from/to associates, amounts
due from/to JVs, loans from/to a JV, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and bill payables, other
payables and accruals and borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in Note
21.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Foreign exchange
risk arises from monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.

The Group operates mainly in the
PRC, the United States of America
(“the US”) and Hong Kong. Majority
of revenues and cost of construction
and inventories are denominated
in RMB, same as the functional
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIEERKE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEE)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HHEEE(E)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () SMERER (&)

124

As at 31 December 2015 and
2014, certain bank balances, loan
to a JV, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, other payables
and accruals and a borrowing are
denominated in United States dollars
("US$") and hence exposed to
foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014,
certain cash and bank balances,
deposits and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and other payables and
accruals are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and hence
exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Details of the Group’s loan to a JV,
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, bank
balances, other payables and accruals
and borrowings denominated in
foreign currencies are disclosed in
Notes 19, 24, 25, 26, 29 and 30,

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIEERKE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEE)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HHEEE(E)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () SMERER (&)

As at 31 December 2015, if US$
had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables
held constant, the profit for the
year and equity would increase/
decrease by HK$1,144,000 (2014:
HK$4,065,000), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of US$ denominated trade
and other receivables, loan to a JV,
bank balances, other payables and a

borrowing.

As at 31 December 2015, if HK$
had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against RMB with all other variable
held constant, the profit for the
year and equity would increase/
decrease by HK$4,538,000 (2014:
HK$9,835,000), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of HK$ denominated other
receivables, bank balances and other
payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cashflow and fair value interest rate
risk

Cashflow interest rate risk is the risk
that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate as it is issued at fixed

interest rates.

The Group’s cashflow interest rate
risk arises from bank balances, loan
to a JV, loans to third parties and
borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to
cashflow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by bank balances held
at variable rates.

The interest rate profile of the
Group’'s bank balances and
borrowings are disclosed in Notes 26
and 30 respectively. The cash deposits
placed with banks generate interest

at the prevailing market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIEERKE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEE)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HHEEE(E)
(i) Cashflow and fair value interest rate (i) Bz mERIAIEEF
risk (Continued) KE (&)
If interest rates had been 50 basis fitd ¥ & £ F+ T B&E50
points higher/lower and all other &2 - mArAE HAM
variables were held constant, DEESTE  BIAE
the Group’s profit for the year B 2 e F) K rE am A RL
and equity would decrease/ /# 116,613,0008 JT
increase by HK$6,613,000 (2014: (2014 : 1,060,000 %
HK$1,060,000). This is mainly TT) e W EBERRA
attributable to the Group's exposure SEGHF SRITER
to interest income/expenses on R AB AR 2 FIE @
floating rate bank balances and PN o
borrowings.
(b) Credit risk (b) EEERE
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit HRXS5HEFHAREEBITEML

risk which will cause a financial loss to

the Group due to failure to discharge an

obligation by the counterparties is arising

from the carrying amount of the respective

recognised financial assets as stated in

the respective notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

3.

128

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Both trade and bill receivables and
amounts due from associates and JVs arise
during the course of the Group’s business
operations and are trade in nature. For
trade receivables, the management of the
Group limit credit risk by assessing the
credit quality of the customer, perform
ongoing credit evaluation taking into
account its financial position, past trade
experience and other factors. For the
amounts due from associates and JVs, the
Group has significant influence or joint
operational control over its associates and
JVs and their financial positions with other
ventures are regularly monitored in order
to minimise the credit risk associated with
receivables due from associates and JVs.
The Group has policies in place to review
the recoverability of trade receivables and
amounts due from associates and JVs on
an ongoing basis and assess the adequacy

of provision for impairment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
therefore represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset as stated
in the consolidated and company balance

sheets.

In addition, the Group also provides
certain guarantee for a JV's borrowing,
the maximum credit risk relating to the

guarantee is disclosed in Note 38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIREKE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEE)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international

credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash reserves and banking facilities deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows and
match maturity profiles of financial assets

and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has
available unutilised bank and other loans
facilities of approximately HK$1,360,524,000
(2014: HK$967,394,000).

The table below analyses the financial
liabilities of the Group and the Company
into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table were the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on earliest date
on which the Group can be required to
pay. Balances due within twelve months
approximate their carrying balances, as the

impact of discounting was not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIRERKRE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () HEBEEREE)
As at 31 December 2015 M2015F12A31H
Less than 3-6 6-12 1-2 over
3 months months months years 2 years
SRR3R 367 612087 128 2EHL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET Tz Tz FiEx
Trade and bill payables [NEGES$ES 3,965,835 - - - -
Other payables and accruals H{ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁlﬁ)}ﬁgﬁﬁlﬁi 497,856 - - - -
Amounts due to JVs ENEELERT 84,636 — — — —

Borrowings (excluding finance & (F 8 E%ﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬁ

lease liabilities) af) 46,945 122,966 298,093 337,997 2,503,802
Finance lease liabilities BEMEAR 31,317 41,372 94,052 182,862 1,095,795
Loans from a joint venture BRELEER - — 48,342 43,234 -
Financial guarantee (Note 38)  BTHEER (M 38) 530,302 64,893 115946 414,677 1,271,273
As at 31 December 2014 M2014%F 12 A31H

Less than 3-6 6-12 1-2 Over
3 months months months years 2 years

PR3{ER 3-6fA  6-121HA 128 2EME
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Trade and bill payables ERNESEAREE 2,355,188 — — — —
Other payables and accruals L ERTH E&Eﬁ 311,487 — — — —
Amounts due to JVs EREECENE 47,679 - — — —

Borrowings (excluding finance {5 (TREREHE

lease liabilities) Af) 66,698 48,806 273,483 129570 867,406
Finance lease liabilities BEMERE 9,068 8,871 33,085 93,761 590,446
Loans from a joint venture ABMEVET — - — — 155,833
Financial guarantee (Note 38)  BIRER(Hit 38) 38,922 24,259 86,953 235835 533,205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIREKRE)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BEXERER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher share holder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total capital. Total capital

is calculated as equity plus borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERKE)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EXEKRERE)

The Group’s total borrowings and total capital 20154 K 20149128318

positions as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 7N 82 B {8 FRAA 5E K A A R EE AR S a0

were as follows: ™
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Total borrowings fERARRE 3,807,076 1,716,242

Total equity REmAARE 5,755,575 5,755,621

Total capital EARBE 9,562,651 7,471,863

Gearing ratio BERAGHE 40% 23%

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAREEMS

The table below analyses financial instruments TRAMEED TR AR EETK

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The ZEMTHE - TRERATHOT :

different levels have been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . HRAEESBEETRMS
markets for identical assets or liabilities ZHREBOREAR)(EI1RE) -
(level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included e BRTFBIEFEEBEZMRE
within level 1 that are observable for the Gh ZEBEESHBEZATER
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as AR - T REE(BIfI
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from EBR)SEE(AREaER)
prices) (level 2). HIR(E2E) -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o EENBBVIHFKEAEE
based on observable market data (that is, MHEE 2 8 AZUR (B A]
unobservable inputs) (level 3). BIRmABE)(E3E) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIREKE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREBEEMGEE)

The following table presents the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities that are measured

at fair value at 31 December 2015.

TXREHEHZET2015F12A31H
HFEUARREBENEZEREE
RefE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1B F2E £3E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2015 R2015512A31H
Financial assets at fairvalue — RAL EBEFAER
through profit or loss LEMEE
(Note 25) (Hizt25) 18,292 — — 18,292
Available-for-sale financial ARHESHEE
assets (Note 22) (Hizt22) 26,451 — 3,672 30,123
As at 31 December 2014 R2014512A31H
Financial assets at fair value DA {EFFABZE
through profit or loss LEMEE
(Note 25) (Hst25) - - - -
Available-for-sale financial AHRHESHEE
assets (Note 22) (B15£22) — — 697 697

There were no transfers between level 1 and 3
during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. Financial
instruments valued with reference to the quoted
market price are included in level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BREKE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREBEEMGEE)

134

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value

financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial

instruments.

Note that the fair value estimates on the unlisted
equity securities under the available-for-sale

financial assets are included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIREKE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREBEEMGEE)
The following table presents the changes in level TRE2WHZE2015F K20144F
3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 12ANBIEFEREIBIA Z#
2015 and 2014. D)
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Opening balance HARD A5 6 697 —
Additions it 3,138 697
Exchange differences fEH =58 (163) —
Closing balance HAR 84 3,672 697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BEERBRE)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 3.4 EHSRESEMNMSRERE
liabilities
(a) Financial assets (a) LHEE
TremEEERE  RAF
HEEREMBEUBE -

The following financial assets are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

Related amounts not set off in the balance sheet

TEEERBRTENZABER
Gross Net
amounts of amounts

Gross  recognised  of financial

amounts of financial assets
recognised liabilities  presented Cash
financial set off in the in the balance collateral
assets balance sheet sheet received  Net amount
TEESER HEERER
RUERz  RAREZ
TER SRHEE SREEZ
SHEE ] BE  UWREER FEE

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

136

As at 31 December 2015

Trade receivables and tariff
adjustment receivables

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from associates

Total

As at 31 December 2014

Trade receivables and tariff
adjustment receivables

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from associates

Total

R2015512 4318
R B HEN RN
( HHEW\
A ELENE
A E AT

&t

R2014512 4318

B S E RN

EEIER
feliaEt® %
FElBE 2RI
@it

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

1,601,588 (54,556) 1,547,032 - 1,547,032
1,233,999 (86,052) 1,147,947 - 1,147,947
181,203 (8,110) 173,093 - 173,093
3,016,790 (148,718) 2,868,072 - 2,868,072
668,825 (134,659) 534,166 - 534,166
1,292,600 (125,081) 1,167,519 - 1,167,519
118,114 (32,122) 85,992 - 85,992
2,079,539 (291,862) 1,787,677 — 1,787,677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BEERBRE)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

34 BHEREENSRAGEE)

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued) (b) Z£HEREE)
THemaEEE  KAF
to offsetting, enforceable master netting FR A E 0 E MR E -

arrangements and similar agreements.

The following financial liabilities are subject

Related amounts not set off in the balance sheet

TEAERERPHENZARERN

Gross
amounts of Net amounts
Gross  recognised  of financial
amounts of financial liabilities
recognised assets set off presented in Cash
financial in the balance  the balance collateral
liabilities sheet sheet received  Net amount
TEEERER HEESER
TURAZ  RARERZ
TR SREE SREEZ
SREE aE BE  KRSHER AR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEr FEr FEr FET
As at 31 December 2015 R2015%12 A31A
Trade payables EREZER 2,964,956 (54,556) 2,910,400 - 2,910,400
Amounts due to joint ventures EfAECETE 309,664 (86,052) 223,612 - 223,612
Amounts due to associates ERBE AR 10,608 (8,110 2,498 — 2,498
Total it 3,285,228 (148,718) 3,136,510 - 3,136,510
As at 31 December 2014 M2014512 4318
Trade payables EREZER 2,189,561 (244,129) 1,945,432 — 1,945,432
Receipt in advance BUYER 174,258 (76,720) 97,538 — 97,538
Amounts due to joint ventures EfAECETE 312,357 (125,081) 187,276 — 187,276
Amounts due to associates ERBEARRE 61,161 (32,122) 29,039 — 29,039
Total st 2,737,337 (478,052) 2,259,285 - 2,259,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

3.

138

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued)

For the financial assets and liabilities
subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar arrangements
above, each agreement between the
Group and the counterparty allows for net
settlement of the relevant financial assets
and liabilities when both elect to settle
on a net basis. In the absence of such an
election, financial assets and liabilities will
be settled on a gross basis, however, each
party to the master netting agreement or
similar agreement will have the option to
settle all such amounts on a net basis in

the event of default of the other party.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of
accounting principles, as well as in making estimates
and assumptions. The following is a review of the
significant accounting policies that are impacted by
judgements and uncertainties and for which different
amounts may be reported under a different set of

conditions or using different assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage of completion
method in accounting for contract revenue
from the individual contract of construction
works and revenue from fixed-price contracts to
deliver services to customers. The percentage of
completion of construction works is determined
by reference to the percentage of surveys
of work performed for individual contract at
the reporting date. Because of the nature of
activities undertaken in construction contracts,
the date at which the contract activity is
entered into and the date when the activity is
completed usually fall into different accounting
periods. The Group regularly reviews and revises
the estimation of both contract revenue and
contract cost in the budget prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
In addition, use of the percentage of completion
method for service revenue required the Group
to estimate the service performed to date as a
proportion of the total services to be performed.
The Group regularly reviews and revises the
estimation of the total services to be performed

during the services rendering.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

4.

140

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions, including Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to
identify indications that the following assets
which are significant to the Group and/or the
Company may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— goodwill and other intangible asset;

— interests in subsidiaries, associates and JVs;

— inventories;
— available-for-sale financial assets; and

— trade and other receivables
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill that has indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

The sources utilised to identify indications
of impairment are often subjective in nature
and the Group is required to use judgement
in applying such information to its business.
The Group’s interpretation of this information
has a direct impact on whether an impairment
assessment is performed as at any given

reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

4.

142

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, such
information is further subject to an exercise
that requires the Group or the Company to
estimate the recoverable amount, representing
the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost
to sell or its value in use. Depending on the
Group’s or the Company’s assessment of the
overall materiality of the asset under review and
complexity of deriving reasonable estimates of
the recoverable amount, the Group may perform
such assessment utilising internal resources or
the Group or the Company may engage external
advisors to counsel the Group or the Company
in making this assessment. Regardless of the
resources utilised, the Group or the Company
is required to make many assumptions to make
this assessment, including the utilisation of
such asset, the cash flows to be generated,
appropriate market discount rates and the
projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could
result in a material change to future estimates of

the recoverable amount of any asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment with similar nature and
function. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in the Group’s operations including
any future relocation or renovation of the
Group’s facilities. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group has entered into several sales
and leaseback transactions during the year.
Management assessed whether the sales and
leaseback transactions should be accounted
for as a secured borrowing when: the Group
retains all the risks and rewards incident to
ownership of an underlying asset and enjoys
substantially the same rights to its use as before
the arrangement. An option is included on terms

that make its exercise almost certain.

The Group’s interpretations on whether the
lessee conveys a right to use of the underlying
assets in the transactions have a direct impact on
whether the transactions should be accounted
for using present value of the minimum lease

payment or at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. o¥EER
(a) Business segments (a) %BoHE

144

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the internal reports reviewed
and used by executive directors for strategic

decision making.

The executive directors consider the business
from a product and service perspective. The
Group has reported on three operating segments

as follows:

° Engineering, procurement, construction
and equipment manufacturing — providing
technical and consultancy services, securing
power resources in renewable energy
industry, undertaking electrical engineering
and construction of power plant projects,
providing the funding in a form of sale and
leaseback arrangement and manufacturing
of tower tube and gear box equipment for

power business;

o Power plant operation and maintenance
— providing operation and maintenance

services to power plants; and

o Investment in power plants — investing in
power plants.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure
of adjusted earnings before interest and income
tax. This measurement basis excludes the effects
of non-recurring income and expenditure from

the operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2EERE)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) ¥BHEE)

Segment assets comprise goodwill, interests DEEEE &%éﬁ“*ﬁﬁﬁz%;@‘
in associates, interests in and advances to JVs, REERE 2R REEREL
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land EmRER - WE - BEREE
and land use rights, other intangible asset, THE T o b fE M - Efh
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets BE - THEESMEE - BAA
at fair value through profit or loss, inventories, BEFABZZEMEE  FTE
receivables and cash and cash equivalents which FEWERSR - MERE RIS FEIA
are related to the segments. g -
Segment assets included goodwill amounted D EEPE S /90,477,000

to HK$90,477,000 (2014: HK$96,087,000),
HK$72,438,000 (2014: HK$76,929,000) and
HK$1,106,931,000 (2014: HK$1,175,560,000)
allocated to the "engineering, procurement,
construction and equipment manufacturing”
segment, “power plant operation and
maintenance” segment and “investment in
power plants” segment, respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the
non-current assets held for sale (2014:
HK$23,643,000) was included in
power plants” segment.

“investment in

Segment liabilities comprise payables, loans,
borrowings, current income tax liabilities and
deferred government grants which are related to

the segments.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted
at cost or with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
Sales to external customers included
revenue from sales of goods amounted to
HK$3,835,373,000 (2014: HK$2,696,896,000),
revenue from construction service amounted
to HK$360,517,000 (2014: HK$588,672,000)
and revenue from operation and maintenance,
consultancy and design services amounted to
HK$125,412,000 (2014: HK$264,071,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2EERE)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) ¥¥oEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE2015F 1231 HILFE
Engineering, Power
procurement, plant
construction operation Investment
and equipment and in power
manufacturing  maintenance plants Total
Hit
BRI EHET
ES 2 RéE EERE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FE7 FE7 FE7
Seqment revenue HEUA
Inter-segment sales EEHEREE 552,124 12,643 (564,767) -
Sales to external customers ETHINER 3,677,684 103,852 539,766 4,321,302
Seqment results NEEE 12,751 21,007 376,236 610,014
Other gains, net Aok 58 - - 34,617 34,617
Unallocated income AFARZBA 41,359
Unallocated expenses MAREX (33,456)
Finance income HHHA 10,509 15 1,401 11,925
Finance costs BBRA (12,363) - (103,112) (115,475)
Profit before income tax RAEHATE 548,984
Income tax expense FERRA (42,570) (13333) 13,302 (42,601)
Profit for the year TEERT 506,383
Segment assets NERE 3,966,569 426,971 9,982,903 14,376,443
Unallocated assets APAMEE 43,882
Total assets EEBE 14,420,325
Segment iabiles SRafE (4,303,238) (19603) (4335513  (8,658,350)
Unallocated liabilities ikl wA-L (6,396)
Total liabiities BEEE (8,664,750)
Other segment information EfAEEH
Unallocated Total
S b )
Additions to non-current assets (other than FRHEEEMERIAR
finandial instruments and deferred tax assets)  EERBEERI) (312) 2,686 2,553,931 - 2,556,305
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BERRE T E 28,508 4,555 127,883 20 160,966
Amortisation of other intangible asset, AR BELH
leasehold land and land use rights TR A 5,774 - 11,057 396 17,221
(Gain)loss on disposal of property, HEETEE (WE)/ BB
plant and equipment (4,067) 1 2,751 - (1,309)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HEREREZFRDEER
held for sale - - (3,244) - (3,244)
Share-based compensation NRHBREZ AR 5,464 256 1154 8,969 15,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o8EERE)
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) EXIEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BZ2014F 12531 HIFEE
Engineering,
procurement, Power
construction  plant operation Investment
and equipment and in power
manufacturing maintenance plants Total
Eal
BT EHE
RitEge it ERRE st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT AT FEr FEr
Seqment revenue HEUA
Inter-seqment sales SEABRRE 76,117 (9.612) (66,505) -
Sales to external customers EFHINEE 3,187,217 123,326 239,096 3,549,639
Segment results PR 107,262 42,295 175,514 325,071
Other gains, net Efohs 78 (7,.257) - 159,714 152,457
Unallocated income AFARZKBA 31,450
Unallocated expenses ESIA 5T (35,953)
Finance income BRI 1836 50 6,077 7,963
Finance costs BB (4,446) (16) (84,629) (89,091)
Profit before income tax RAEHATET 391,897
Income tax expense EHAR (61,187) (71917) (4,682) (73,786)
Profit for the year REFEH 318,111
Segment assets HREE 2,818,969 370,690 7,524,537 10,714,196
Unallocated assets ARl EE 75,895
Total assets BEBE 10,790,091
Seqment liabilities PEEE (3,068,053) (17509 (1,889.278)  (4,974,840)
Unallocated liabilties S -1 (59,630)
Total liabilties BRER (5,034,470)
Other segment information EfAEER
Unallocated Total
(S 2
Additions to non-current assets (other than FRHEE EMSRIARELH
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) ~ BEER) 1758 1,998 1,884,29 29 1,888,081
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BER &2 34,362 4353 71,204 2 109,939
Amortisation of other intangible asset, leasehold £t EFAE - BELH -
land and land use rights THERE SN 5,866 - 168 403 6,437
Lossf(gain) on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEEFEE2EE/ ()
equipment 1,074 (15) (28,799) - (27,740)
Share-based compensation NRIABEE [ 708 157 1,071 1,162 3,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

5.

148

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Geographical segments

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. None
of its revenue was generated from external
customers in Bermuda, and no non-current

assets are located in Bermuda.

Management considers the geographical
segments with revenue derived from different
locations, which determined by the country in
which the customer is operated. The Group’s
engineering, procurement, construction and
equipment manufacturing and power plant
operation maintenance activities are operated
in the Peoples’ Republic of China (“the PRC"),
while investment in power plants is operated in
the PRC and the United States of America (“the
US”). There are no sales between geographical
segments.

Total assets and capital expenditures are
allocated based on the geographical location of
the assets, mainly located in the PRC and other

locations including the US and Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2¥ERGE)
(b) Geographical segments (Continued) (b) HESEE)
The Group's revenue, total assets and capital AEE A - BERTEREARFH
expenditures by locations are analysed as SR DB
follows:
2015 2014
Total Capital Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditures Revenue assets  expenditures
KA EEEH ER%H WA BEBE AARY i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEn FEn FEr TET TET TET
The PRC B 4,283,102 12,867,427 2,501,493 3,541,071 9,024,518 1,733,906
Others Eivie 38,200 1,552,898 54,812 8,568 1,765,573 154,175
4,321,302 14,420,325 2,556,305 3,549,639 10,790,091 1,888,081
() Major customers () EEEF
Three (2014: Two) external customers contribute =%(2014 : MB)IEBREFHA
more than 10% revenue of the Group. These EFEWRB10% ° tEZIWARE
revenues are attributable to the engineering, RRET - HiE - I R RERED
procurement, construction and equipment o HEWAZELBEMMT ¢

manufacturing segment. The revenue of these

customers are summarised below:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A ZFE A 1,311,450 N/A A~ A
Customer B ZFE B 530,883 539,346
Customer C BFE C 526,858 1,007,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents consultancy, construction and
electricity income, the net invoiced value of goods

sold and other services rendered during the year.

WA R E AU A

WASRARFEE AN 28 BEHA
EEEmAERHEEMRBERF
18 °

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue WA 4,321,302 3,549,639
Other income H U A

Interest income FEW A 28,060 16,870
Subletting income KA 3,347 4,993
Government grants (Note) BT HE BN (K7 7E) 1,900 1,344
Others Hh 5,401 2,176
38,708 25,383

Note: Wizt -

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group obtained
government grants of HK$3,975,000 to promote the
development of renewable energy. As the relevant project
was still under construction, no income was recognised for

the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group obtained
government grants of HK$5,863,000 of which HK$587,000
was recognised as income from the US government to
subsidise technical development and support. The remaining

balance is deferred over a period of 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

OTHER GAINS, NET

7. EHfttlzs o FHE

An analysis of other gains, net is as follows: HEf s - FE2oMmT -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Loss on businesses or assets HESETEXEBNEE
contribution to JVs (Note 36(b)) Z BB (M5 36(b) — (13)
Gain on deregistration of a JV e RE s WE
(Note 36(f)) (K17 36(f) 426 —
Loss on disposal of an associate HERE AR ZEE
(Note 36(c)) (Htat 36(c) (38) —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEWNBAR e -
net (Note 36(d)) FFER (172 36(d)) 33,683 140,103
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries WHEMT B A Rl 2 Yas
(Note 36(e)) (Bt 36()) — 24,174
Unrealised fair value loss on financial AR BETAEBRZ
assets at fair value through profit TREEZARBRARE
or loss HE5E (14,404) —
Net realised gains on disposal of HERARBETAER
financial assets at fair value through JEREEZEER NS
profit or loss FFE 14,576 14,030
Adjustment of sales proceed of prior FEBTHELESS
year's disposal of JVs ¥ 2 FERIE 546 (11,807)
Exchange (loss)/gains, net (Note) bE X (E518), e -
R (AT (1,204) 3,765
33,585 170,252

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the exchange loss
mainly represented the currency translation difference arising

from the USD denominated bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

152

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING EEEABEZ(BSESHS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - Fek#ks 156,309 171,553
Pension costs — defined contribution  RAKE KA — FREHEKETE
plans (Note (i) (K17 (i) 23,489 23,219
Share-based compensation (Note 32)  LARR (D AEEZ 30
(Kizt 32) 15,843 3,098
195,641 197,870
Less: Employee benefit expense B BRbEERAAX
capitalised (Note (ii) (W1 (i) (49,192) (48,009)
146,449 149,861
Notes: Wi

(i)

(if)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant
forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension scheme in future years
(2014: Same).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, employee
benefit expense of HK$1,192,000 (2014:
HK$6,970,000) has been recognised as unrealised
profits or losses on transactions between the
Group and its associates and JVs under interests in
associates and JVs (Notes 18 and 19). In addition,
employee benefit expense of HK$48,000,000 (2014:
HK$41,039,000) has been capitalised as construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment (Note
14), work in progress under inventories (Note 20) and
amounts due from/(to) customers for contract work
(Note 27) as at 31 December 2015.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highe

st in the Group for the year include four (2014:

five) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis shown in Note 44.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. BRI
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interest expenses: FIEXZH
— Bank borrowings — RITER 167,202 89,091
— Guaranteed bond — ERES — 38,412
167,202 127,503
Less: Interest capitalised (Note) B M BB (M) (51,727) (21,781)
115,475 105,722
Note: B
For the year ended 31 December 2015, borrowing costs have HZE2015F12A3MBIEFE > RYE W
been capitalised at various applicable rates ranging from ENEHBZEEIRD  HATAAERE
2.9% to 6.55% per annum for qualifying assets classified EZEFBHBA29%E6.5% 2 & 8iEH
as construction in progress under property, plant and FEFRETERNME(HIEE14) ©

equipment (Note 14).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFTBHBANRF

154

Profit before income tax is stated after charging the

following:

BRETS AT G A 2 R T 558

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT TFET
Cost of construction and inventories BREAREETFENAN

sold

Cost of construction FERRRL AR 288,662 521,972

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAN 3,024,000 2,394,688

3,312,662 2,916,660
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREHEZ

equipment (Note 14) e Kz 14) 155,601 103,821
Amortisation of leasehold land and TG i Jr L Hb {5 P

land use rights (Note 15) BEAH (B 15) 10,234 5,207
Amortisation of other intangible assets — H i 124 e 3

(Note 16) (Kizt 16) 396 403

166,231 109,431
Auditor's remuneration ZE RN &

— Auditor services — AR 3,533 3,397
Business taxes and other levies BEBELEMTE 26,425 30,701
Inventory write-down (Note 20) GFEREAZE20) 10,510 —
Write-off of amounts due from a JV FEU & & 1> RRIB M

(Note 19) (Btet19) 13,848 —
Provision for other receivables (Note 24) E fth JE UK IEBI(E (5% 24) — 100
Professional fee HEEH 12,384 8,912
Travelling expenses EIRE 13,883 12,539
Employee benefit expense EBRAFZ 146,449 149,861
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BER

plant and equipment Bl (1,309) (27,740)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HEFEFEZIFRSEE

held for sale Uz (3.244) —
Others Hib 113,573 93,501

336,052 271,271

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FBHEAX
Group
TEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Current tax B HRIE
— PRC corporate income tax — FREPEREN 44,395 70,077
— Withholding tax — FBIRHIA 10,553 774
— Under/(over)-provision in prior — BEHEL (%)
years TRE S 213 (438)
55,161 70,413
Deferred tax (Note 34) EERIA (KTt 34) (12,560) 3,373
42,601 73,786
PRC corporate income tax is provided for at the rate HAENEEMBRIRME - REIDEMN
of 25% (2014: 25%) for the year of the profits for the BB DIEAREE RN Z225% (2014
PRC statutory financial reporting purpose, adjusted 25%) 2 A EGHR A - WP R
for those items which are not assessable or deductible FRigHim s BARR KT AR 2EE
for the PRC corporate income tax purpose. Certain EH AR - AREETHERARZEN
subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to preferential BES BEMFENARNEER=F
tax treatments including two years exemption BERE—F¥RIER=F2HARNRERZ
followed by three years of a 50% tax reduction and —FERRR—¥HIE -

three years exemption followed by three years of a
50% tax reduction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRME
11.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FiBHm=#)

156

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

REBABAEHRANEN 2 HIR - B
Rtz X MER 2 MEFHH XM
RELZEWHRBEZERNT

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax B P15 350 A A 548,984 391,897
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EHRMIZERZ
applicable to profits in the respective SR E 2 1R
locations (Note) (Hat) 107,224 98,594
Tax effects of associates’ & JVs' results FrE2MELE AT ALY
reported, net of tax REoHERE
(FNERTHIR) (25,017) (13,276)
Effects of tax holiday on assessable BRREE N R B2
profits of subsidiaries incorporated in KB AR Z ERF G F 2
the PRC 2 (61,631) (31,953)
Income not subject to tax EERT WA (59,260) (43,913)
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI 2 FZ
purposes 45,506 16,349
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEBERELRIBEEE
asset was recognised TIAEE 26,167 4,355
Utilisation of previously unrecognised — F|A @A RER 2 FiIAEE
tax losses (6,551) (2,585)
Temporary differences resulting from — AEEBEHAEMEL
unrealised gains on transactions BERNAETZR S
between the Group and its associates  (FRIERIELEE)Z
and JVs for which no deferred tax REBWHAEEZ
asset was recognised =R 5,397 45,879
Recognition of withholding tax in RAFE 2 TBRBIE
current year 10,553 774
Under /(over)-provision in prior years BEHML(Z)itRE 213 (438)
42,601 73,786

Note:

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year was
19.53% (2014: 25.16%). The change in weighted average
applicable tax rate was mainly caused by a change in mix
of profits earned and inter-company profits elimination in
different group companies which are subject to different tax
rates.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

Hfat

REFE R 2 INE TR %R 19.53% (2014 :
25.16%) c MAZNBEFHEME 2 SEEE
HRFBECEERZHTRAEEQFZR
R EEFEZ RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF
(a) Basic (a) EHZXK
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing FREKRBFIBEREERARD
the profit attributable to owners of the Company A AESER B AERND 29T
by the weighted average number of ordinary LB MEFHEE -

shares in issue during the year.

2015 2014

Profit attributable to owners of the — ZRRA RIEA AFE(G % A

Company (HK$'000) () 508,053 317,188
Weighted average number EEITIR G Z It

of ordinary shares in issue B TFA)

(thousands) 8,869,319 8,758,580
Basic earnings per share attributable ARAFEA AFEETR

to owners of the Company HEARZEF

(HK cents per share) (EREAN) 5.73 3.62

(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by BRESRFDERAEEBITESR
adjusting the weighted average number f& 2 It ERB LB EE
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume SHETEARGE -

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12. EREBR(E)
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #E (&)

The Company has two categories of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: share options and
share award scheme. For the year ended 31
December 2015, dilutive effects arose from
share award scheme adopted during the current
year. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares calculated is compared with the number
of shares granted to employees that would have
been transferred at the date of grant during
2015. During the year ended 31 December
2014, dilutive effects arose from share options.

The exercise of the outstanding share options
would have an anti-dilutive effect on the
earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2015.

REEMEARBE# S ENT
WAL - R MR SRR E] o B
F2015F12A31MB It FE - #
ERERERNE FEIT RGN EE
A8 - FTRrE 2 B BT @R 2N
B HEBBEN 2015 FRH
REEERTRARERE ZRMNE -
HE2014F12A31B It FE
BEs 2REREIRE -

HE2015F12A31B L FE -
BREZITEESHERENER
BMEPE -

2015 2014
Profit used to determine diluted ETrEREERTIRA
earnings per share (HK$'000) 2w (FET) 508,053 317,188
Weighted average number of B BT 2 hnE
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 8 THK) 8,869,319 8,758,580
Adjustment for: P
— effect of dilutive potential — RIEAR P B
shares issuable under the ETEIRI BT o e
Company’s share option BRI 28
scheme (thousands) (Fh) — 1,153
— effect of dilutive potential — RIBEARRIG 2E
shares issuable under the ETE 2 BUEETE R
Company’s share award DB (FAR)
scheme (thousands) 7,776 —
Weighted average number of BRESERT 2 LBk
ordinary shares used to determine  pNiEFHE(FA)
diluted earnings per share
(thousands) 8,877,095 8,759,733
Diluted earnings per share AR FER AN
attributable to owners of the BRREE RN
Company (HK cents per share) (BN 5.72 3.62
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
13. DIVIDEND 13. RE

14.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share

totalling approximately HK$89,462,000 was paid in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
Nil). The directors do not recommend the payment

of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BEAEB1.0BIWZHHERE

5t

#989,462,000/% T B I A F E WK 17
(2014%F &) - EEETERIKNE
Z2015F 12 A31 BIEFEZ RHRE
(2014 : £E) -

14. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
B
B HENEEE  RERRG HE EEIR fag
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TEn FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn
Cost AR
As at 1 January 2015, as R15E1A1R

previously reported il E 343,881 37,238 11,131 45,707 1,869,957 3,014,520
Adjustment (Note) BE(Wit) (92,104) (1,091) 93,195 - - -
As at 1 January 2015, R015E1A18

as adjusted Ell 251,117 36,147 810,932 45,707 1,869,957 3,014,520
Additions NE 849 - 6,833 6,943 2,317,208 2,331,833
Disposals HE (260) (909) (56,713) (2.229) - (60,111)
Transfer 1o inventories ghefre - - - - (22,101) (22,101)
Transfer from construction in BRETRIR

progress 27,163 - 3,004,749 - (3,031,912) -
Loss of control over subsidiaries k=B Fl 2145 (6,350) - (135) - (8,075) (14,560)
Exchange differences EREE (17,308) (2,09) (161,232) (2,854) (80,005) (263,495)
As at 31 December 2015 R2015E12 4318 255,871 33142 3,604,434 47,567 1,045,072 4,986,086

Accumulated depreciation ZiiE
As at 1 January 2015 R201551 418 40,680 26,429 99,634 29,869 - 196,612
Adjustment (Note) BRM) (2.811) (1,091) 3,902 - - -
As at 1 January 2015, RNEIA1R:

a adjusted B 37,869 25,338 103,536 29,869 - 196,612
Charge for the year TEELH 5,899 192 149,550 5,325 - 160,966
Disposals e (7 (909) (8,866) (1,959) - (11,761)
Loss of control over subsidiaries X EMBRAF 22/ (1,573) - (13) - - (1,586)
Exchange differences EXEE (2,435) (1,472) (11,476) (1,876) - (17,259)
As at 31 December 2015 R2015512 4318 39,733 23,149 232,731 31,359 - 326,972

Net book value SEE
As at 31 December 2015 R2015612 8318 216,138 9,993 3,371,703 16,208 1,045,072 4,659,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. YE - BMERZRE(Z)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements Equipment vehicles In progress Total
il
By HEMREE  RERGAK e ERIR e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T 7T 7T 7T
Cost AAfE
As at 1 January 2014, R2014E1A18
a previously reported HZH 355,243 37,363 1,440,757 49,899 539,151 2422413
Adjustment (Note) AR (it) (92,104) (1,091) 93,195 - - -

Asat 1 January 2014, as adjusted 10201451318 -

B 263,139 36,272 1,533,952 49,899 539,151 2420413
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERELR - - 38 m 76,016 76,326
Additions RE 1,135 - 5,990 3664 1,877,292 1,888,081
Reclassification to held for sale ~ ERBERERE - - (23,643) - - (23,643)
Disposals HE - - (161,286) (971) - (162,257)
Transfer from construction in BRELETE
progress 906 - 395,953 - (396,859) -
Loss of control over subsidiaries & EMBAF 214 (12,169) - (932,202) (6,973) (229803)  (1,181,147)
Exchange  differences EizE (1.234) (125) (7,870 (184) 4,160 (5253)

As at 31 December 2014,a  R2014512 8318 »

adjusted EEL 251,777 36,147 810,932 45,707 1,869,957 3,014,520
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE
As at 1 January 2014, R04E1A1R
as previously reported UFIEE 28,401 20210 108,636 26,839 — 184,136
Adjustment (Note) ARG - (1,091) 1,001 - - -

As at 1 January 2014, as adjusted R 2014E 1718

HBE 28,401 19,119 109,727 26,889 — 184,136
Charge for the year, as adjusted ~ AEERXH - H%k 10,761 6,259 85,556 7,363 - 109,939
Disposals HE - - (382) (585) - (967)
Loss of control over subsidiaries  kENB A 1251 (1,54) - (90,965) 3.721) - (95,940)
Exchange  differences ERER (39) (40) (400) (77) - (556
As at 31 December 2014, R2014E12 8318
as adjusted RR% 37,869 25,338 103,536 29,869 - 196,612
Net book value BREE
As at 31 December 2014, ROUENRANA
as adjusted HER 213,908 10,809 707,396 15,838 1,869,957 2,817,908
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B R M

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

"Building” with the net book value of HK$89,293,000 and
HK$92,104,000 as at 1 January 2015 and 1 January 2014
respectively, had been reclassified to “furniture, fixtures
and equipment” as at 31 December 2014 to conform with
the current year’s presentation. The adjustment has no
financial impact on the net book value of “property, plant
and equipment” and the amount of “net assets” as at 31
December 2013, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, depreciation
of HK$155,601,000 (2014: HK$103,821,000) has
been charged in ‘depreciation and amortisation’ in
the consolidated income statement and depreciation
of HK$385,000 (2014: HK$2,668,000) has been
recognised as unrealised profits or losses on
transactions between the Group and its associates and
JVs under interests in associates and JVs (Notes 18 and
19). In addition, depreciation of HK$4,980,000 (2014:
HK$3,450,000) has been capitalised as construction in
progress under property, plant and equipment, work
in progress under inventories (Note 20) and amounts
due from/(to) customers for contract work (Note 27)
as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings are
secured on buildings and equipment for the net
book value of HK$59,323,000 (2014: Nil) and
HK$1,118,372,000 (2014: HK$623,677,000) (Note
30), respectively.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

14.

ME - BERSEE)
izt

20151 A1 A K204 1 A1 BEREmEE
89,293,000 JT % 92,104,000 T 2 [
FIEENDHERFIFRE - £BRBEIE
T UAHEAFEZHEE - WEARHES
2013412 A831H 2014 12A31H &
2015 12 A31 B2 - BE R&#H] 2
EEFERAEFEIZREREVEYE -

HZE2015F12A3MBLEFE RE
Gl EmRIITEREIEIRIGFITER
155,601,000% 75(2014 : 103,821,000
BL) TREERERBERNAZ
(18- 19) THRAEEER
BENMBETCERARIARERIBEEZZ
7€ /3 385,000 % 7T(2014 : 2,668,000
EIL) e BEAN - R2015F 12 A31H ¢
R BEREREBEFERIRE FE
REEMWNE20) RERIREZEY,
FERRIB (MR 27) TER L2 ITESRE
44,980,000/ 7£(2014 : 3,450,000 7%
TT) e

M2015F12 8318 UWEBFREEA
ER 2 SRITIE R 2 AR E$E /3 59,323,000
78 70(2014 + F ) }1,118,372,0007% JT
(2014 : 623,677,000 7T) (Mi7E30) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRME
15. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 15. HETHR T ERRE

162

HK$'000
FHET
Net book amount as at 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 H
ZREFE 147,699
Addition NE 8,034
Amortisation 5 (6,034)
Exchange differences MEH Z5E (485)
Net book amount as at 31 December 2014 MA2014%12831H
ZEREFE 149,214
Addition =T 224,472
Amortisation 5 (16,831)
Exchange differences MEH Z58 (16,841)
Net book amount as at 31 December 2015 MA2015%12831H
ZEREFE 340,014

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015, amortisation
of HK$10,234,000 (2014: HK$5,207,000) has been
charged in ‘depreciation and amortisation’ in the
consolidated income statement and amortisation of
HK$163,000 (2014: HK$976,000) has been recognised
as unrealised profits or losses on transactions between
the Group and its associates and JVs under interests
in associates and JVs (Notes 18 and 19). In addition,
amortisation of HK$6,434,000 (2014: reversal of
amortisation of HK$149,000) has been capitalised as
construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment (Note 14) and work in progress under
inventories (Note 20) as at 31 December 2015.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

75 7E R O 30 T 008 P 2 M 3
EEMELARER  REEEFENT
m -

BH E2015F 128318 R & & K
mRIMERBHE PG 2HEAR
10,234,000 7T(2014 : 5,207,000
L) WRBE AR RAEE T ER
(MizE18 - 19) THRASEEHEEBE A
AIREEMEMRIRERIBE 2 i
/163,000 75(2014 : 976,000 7T) °
HE SN - FA20159F 12 A31H » R -
B REEPEREIR(ME14)REFE
RHEEMPMIF20) TEME 2 #ES T
/46,434,0008 7T(2014 : RiE 7 #E 4
%65 149,000787C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EBRBEE
Other
intangible
Goodwill asset Total
HmeE HE\rEE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET &
Net book amount as at R2014F 18182
1 January 2014 REFE 1,354,566 7,407 1,361,973
Amortisation i3 — (403) (403)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AR 73 — 73
Disposal of a subsidiary HEKERR] (1,523) — (1,523)
Exchange differences M =R (4,540) (26) (4,566)
Net book amount as at M2014%12A31H
31 December 2014 ZREFE 1,348,576 6,978 1,355,554
Amortisation e — (396) (396)
Exchange differences Ez- (78,730) (393) (79,123)
Net book amount as at M2015F12 A31H
31 December 2015 ZRERE 1,269,846 6,189 1,276,035
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ma

B R M

16.

164

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of China Wind
Power Holdings Limited (“China Wind Power”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “China Wind Power Group”)
which was completed on 1 August 2007. Goodwill
was allocated to the groups of cash-generating
units identified according to the operations, which
was substantially allocated to the investment in
power plants. In 2013, the Group has recognised
additional goodwill of HK$1,512,000 in relation to the
acquisition of Kangbao Century Concord Wind Power
Co Ltd. which was completed on 13 January 2013
and allocated to the operation of investment in power
plants. In 2014, the Group has recognised additional
goodwill of HK$73,000 in relation to the acquisition
of Fuchuan Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd,.
("Fuchuan”) which was allocated to the operation of
investment in power plants.

Goodwill is monitored at the groups of cash-
generating units, a level lower than the operating
segments. The Group has assessed the recoverable
amount of goodwill and determined that the goodwill
has not been impaired.

The recoverable amount is determined based on fair
value less cost to sell calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on the financial
budgets approved by management covering a ten-
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 9% (2014:
9%). Cash flows beyond the ten-year period are
extrapolated assuming no new wind farms are being
constructed beyond the ten-year period and the
existing wind farms will continue to operate until
end of their useful lives (2014: same). Other key
assumptions include projected installation capacity
in the coming ten years with annual growth rate
of 5.3% (2014: 13%), estimated power generating
capacity of each wind farm, expected tariff rate
and applicable PRC corporate income tax rate.
Management determined these key assumptions based
on past performance and their expectation on market
development.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

16. BILEE(E)

2 J) B U B China Wind Power
Holdings Limited ([ China Wind
Power]) & H If B 2 51(4 [ China
Wind Powerf B ]) i E £ - WE RN
2007F8R1EH K - AE DB R %
BR#HANE RS EEEMBEAS - K
HmoREBHMZTERREF - 522013
F AEEERKRBERRHBERNE
BERLDAIMHEREINEE1,512,0008
T ZEIEE N2013F1A13H &
B OB EBRKERSE - 702014
FA - AEERAWES)IHBER N
BEERAREN]EE 22 73,000
B WHEZEEHILER

BEAEREABMEE  —EXRgE
DEEIETER c AEBEEAHE
Z AW Bl & BRI E % R IR
{8 -

A e BTy A B E R SR AT
H-TEFERARSREEAN - JREAR
EREEMAERETFHB M BRES
ZHEEREED  MRATRREAEI%
(2014 :9%) - BB TEHEHESMEUR
HRBEREEHCELBEBBRTFERHE
CEBRBFFECEEELEHRLH
H(2014: —80) - Hitb X EBRBIEN
FES53% (2014 13%)ERERFE XK
RIOFZBARKDE - SRABH G
HHEE EHESERERAZPEALE
FIERHE - EREREAFRBARE
HMSHREEHEFZSEERMR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. BREE(#&)

Goodwill on acquisition is attributable to the
anticipated profitability of the Company and its
subsidiaries identified according to their operations.
The Group and its subsidiaries operate in the power
business, in particular consultancy and design;
engineering and construction; manufacture of
equipment; operation and maintenance of power

plants; and investment in power plants.

There was no impairment loss recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Same).
Had the projected installation capacity used in cash
flow projections been 50% (2014: 50%) lower than
management’s estimate, no additional impairment loss
of goodwill should be recognised by the Group (2014:
Same).

Other intangible asset arose from the acquisition
of the China Wind Power Group completed on 1
August 2007. It represents the Wind Power Plan
Cooperation Agreements signed with relevant local
government authorities in the PRC. This intangible
asset is amortised over the duration of the agreement
of 20 years. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
amortisation of HK$396,000 (2014: HK$403,000) has
been charged in ‘depreciation and amortisation’ in the

consolidated income statement.
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W 2B RARRREDER B
NEREZEZEHBNENMEE -
AEBENENBARKEERER - L
HR#ERMRZ  TRRER  RER
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HE2015F 12 A3 BILEETEER
WEEK(2014: —5) - ERESRETE
Az WAEREIRETEEI50% (2014 -
50%)  ASBEEEERENIEERE
1B%k(2014 1 —F) »

HitmpEEIRMR2007F8 A1
BhEREEBMEL - HIVIEEEH
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GIEHE - IWEBEEERHZE 2 FH20
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REMHBRRME

17. SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal

subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and

17. BT

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

MN2015F12 A31H TEMBAFZ
BT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
B3
REXHHR ERITEZER
L ERERER HEMRAZEE ARAEERERDSL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
HE &

CCH Investment Ltd. Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of 100% — Investment holding
company HK$1

HERERR AT &% BRAA VREE1 BT SRR REER

China Wind Power Holdings Ltd.  British Virgin Islands, 1 ordinary share of — 100% Investment holding
limited company Us$1

hEREERERAA HBRUES  BR VREEB1EZET2EER REER
NG

China Wind Power (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of 100% — Investment holding
company HK$1

HERE(EE)BRAF &% BRAA VREE 1 BT ERR REER

CWP Construction Ltd. Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of — 100%  Investment holding
company HK$ 1

HEREERERAR &% BRAA VREE 1 BT EER REZR

CCH Wind Power Holdings Ltd.  British Virgin Islands, 1 ordinary share of 100% — Investment holding
limited company US$1

HEREERBRAF ERBEXHE  BR 1TREE1ET LAR REER
NS

Glad Power Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands, 50,000 ordinary share — 100% Investment holding
limited company of US$1

LHEREBR LA RBRLES AR 50,000 REME1ETL REER
A LBk

CWP Energy Equipment Ltd. Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of — 100% Investment holding

PREZERREERAA
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company

BE ARAR
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REMBERRHE
17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. WEBAT(#E)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity

attributable to the

Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
ML R
REEBHER BERTEER/
A% EEERER EfREzEE APEEGERERSE FEEH
Direct  Indirect
i CiE3
Urban Energy Solar LLC. (USA)  The US, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
company Us$100 investment and
operation
MAAGEERATF xB - ARRA ZfER100%T AR ERRE
NETT
Hoku Solar Power I, LLC The US, limited — — 80% Solar power plant
company operation
Hoku K EE B E BB A F X BRAA A ERET
Jefferson Solar Park, LLC The US, limited — — 80% Solar power plant
company investment and
operation
X6 BRAA AEEERRER
B11
HMV Indy I, LLC USA, LLC 1 ordinary share of — 80% Solar power plant
Us$1 investment and
operation
XB - RHBEBAR VREE1ET EER AEEERRER
BT
Century Concord Wind Power The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. company RMB3,100,000,000
BEREREBRAR mE - ARATF FMERARK REZR
3,100,000,000 7T
Tianjin Century Concord The PRC, wholly- Registered capital of — 100%  Sales of wind power

Huaxing Wind Power
Equipment Co., Ltd.

RRpeERRERHBRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. HEBAT(E)

168

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity

attributable to the

Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
ML R
REXBER BRITEER/
£ EEERER AMRAZEE ARREERETSL TEEK
Direct  Indirect
B Gk
Haotai New Energy Equipment  The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Sales of Solar power
Ltd. company RMB 100,000,000 equipment and
new energy
equipment
AR REEARAR hE - ARAF AMERARYE INGET S
100,000,000 7¢ REHE
Jilin CWP Power Engineering The PRC, Sino- Registered capital of — 100% Power plant facilities
Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint RMB100,000,000 construction
venture
EMBEENIRERRA hE - PHRERE  EMERARE LEERRIEER
100,000,000 7T
Beijing Shijijuhe Wind Power The PRC, wholly- Registered capital of — 100% Wind power research
Technology Co., Ltd. owned foreign US$10,000,000 and development
enterprise in wind power
technology
EREERARERMERRA  TE - 2IHNERE #Eff & 710,000,000 RE Rz BB E
£
Jilin Tianhe Wind Power The PRC, wholly- Registered capital of — 100% Power equipment
Equipment Co., Ltd. owned foreign HK$213,661,300 manufacturing
enterprise
ENEREEEREBRAF hE - 2NELR &7 213,661,300 BhRBRE
BT
Jilin Tianhe Wind Power The PRC, wholly- Registered capital of — 100% Wind power
Equipment Manufacturing owned foreign HK$34,500,000 equipment
Operation and Maintenance enterprise manufacturing
Co.
EMERAABRBREETH TH RINERE FEff & 78 34,500,000 RERERE
EL1EING BT

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and

17. MIBRATEI(&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
SRR
REFBER BRITEER/
£ ERERER AfRAZEE ERREEREESL FEEK
Direct  Indirect
Ei &

Beijing Juhe Power Technology ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 70% Power system design,
Design Co., Ltd. Company RMB47,235,000 research and

exploitation

TRBEENIREFBRAT  HE - BRAA AMERARE REZgRst - R

47,235,000 RE%

Beijing Century Concord The PRC, wholly- Registered capital of — 100%  Wind power plant
Operation and Maintenance owned foreign RMB20,000,000 operation and
Co., Ltd. enterprise maintenance

tRHaERRERMERRR  FE  2IERE FMERARE RERBETRER

20,000,0007T

Huayin Century Concord The PRC, wholly- Registered capital of — 100% Equipment lease
International Lease Limited owned foreign RMB171,662,000

enterprise

ERBAERBEERRAR hE - RHELE AMERARE REHE

171,662,0007C

Yongren Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB86,690,000 investment and

operation

KEHEAGHEERR AT mE - ARAA AMERARE AEEERRER

86,690,000 7 &1

Wuwei Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of - 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB21,550,000 investment and

operation

REBEAGaEESERAF hE - ARRAF HERARE ARG ERIEE R

21,550,000 7T &1
Yulin Century Concord New The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant

Energy Co., Ltd

B A LR ERAR LD

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

company

HE - ARAR

RMB360,000,000

EfEAARE
360,000,000 70

investment and
operation

ABGRERTE R
BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. HEBAT(E)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity

attributable to the

Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
SRR
REFBER BRITEER/
£ ERERER AfRAZEE ERREEREESL FEEK
Direct  Indirect
B# &
Naidong Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 146,150,000 investment and
operation
NRBEAGHESERA hE - ARRF HERARE AGEERIEE R
146,150,000 70 &1
Pingyuanxian Century Concord  The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Solar Power Co., Ltd company RMB74,380,000 investment and
operation
TREBEAZHEEERA mE - ARAA AMERARE AEEERRER
74,380,000 7T &1
Eryuan Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB48,000,000 investment and
operation
ERBEAGHEEERA mE - ARAA AMERARE AEeERRER
48,000,000 7T &1
Huaping Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB97,860,000 investment and
operation
ETHEABREEERA E - ARAA AMERARE AEERRER
97,860,000 7T &1
Yongzhou Dongtian Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of - 100%  Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. company RMB8&3,176,000 investment and
operation
AMREHERNEEARAR  FE ARAA AMERARE B EREE RETT
83,176,000 7T
Feixi Century Concord Wind The PRC, limited Registered capital of - 100%  Wind power plant

Power Co., Ltd. company RMB73,710,000 investment and
operation
ERBARNEEERAT R BRAR HMERARE RERIEE RETT
73,710,000 7C

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and

17. MIBRATEI(&)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
SRR
REFBER BRITEER/
£ ERERER AfRAZEE ERREEREESL FEEK
Direct  Indirect
Ei &
Fuchuan Century Concord Wind ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 140,500,000 investment and
operation
EHERNEERRRR E - ARAA AMERARE B ERIEE RETT
140,500,000 7T
Yulin Century Concord Solar The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB78,000,000 investment and
operation
RMHE ARG EERR AR mE - ARAA AMERARE BEREE RETT
78,000,0007T
Tongdao Century Concord Wind ~ The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB 158,000,000 investment and
operation
RERERENEERRAF mE - ARAA AMERARE B EREE RETT
158,000,000 7T
Yongzhou Jiepai Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of — 100%  Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power Co., company RMB75,000,000 investment and
Ltd. operation
AMAEHERNEERRDR  FE ARAA AMERARE B EREE RETT
75,000,0007T
Tieling Century Concord Xingda ~ The PRC, Sino- Registered capital of - 100%  Wind power plant

Wind Power Co., Ltd.

HEHAEERNEETERAA

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

foreign equity joint

venture

TE - FHEELEK

RMB50,758,910

EMERARE
50,758,9107C

investment and
operation
BERIEE RETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHmRME
17. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. WEBAT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration and issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
operations and registered share attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity capital Company Principal activities
SRR
REFBER BRITEER/
£ ERERER AfRAZEE ERREEREESL FEEK
Direct  Indirect
Ei &
Yanyuan Century Concord The PRC limited Registered capital of — 100%  Solar power plant
Photovoltaic Co., Ltd company RMB56,000,000 investment and
operation
HRHBENREERRRA E - ARAA AMERARE AEEERRER
56,000,000 7T BT
Huize Century Concord Wind The PRC limited Registered capital of — 100%  Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company RMB8&7,150,000 investment and
operation
SERERNEERRAT E - ARAA AMERARE B ERE & RETT
87,150,000 7T
Beijing Century Concord Asset  The PRC limited Registered capital of — 40% Management of
Management Co., Ltd. company RMB10,000,000 assets
tRhaEEERERAA mE - ARAA AMERARK BEER
10,000,000 7T
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company A FRBREHESS BhRAHANE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally SR EEE B MK NEBEERE
affected the results for the year or formed a BERIN T HB AT o

substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REEZE QAT 2SR

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance REAEERABXRDPRALBNT -
sheet are as follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Share of net assets of associates S R R EEFE
(Note (i) and (v)) (H1a2 (i) # (v)) 329,032 370,741
Current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(&E)
Amounts due from associates (Note (i) [FEUEE S N &) I8 (H152 (i) 129,253 59,599
Amounts due from associates for AR TR 2 UL & A 7
contract work (Notes (iii) and 27) SRE(WTEE (i) F27) 43,840 26,393
173,093 85,992
Amounts due to associates (Note (iv))  FETHFZ AT ZRIB
(K1t (iv) — (29,039)
Amounts due to associates for contract & [FTH2 2 JE Bk A &)
work (Notes (iv) and 27) SR(H T (v) #127) (2,498) —
(2,498) (29,039)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REtE N2 (&)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income RNELBEaBEERRA£EMT

statement are as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET T/E7T
Share of results of associates BRBE AR 2¥E
Share of results e 17,525 7,645
Notes: s -
(i)  As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal (i) F2015F 128318 T EBBHLE QA
associates are as follows: ZHBWOT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and Nominal value of
Name of associates kind of legal entity registered capital Interest held indirectly  Principal activities
AL ERR
EXHHUR
BENTER ERERER dMEX 2 EE BEER TEXH
2015 2014
Sihong Century Concord Wind The PRC, limited RMB83,660,000 30% 30% Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
WA HERNEEBRARF P BRAR AR 83,660,000 7 REmRE BT
Zhengzhou Zhengji Century The PRC, Sino- RMB 16,000,000 28% 28%  Manufacturing of wind
Concord Equipment Co., Ltd. foreign equity power facilities
joint venture
N ERHEEREERRER mE - mRERE ARK16,000,0007T BNESREHE
NSl
Changtu Liaoneng Xiexin Wind The PRC, Sino- USD24,819,000 25% 25%  Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. foreign equity investment and
joint venture operation
EEERHERNEEERAA E - RRERE  24,819,000%T RERIRE RET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. R DT R (&)

Notes: (Continued) Biit - (&)

(i) As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal 0) M2015%F 12 831H " FEBZ N A

associates are as follows: (Continued) TEEBWT ()

Name of associates

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations and
kind of legal entity

Nominal value of
registered capital

Interest held indirectly

Principal activities

MR/ ZRER
EEBER
BENRER ERERER HAMEAZEE BEER TEEH
2015 2014
Chaoyang Wind Power The PRC, limited RMB1,800,000 1% 11%  Wind power plant
Development Service Co., Ltd. company (Note a) investment and
operation
PR EHEREERAA hE - ERAT ARH 1,800,000 T (Hiita) RERRERET
Jilin Province Zhanyu Wind Power  The PRC, limited RMB713,800,000 17.15% 17.15%  Wind power plant
Assets Management Co., Ltd. company (Note b) investment and
operation
EMERREAEEELEERER  TH BRAF AKH# 713,800,000 (Hi#b) RERRE BT
|
Fuxin Union Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, Sino- RMB175,500,000 24.5% 24.5%  Wind power plant
foreign equity investment and
joint venture operation
ENHARNEEBRLA E - POEERE  ARK175500,0007 RERRERET
Fuxin Century Concord-Shenhua The PRC, Sino- RMB 160,000,000 24.5% 24.5%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. foreign equity investment and
joint venture operation
BNBRERRRENEEERLRT hE - PORERLE AKRK160,000,0007 RERRE RET
Chaoyang Century Concord The PRC, limited RMB162,000,000 30% 30% Wind power plant
Wanjia Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
FHEHaERBNBEERAR HE - BRAA AR 162,000,000 7T REmERE LET
Fuxin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, limited RMB300,000,000 30% 30% Wind power plant
company investment and
operation
ENFARNEEERAA mE - BEAF A 300,000,000 7 RERIRE RET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ma

B R M

18.

176

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal
associates are as follows: (Continued)

Even though the Group holds less than 20 percent
of the voting power of the investees, the Group
demonstrates significant influences on the investees
by:

(@) holding a seat on the board of directors for a
board with 5 members and all directors having
equal voting rights.

(b)  holding the second highest percentage in total
shareholding of the investee

Amounts due from associates mainly represent trade
receivables from associates of HK$126,045,000 (2014:
HK$56,251,000).
with ageing by invoice date less than three months

Trade receivables from associates

are not considered impaired. As at 31 December
2015, trade receivables of HK$90,171,000 (2014:
HK$12,681,000) were fully performing. As at 31
December 2015, trade receivables of HK$35,874,000
(2014: HK$43,570,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of associates for
whom there is no financial difficulty and based on past

experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered.

Other balances due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The carrying amounts of the amounts due from
associates approximate their fair values and are
denominated in RMB.

Amounts due from associates for contract work are
cost of constructions incurred but not yet billed.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

18. REENTR 2 (&)

Biet (&)

@)

(i)

(iii)

MR2015%F12831H ' TBHZ QA
ZEEBWIT ()

BIEAREBAERRERARRERED
R20%  ANEEREBAT I ABR

HREBERRZEARZE N

(@ MESEREZEEFESEH—F
- MEREFHERERERE
1 -

(b) FAWKREAFGHREE S
EE=

EREE AR RBEIERABE AR
ZF‘%H&Z%%E&&%QG,MS,OOO;’%T@
(2014 : 56,251,00078 7T ) ° #H D R
3EAZEKE SERTRADRAE -
M2015F 128318 EWRE HER
90,171,000 7C(2014 : 12,681,000 7%
TT)EEHEBET - R2015F 12 8
318 - EUE 5 R 535,874,000 % 7T
(2014 : 43,570,00078 7T ) & # #4118 I

EORME - ILERBY RZERILEHE
RIBTRACER 2 B X A)
H i &Y B 2 R R FRIR R IR R - %

B &ﬂliﬁﬁkﬁﬂ JRE Uiz Bt = A AR

RZEEEEAALEERE 0 BN
ARBEE -

JRE LS gt AlZANIRRARDE
155754 Z?%%&L N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REtE N2 (&)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

The aggregated assets,

Amounts due to associates include the trade deposits
received from associates of nil (2014: HK$29,039,000).

Amounts due to associates for contract work are
advances received from associates but not yet provided
the construction service.

Balances due to associates are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying
amounts of the amounts due to associates approximate
their fair values and are denominated in RMB.

The Group’s share of net assets of associates include
the deferred tax provided as temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements resulted from the unrealised profits on the
assets acquired from the Company’s subsidiaries.

liabilities, revenue and

expenses of the Group’s associates, all of which are

unlisted, are as follows:

Biet (&)

(iv)

AEEEEEBE

FE T B & R R FIE T B r(2014 ¢
29,039,000 ) EBEBE R A 2R
D%

&/ T2 2 FE AT Bk & 2 5] 3RIA A e B
BN EEVE R IR R E R TS 2 TR
RS
Ht e B e N B FIRREERR £
,%\&ﬁﬁli@%’ﬁﬁﬂ o JEATHEE 2RISR
AzEEEEE AR BEES - BX
AR¥EEHE -

FEHEEBENRFEERERE
EzBEEMARNTKRBEEZ RE
RRFMELEGREMBMRMINEE
REEMER TR ZHEARZELT
BiIA

22
e

SARZEER

BRAIZBEE  BE - WARFEZMW

7|

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Total assets BEERE 2,995,416 2,962,274
Total liabilities BERE (1,455,998) (1,321,883)
Net assets EEFE 1,539,418 1,640,391
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Revenue WA 216,412 214,141
Expenses Fisx (176,391) (192,391)
Profit for the year REEER 40,021 21,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Set out below is the associate of the Group as at
31 December 2015, which, in the opinion of the
directors, is material to the Group. The associate
listed below has share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which is held directly by the Group;
the country of incorporation or registration is also its

principal place of business.

Place of business/

18.

R NT 2 BE(E)

AR HE IR 2015612 A31 BEER A
HASEMEEAZASEBEBBRE QA -
THIBEE A R 2 RARE BT RARAK -
BASEEEEE sz e E
RIMBEFTSEEE -

% of % of

country of ownership  ownership Measurement
Name of entity establishment interest interest method
—ES:1 FIEEREE MEEER
BEREEE DNEREER Bok Bok BERE
2015 2014
Fuxin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC 30% 30% Equity

EMFARANBEEBRAR HE

Fuxin Taihe generates wind power to the renewable
energy industry in the PRC. The Group sells products
and provides consultancy, construction and operation

maintenance services to it.
Summarised financial information for associate
Set out below is the summarised unaudited financial

information for Fuxin Taihe which is accounted for

using the equity method.

178 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. mﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁz%ﬁ(ég)
Summarised balance sheet EESBERMM
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current FRE
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREFBEIAE 129,113 80,406
Other current assets (excluding cash) HEmnsEE(TeERe) 66,030 139,565
Total current assets mEEEARE 195,143 219,971
Financial liabilities Gz Y=R
(excluding trade payables) (TBEEENESR) (52,281) (55,394)
Other current liabilities EtREasE
(including trade payables) (BEEFNESHR) (32,801) (51,218)
Total current liabilities mENBEEE (85,082) (106,612)
Non-current ERE
Assets BE 795,630 888,659
Financial liabilities cRas (499,057) (584,253)
Other liabilities EmmaE — —
Total non-current liabilities IEmBEERE (499,057) (584,253)
Net assets BEFE 406,634 417,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REtE N2 (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income A Uk 35 R Ak
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T
Revenue A 101,133 109,583
Depreciation and amortisation e R (46,140) (46,808)
Interest expense MEXZH (38,610) (46,542)
Other expenses HEmsr (880) (11,463)
Profit from continuing operations  REZE XK~ Fz 15,503 4,770
Income tax expense FRISTRR X (1,705) (31)
Net profit from continuing RELEEKZFRFE
operations 13,798 4,739
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 HEEE (24,929) (1,366)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(EE), B 5E (11,131) 3,373

180

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the unaudited financial statements of the associate
(and not the Group's share of those amounts) adjusted
for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

18. REENTR 2 (&)

2015 2014

HK$000 HK$'000

FET T

Opening net assets as at 1 January R1B1AZENEERE 417,765 414,392

Profit for the year AN 2 A 13,798 4,739

Other comprehensive loss HM2HEEE (24,929) (1,366)

Closing net assets FREEFE 406,634 417,765

Interest shareholding s 30% 30%

Interests in associate NNl o 121,990 125,330

Unrealised profits and deferred tax FFAGRE N EmER 2

assets credited to the consolidated RERE M RIEERIE

income statement, net BE - FE 809 962

Cumulative unrealised profits, net ZEAREREN - JFHE (8.260) (10,117)

Carrying value IREE 114,539 116,175

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REtE N2 (&)

182

Set out below is, in aggregate, the carrying amounts

of the Group’s interests in all individually immaterial

AT 5 AN SR B 2R B A ARR 2 B
BEBTNERBE AR ZEERAES

associates that are accounted for using the equity =t o
method.
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount of the Group's REBEGEEIREER
interests 214,493 254,566
The Group's share of: B AR H4E
Profit from continuing operations RERHEKEE 25T 12,577 5,261
Other comprehensive loss HEma2mEE (13,347) (816)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(EE) asen (770) 4,445

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. REEDECESR

VENTURES

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet are as follows:

FREERBRTER ZEBEEII

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets/(liabilities) kRBEE(ARB)
Share of net assets of JVs AL EEEFE
(Notes (i) and (viii)) (B2 () #0 (viii)) 1,539,159 1,566,513
Loan to a JV (Note (ii)) TEEREZERM ) 59,316 56,871
1,598,475 1,623,384
Loans from a JV (Note (iii) BEDEZERE ) (43,234) (155,833)
Current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(&E)
Amounts due from JVs (Note (iv)) FEUR A & EFIRW A (V) 979,301 988,294
Amounts due from JVs for contract ARIBZRIEETE
work (Notes (v) and 27) SRV FM27) 92,295 60,639
Loans to JVs (Note (vi)) FTEEDLEZERM L (V) 76,351 118,586
1,147,947 1,167,519
Amounts due to JVs (Note (vii) A & EFIAM A (vi) (135,216) (153,986)
Loans from a JV (Note (iii) GEDEZERME i) (48,342) —
Amounts due to JVs for contract work A RIIEZENESE
(Note (vii) and 27) SRR i) F127) (40,054) (33,290)
(223,612) (187,276)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income MRS W RRBAISEAT ¢
statement are as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of results of JVs EiheaghEo%E
Share of results e 68,284 42,062

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

2015% 3% 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESER(E)

184

VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal

JVs are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establish/registration

Proportion
of value of
registered

registered capital

(i)
ZEHEWT
Proportion
of value of

Proportion of

M2015F12A318 TEAE %

and operationsand ~ Nominal value of capital held by held by the voting power
Name of JVs kind of legal entity registered capital the Group Group held  Principal activities
AL/ ERREE rEERARER  ASESERR
RELELH BEREERRER  IMEACEE EAzEERS  ARZEELS  REREEMA TERR
2015 2014
Jilin CWP-Milestone Wind The PRC, Sino-foreign ~ RMB150,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. equity joint venture investment and
operation
aMERGAENREAR  PE PARELE  AR¥150,0000007 RERRAREN
]

Erlianhaote Changfeng The PRC, Sino-foreign ~ RMB76,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Century Concord Wind equity joint venture investment and
Power Exploiture operation
Co., Ltd.

CEESRARARERE  RE PARERE  AR¥T6000,0007 RERRAREN
BRAR

Jilin Taihe Wind Power The PRC, Sino-foreign ~ RMB150,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. equity joint venture investment and

operation

ERRRRNEEERAT  PE PARELE  AR¥150,0000007 BERRERET

Tongliao Taihe Wind Power  The PRC, Sino-foreign ~ RMB150,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. equity joint venture investment and

operation

BERRRNYERRAT  PE PARELE  AR¥150,0000007 RERRAREN

Taipusigi Century Concord-  The PRC, Sino-foreign ~ RMB136,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Shenhua Wind Power equity joint venture investment and
Investment Co., Ltd. operation

RESHEERAENEE BB PHARGE  ARH1360000007 RERRAREN

REERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDERR(E)
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) st - (&)
(i) As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal ()  M2015F 128318 TBEEDLE
Vs are as follows: (Continued) ZEBWT ()
Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ of value of of value of
establish/registration registered  registered capital Proportion of
and operationsand ~ Nominal value of capital held by held bythe  voting power
Name of JVs kind of legal entity registered capital the Group Group held  Principal activities
AL/ ERREE AEERAER  ASESEER
RELEAR HERERERER  AMEAZEE BAoBERA  AAZEERS  BEREELA IEXR
2015 2014
Taipusigi Union Wind Power  The PRC, limited RMB89,000,000 51% 51% 50%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
RESERAENEEEAR  TE- BRAA AR 89,000,000 RERRERET
A
Sugian Century Concord The PRC, limited RMB30,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Solar power plant
New Energy Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
BERAMERERAR PE - ARAA AK#30,000,0007C KGR EBRERET
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB810,940,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
New Energy Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
SRIBAMERERAA TE - BRAT AR 810,940,000 RERRELET
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB90,000,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Kezuohougi Wind Power company investment and
Co,, Ltd. operation
SRBAMIREENEE  HE BRAA AR%90,000,0007C RERREREN
ARAR
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB86,000,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Kailu Wind Power Co., company investment and
Ltd. operation
SRBANEENEEAR  HE - ERAT AR 86,000,000 RERRAREN
N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESER(E)

186

VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) st - (&)
(i) As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal ()  M2015F 128318 TBEEDLE
Vs are as follows: (Continued) ZEBWT ()
Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ of value of of value of
establish/registration registered  registered capital Proportion of
and operationsand ~ Nominal value of capital held by held bythe  voting power
Name of JVs kind of legal entity registered capital the Group Group held  Principal activities
AL/ ERREE AEERAER  ASESEER
RELEAR HERERERER  AMEAZEE BAoBERA  AAZEERS  BEREELA IEXR
2015 2014
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB76,700,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Kezuohougihuadeng company investment and
Wind Power Co., Ltd. operation
SRBAMTRIELEE  PEH ARAF AR 76,700,000 70 RERRERET
EEERAA
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB74,200,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Zhalutegibaiyinchagan company investment and
Wind Power Co., Ltd. operation
FRBAAENNEDEEE  PE ARAA AR 74,200,000 70 RERRE RET
BNEEARAA
Tianchang Century Concord  The PRC, limited RMB55,000,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
REBERNESERAR  FE FRAA A 55,000,000 RERRE RET
Gansu Guazhou Century The PRC, Sino-foreign ~ RMB669,120,000 51.45% 51.45% 50%  Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power equity joint venture investment and
Co., Ltd. operation
FEINGRENREER  #E ®HaE0E  AR669,1200007 RERRELET
R
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB3,000,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Zhaluteqi Beisala Wind company investment and
Power Co., Ltd. operation
SRBANERELELR  HE - ERAT AR3,000,0007 RERRELET
NEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal
JVs are as follows: (Continued)

Place of Proportion
incorporation/ of value of
establish/registration registered

(@)

19. REELEIERE(E)

Hrat (%)

ZEBMT ()

Proportion
of value of

registered capital Proportion of

MR2015F12A31H - TEEEE

and operationsand ~ Nominal value of capital held by held bythe  voting power
Name of JVs kind of legal entity registered capital the Group Group held  Principal activities
AL/ ERREE AEERAER  ASESEER
RELEAR HERERERER  AMEAZEE BAoBERA  AAZEERS  BEREELA IEXR
2015 2014
Zhenlai Huaxing Wind Power ~ The PRC, limited RMB140,000,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
BEZEENESERAA  FE BRAA ARH 140,000,000 7T RERRE RET
Mengdong Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB90,000,000 32.16% 32.16% 50%  Wind power plant
Zhaluteqi Wind Power company investment and
Co., Ltd. operation
SRBANERERNEE  HE - ERAT AR 90,000,000 RERRELET
BARAR
Wuchuan County Yihe Wind ~ The PRC, limited RMB100,000,000 46% 46% 50%  Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
RIEEAENEEAR TE - BRAT AR 100,000,000 RERRELET
A
Haian Century Concord The PRC, limited RMB45,480,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
BRRAENEEERLA  RE - ERLA AR 45,480,000 RERRELET
Suzhou Century Concord The PRC, limited RMB81,980,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
BMBARNEEERAR  #E - ERAF AR 81,980,0007C RERRAREN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESRR(E)
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) st - (&)
(i) As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal ()  M2015F 128318 TBEEDLE
Vs are as follows: (Continued) ZEBWT ()
Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ of value of of value of
establish/registration registered  registered capital Proportion of
and operationsand ~ Nominal value of capital held by held bythe  voting power
Name of JVs kind of legal entity registered capital the Group Group held  Principal activities
AL/ ERREE AEERAER  ASESEER
RELEAR HERERERER  AMEAZEE BAoBERA  AAZEERS  BEREELA IEXR
2015 2014
Xiaoxian Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB83,550,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
EERARNETERAA  RE - ARAA AR 83,550,0007C RERRE RET
Jianghua Yao Autonomous  The PRC, limited RMB72,722,000 59.3% 59.3% 50%  Wind power plant
County Century Concord company investment and
Wind Power Co., Ltd. operation
TEgEkERERRRNE  PE BRAF ARH72,722,0007C RERRELET
EERATA
Jingmen Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited RMB73,308,000 59.3% 59.3% 50%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
AFGRENESERRE  RE - BRAT ARH73,308,0007C RERRELET
Hebi Century Junlong Wind  The PRC, limited RMB123,495,900 59.3% 59.3% 50%  Wind power plant
Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
BERALEENZEER  HE - BRAF AR 123,495,900 0 RERRAREN
R
Yantai Yihao New Energy The PRC, limited RMB82,750,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Development Co., Ltd company investment and
operation
BRERMERREAR TE - BRAT AR 82,750,000 RERRAREN
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDERR(E)
VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) st - (&)
(i) As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the principal ()  M2015F 128318 TBEEDLE
Vs are as follows: (Continued) ZEBWT ()
Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ of value of of value of
establish/registration registered  registered capital Proportion of
and operationsand ~ Nominal value of capital held by held by the  voting power
Name of JVs kind of legal entity ~registered capital the Group Group held  Principal activities
AL/ ERREE rEERARR  AEESEER
RELEAR HERERERER  AMEAZEE BAoBERA  AAZEERD  BAREELA IERR
2015 2014
Yiyang Century Concord The PRC, limited RMB70,600,000 49% 49% 50%  Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
EGRARNZEERAT  HE - ERAT ARH70,600,0007 RERRELET
Topping Centre Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of 80% 80% 50%  Investment holding
company HK$1
RAERAA & ARRA ~REE1ETZEE RERR
&
Chuangdao (Shanghai) The PRC, limited RMB50,000,000 34% 34% 50%  Technology
Smart Technology company consultation and
Co., Ltd. design for new
energy
BE(LE)BeRER  HE - BRAR AR 50,000,000 R R LR
R
Tianjin Green Energy The PRC, wholly-owned  RMB300,000,000 80% 80% 50%  Equipment lease
International Leasing foreign enterprise
Co., Ltd.
REEFHFAREERER  HE )EEA AR 300,000,000 7T REHE
R
Hubei Jinquan Wind Power ~ The PRC, limited RMB81,000,000 51% 51% 50%  Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. company investment and
operation
MLERENEETERAA  RE - BRAA AR%81,000,0007 RERRE RET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19.

190

INTERESTS

IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loan to a JV, Gansu Guazhou Century Concord Wind
Power Co., Ltd., is unsecured, interest bearing at
5.3% (2014: 5.3%) per annum and has been repaid
on 15 January 2016. The carrying amount of the loan
to a JV approximates its fair value and is denominated
in US$. The effective interest rate on the loan to a JV
was 4.12% (2014: 4.12%).

Since 2014, certain subsidiaries of the Group have
entered into sales and leaseback agreements with a
JV, Tianjian Green Energy International Leasing Co.
Ltd, to lease certain property, plant and equipment
for an aggregate of HK$91,576,000 (2014:
HK$155,833,000). There are repurchase options
stipulated in the agreements at the end of the lease,
the Group considered that it is almost certain that they
would exercise these repurchase options. As substantial
risks and rewards of the secured assets were retained
by the Group before and after these arrangements,
the transactions were regarded as secured borrowings,

rather than finance lease arrangement.

The loans were secured by the property, plant and
equipment by the same amount. The carrying amounts
of the secured loans from a JV approximate their fair
values and are denominated in RMB. The effective
interest rate on the secured loans from a JV was
5.782% per annum (2014: 5.782%).

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

19. RE&

Biet (&)

(if)

(iii)

BhEoER(E)

F-REELE  HROAMNBERET
BEERDAZERERR NEA
FHFE53% (2014 :5.3%) * 2016 4F
TAISAEEE - TAERLEERY
FEEREEQAREEMEE  BUET
FHE TEEREERCERFEX R
4.12% (2014 : 4.12%) °

REFE - NEBZEHHE QR HE
EE-—SERE REBHRHREA
RHEERARE TETEBAYE
BELEEEELHEZHE 28 A
91,576,000 7£(2014 : 155,833,000
Bir)  c SEETEEETEERLA
WERcCEE AR EEEENTHE
12 MR R EREER EEpE
BIZAIR BN Bt HEXS
FHENEATAMFERZER M
FRERERS -

ERCRHEESSEIVE BER
BEERE BRZIEEEEEARE
BHEE BEUAARBHE - BEED
XMEERCEBRFEEER5.782%
(2014 :5.782%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19.

INTERESTS

IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Amounts due from JVs mainly represent trade
receivables from JVs of HK$704,069,000 (2014:
HK$656,495,000). Trade receivables from JVs with
ageing by invoice date less than three months
are not considered impaired. As at 31 December
2015, trade receivables of HK$469,191,000 (2014:
HK$368,552,000) were fully performing. As at 31
December 2015, trade receivables of HK$234,878,000
(2014: HK$287,943,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of JVs for whom
there is no financial difficulty and based on past
experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, other balances
due from JVs are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the
amounts due from JVs approximate their fair values
and are denominated in RMB.

Amounts due from JVs for contract work are cost of
constructions incurred but not yet billed.

Loans to JVs are unsecured, interest bearing ranging
from 3.92% to 6.72% (2014: 5.45% to 10%) per
annum and repayable on demand. The carrying
amounts of the loans to JVs approximate their fair
values and are denominated in RMB. The effective
interest rate on the loans to JVs was 5.17% (2014:
8.31%).

Amounts due to JVs mainly represent the trade
deposits received from JVs of HK$90,634,000 (2014
HK$106,306,000).

Amounts due to JVs for contract work are advances
received from JVs but not yet provided the construction

service.

Other balances due to JVs are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying
amounts of the amounts due to JVs approximate their
fair values and majority of the carrying amounts are
denominated in RMB.
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Biet (&)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BhEoER(E)

BRAEEPEREFZHLEDE ZER
& 5 85 3 5 704,069,0007% 7T (2014 :
656,495,000 7T ) o @ H 4 R3{E
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2015412 A31H W E S EX
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BIL)IEEHESFET - R20155F12
A318  EKREHERF 234,878,000/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19, RAZE>EN(£)
VENTURES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Kigt - (&)

192

(viii)

The Group's share of net assets of JVs includes the
deferred tax provided as temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements
resulted from the unrealised profits on the assets
acquired from the Company’s subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, certain JVs
which are principally engaged in wind power plant
investment and operation, have yet to obtain the
formal land use right certificates for certain wind
power plants. The directors of the JVs believe that the
use of and the conduct of relevant activities on the
above mentioned land are not affected by the fact
that the relevant land use right certificates have not
been obtained. JVs' directors believe that this will not
have any material adverse effect on JVs' results of
operations and financial conditions.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

AEEEEAZOCREEFERRE
JERIE - RERAREEZ HEEE
ExGaMBHRRZEREZEZRM
EXCERMEZR  WEREETHNE
BEARRAMBLARNEEMEEZARE
LI -

(viii)

20154 M2014F12A31H £ 2
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BUHBEABTEHE2 R KEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19, RADES R (L)
VENTURES (Continued)
The Group's JVs' aggregated assets, liabilities, revenue REBERGHEEPEVHEBERZES
and expenses are as follows: BhEEEE - BE - WANREIN
T
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Assets: BE
Non-current assets EREBEE 12,556,837 12,478,235
Current assets mBEE 2,657,441 2,989,815
15,214,278 15,468,050
Liabilities: A&
Non-current liabilities EMBEE (7,100,881) (6,564,622)
Current liabilities mBEE (3,339,675) (4,798,412)
(10,440,556) (11,363,034)
Net assets EEFE 4,773,722 4,105,016
Capital commitments B R HE 914,868 1,257,223
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A 1,580,006 1,143,081
Expenses = (1,455,878) (1,154,057)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEWE(BE) 124,128 (10,976)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. R ER(E)

VENTURES (Continued)
The Group’s contingent liabilities relating to the NEFBBERNEBRREEDE IR
Group's interests in JVs and the contingent liabilities FREBE UREECEAREZXARE
of the JVs themselves are disclosed in Note 38. The BRI E38 T c AEFEBENRESE
Group’s capital commitments in relation to its interests ¥R ZEREERKN E39(Db)
in JVs are disclosed in Note 39(b). g% o
Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group PATEAR2015F 12 A31HEER A
as at 31 December 2015, which, in the opinion of HAEBMEEAZAEFBSLDE -
the directors, are material to the Group. The joint THEEPEZRANER T BIKRAK
ventures as listed below have share capital consisting MAEBEHERE WA KFHE
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by RIMEETELSHE I o
the Group; the country of establishment is also their
principal place of business.
Nature of interests in JVs as at 31 December 2015 HZ2015F2014F 12831 1L R &
and 2014 EhEoEEEMY

Place of

business/ % of % of

country of ownership ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity establishment interest interest relationship  method

BEBY FEEER EERER
EREH ARFEER BAL Al BERY BRERE

2015 2014
Jilin CWP Milestone Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% 49% Note 1 Equity
EMERHARNEEFRAA HE G Bt
Jilin Taihe Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC 49% 49% Note 1 Equity
EMRRENETFRAA HE G ER%
Mengdong Century Concord New Energy The PRC 32.16% 32.16% Note 1 Equity
Co., Ltd. (Sub-group) (Note 2)
SRGBAMERERARA(NBRE) (H72) $BE G R
Taipusigi Union Wind Power Co., Ltd. The PRC 51% 51% Note 1 Equity
AEFEBEANEEERAA FE R R
Gansu Guazhou Century Concord Wind The PRC 51.45% 51.45% Note 1 Equity
Power Co., Ltd.

HRINGAEHNEEFERAF HE G ER%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESER(E)

VENTURES (Continued)

Nature of interests in JVs as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 (Continued)

Note 1: The above entities generate wind power to
the renewable energy industry in the PRC. The
Group sells products and provides consultancy,
construction and operation and maintenance
services to these entities.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2015, Mengdong Century
Concord New Energy Co., Ltd. included the
following JVs of the Group:

—  Mendgong Century Concord Kezuohougi
Wind Power Co., Ltd.

— Mengdong Century Concord
Kezuohougihuadeng Wind Power Co., Ltd.

—  Mengdong Century Concord Zhaluteqi
Wind Power Co., Ltd.

— Mengdong Century Concord
Zhalutegibaiyinchagan Wind Power Co.,
Ltd.

—  Mengdong Century Concord Zhaluteqi
Beisala Wind Power Co., Ltd.

—  Mendgong Century Concord Kailu Wind
Power Co., Ltd.

—  Zhenlai Huaxing Wind Power Co., Ltd.

These entities are unlisted companies and there is no

qguoted market price available for their shares.

Summarised financial information for joint

ventures

Set out below are the summarised unaudited
financial information for the above entities which are

accounted for using the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESRR(E)
VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised balance sheet EEAEREM
Gansu Guazhou
Jilin CWP Mengdong Century Century
Milestone Wind Jilin Taihe Wind ~ Concord New Energy  Topping Centre Ltd Concord Wind
Power Co., Ltd Power Co., Ltd.  Co., Ltd. (Sub-group) (Sub-group) Power Co., Ltd
ERERHARN ERREEN EREBAKER AEERAH HBINGEES
EERAR EERAR ERAR(WREE) (WEEE) EERAA

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
Fér TEr FEr  TEr  FEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr TiEn

Current ok

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBs%EET 6,045 23834 3806 25295 393,656 384660 1,816 51522 159460 134,884
Other current assets EhigAE

(excluding cash) (TeEzs) 33 15028 19598 27714 412,883 1100459 72570 76058 125813 207,05
Total current assets THAELT 9279 38862 23404 53000 806539 1485121 74,386 127580 285273 341,938
Financial liabilities CREE(THEENES

(excluding trade payables) &) (28151)  (56,375)  (76,644)  (94,462) (619,896) (1,166,316) (257,361) (1,665,324) (578,034) (154,483)
Other current liabilites ARBaE(RERRES

(including trade payables) &30 (59,097)  (62,302) —  (47,755) (100,486) (267,666) - —  (181,684) (254,087)
Total current liabilties it et (87,248) (118,677)  (76,644) (142,217) (720,382) (1,433.982) (257,361) (1,665,324) (759,718) (408,570)
Non-current ik

Assets EE 398453 434195 410250 459,937 3,977,433 4279729 189,998 1545011 1,279,290 1438217
Financial liabilities SHAR (262,599) (272,542) (244,694) (253,400) (2,910,153) (3,156,306) - - — (485,609)
Other liabilities EfegE - - - - - - - - - -
Total non-current liabilities ¥nHeELE (262,599) (272,542) (244,694) (253,400) (2,910,153) (3,156,306) - - —  (485,609)
Net assets BESE 57,885 81,838 112316 117329 1153437 1174560 7,083 7267 804845 885976
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESRR(E)
VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2 TE Uk 35 3R Ak
Jilin CWP Mengdong Century Gansu Guazhou
Milestone Wind Jilin Taihe Wind ~ Concord New Energy ~ Topping Centre Ltd  Century Concord Wind
Power Co., Ltd Power Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd (Sub-group) (Sub-group) Power Co., Ltd
ERERBAED ERREED RRBAHER HBERAT HENANBEES
EERLT SERAF ERAR(NEEE) (WEEE) EERAE

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fér  TEr  FEn  TEr FEn TEr  FEn TEr  FEr TET

Revenue KA 2913 4674 K273 33632 511036 380742 24585 40687 87472 147316
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FER&H (26,4000 27570) (27,257)  (26,738) (171,241) (157210} () (0319 (78423 (80,188)
Interest income AERA 81 160 130 82 31863 45340 135 50 622 305
Interest expense Flaxt (17252) (19502 (18911) (23,136) (213544) (214357  (7]) (6) (58751 (42,707)
Other expenses Bz (9359) (@0116) 7845 (8842) (105548) (51558) (25498)  (758) 19370 (23,780)

(Loss)/profit before provision FEWZIEH (Al 2 HEEE
for receivables £z (B8) /& (19,957)  (62,354) 2,080  (25002) 52,566 2,957 364 9,654 (29,710) 946
Provision for receivables WA - (662) - (1,69) - - - - - -

(Loss)/profit from continuing  EEEE%EKY

operations (8 EH (19.957)  (63016) 2,080 (26694 52,566 2957 364 9654 (29,710) 946
Income tax credit/(expense) fiEHEs/ (R%) - 275 (168) 395 (3,188)  (4,990) (176) (2,419 (895 2,905
Net (loss)/profit from BEREERY

continuing operations (B&)/&H 58 (19957) (62,741) 1912 (26299) 49378  (2,033) 188 7,235 (30,605 3,851

Other comprehensive (loss)/ ~ Eft2E(F#E) /i
income (3,996) (764)  (6,925) (598)  (70,503)  (3,960) (432) 32 (50,526)  (2,946)

Total comprehensive (loss)/ ~ 2T(E8)/ hE#E

income (23,953) (63,505  (5013) (26,897) (21,125  (5993) (244) 7267 (81,131) 905
The information above reflects the amounts presented LA EER RN E & REEZY
in the unaudited financial statements of the joint HERERFP 20 2 £ FE(MIEANE B EL
ventures (and not the Group’s share of those ZEeBoHD)  ERAERHEGE
amounts) adjusted for differences in accounting PEZEFTREEZEELRE -

policies between the Group and the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19. RABDESER(E)

VENTURES (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial

information

Reconciliation of the summarised unaudited financial

information presented to the carrying amount of its

interests in joint ventures

MHESBE2HR

Rl EEMBERANRGELR Y

#mREEZ SR

Jilin CWP Mengdong Century Gansu Guazhou
Milestone Wind Jilin Taihe Wind ~ Concord New Energy  Topping Centre Ltd  Century Concord Wind
Power Co., Ltd Power Co., Ltd. ~ Co., Ltd (Sub-group) (Sub-group) Power Co., Ltd
ERERHAEN ENERED SREATER REERAR HBINGEED
BEERLH RERRAA BRAR(NESE) (WEEE) RERRAA
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Fér  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  FEn  TEr  TEn TEn
Opening net assetsasat W18 1A 2
1 January BERE 81,838 145343 117,329 144226 1,174,562 1180555 7,267 — 885,976 885,071
(Loss)fprofit for the year KER(BR)/&H) (19,957)  (62,741) 1,912 (26299) 49378  (2,033) 188 7235 (30605 3851
Other comprehensive (loss)  EAt2E (&) /Wi
income (3,996) (764)  (6,925) (598)  (70,503)  (3,960) (432) 32 (50,526)  (2,946)
Closing net assets EREERE 57885 81838 112316 117,39 1153437 1174562 7,023 7267 804,845 885976
Interest shareholding R 49% 49% 49% 49%  32.16%  32.16% 80% 80%  51.45%  51.45%
Interests in joint ventures REELEZER 28364 40101 55035 57491 370,945 377739 5618 5814 414,093 455835
Unrealised profits and deferred 3 AGANER 2 REREF
tax assets credited to the RELHEEE 78
share of results, net 1,381 1,403 923 938 4,159 3923 - - 842 1,646
Cumulative unrealised profits, &t AERAF -
net ] (18731)  (21238)  (13,444)  (15177) (108,018) (111,761) - — M7 (19
Other adjustments EfiEE - - - - - - - — 6000 269
Carrying value FEE 11,014 20266 42514 43252 267,086 269,901 5,618 5814 423342 457,987
198 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED MEFEREBERA A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEHRRME
19. INTERESTS IN AND ADVANCES TO JOINT 19, RAEO% % (E)
VENTURES (Continued)
Set out below is, in aggregate, the carrying amounts AT H I AREBRIRBEREAR P
of the Group’s interests in all individually immaterial BEMNTERGELE R REMA
joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity A& e
method.
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount of the Group's REEZ #EHREE
interests 848,901 826,164
The Group's share of: NEE R -
Profit for the period = S A 69,537 70,667
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2mEE (43,255) (921)
Total comprehensive income 2HKEREE 26,282 69,746
20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Raw materials R 93 166
Work in progress TR m 79,636 152,885
Finished goods RIRK T 98,592 197,323
178,321 350,374

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in the consolidated income
statement amounted to HK$3,024,000,000 (2014:
HK$2,394,687,000). As at 31 December 2015, work
in progress with cost of HK$10,510,000 (2014: Nil)
was considered as obsolete and provision was made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 21. €T BE(RER)

200

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

TRTAZEFRREANSRAFE

been applied to the line items below: m
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets as per balance sheet REESBRZEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAREABRZ
profit or loss PRIEE
Equity securities (Note 25) EwmE A (Mt 25) 18,292 —
Available-for-sale At s
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE
(Note 22) (Hfat22) 30,123 697
Loans and receivables ER R EBERRK
Trade and bill receivables (Note 23) FEWE SRR (A7E23) 1,549,835 550,183
Deposits and other receivables e RH MR IR
(Note 24) (K15t 24) 297,725 518,521
Amounts due from associates FEUNES & N B R IB (A5 18)
(Note 18) 129,253 59,599
Amount due from associates for BRI FEUE & AT
contract work (Note 18) SRE(MiZ18) 43,840 26,393
Amounts due from JVs (Note 19) JEW A L EFIANEE19) 979,301 988,294
Amounts due from JVs for contract aRIEZEWEEDEE
work (Note 19) SR(HEE19) 92,295 60,639
Loans to JVs (Note 19) TEaEREZERNF19) 135,667 175,457
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) RekReFEIER
(K15t 26) 1,905,131 1,105,341
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEEEBRZAE
Other financial liabilities at amortised ~ LABE SR AERHE 2 M2 Rl
cost &
Trade and bill payables (Note 28) BB SRR RRR
(Htat28) 3,965,835 2,355,188
Other payables and accruals At FEA FUE R BT RUE
(Note 29) (K15t29) 497,856 311,487
Amounts due to JVs (Note 19) JERAEEFIB(H 7 19) 84,636 47,679
Amounts due to JVs for contract ERIEZENGEDE
work (Note 19) SF(HaE19) 40,054 33,290
Loans from a JV (Note 19) SECEZERAEE19) 91,576 155,833
Borrowings (Note 30) B (A5t 30) 3,807,076 1,716,242

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRERME
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. AHHESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets include the A ESREEYRIT -
following:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T/8T
Unlisted equity securities — the PRC RETHERFS — FEBRA 3,672 697
RMB financial products ANEREEIEBE M 26,451 —
30,123 697
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TETT
At 1 January ®W1A1H 697 —
Addition NE 254,275 —
Loss of control of subsidiaries KREM B AT 2 2B
(Note 36(d)) (K12t 36(d)) (223,608) 697
Exchange differences EHER (1,241) —
At 31 December 12 A31H 30,123 697
The carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial At EcREEIRTEEEE A
assets approximate their fair values and are BEAE  BUARBIE-
denominated in RMB.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting RBEPWE Y SAEERR Y IERE
date is the carrying value of the debt securities BrEEEEREYEEHEES R
classified as avaiable-for-sale. None of these financial BE o B REEE B RE -

assets is either past due or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES 23. EWESRIAREE

202

2015 2014

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEULE AR 1,178,867 465,333
Tariff adjustment receivables FEUEE TR 368,165 68,833
Bill receivables UL ZE 2,803 16,017
1,549,835 550,183

Tariff adjustment receivables represented the
government subsidies on renewable energy for
ground projects to be received from the State Grid
based on the existing government policies. As at
31 December 2015, tariff adjustment receivables of
HK$314,445,000 and HK$53,720,000 were arising
from electricity generated for the years ended 2015
and 2014, respectively. As at 31 December 2014,
tariff adjustment receivables of HK$57,855,000
and HK$10,978,000 were arising from electricity
generated for the years ended 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of
the trade receivables, based on invoice date, was as
follows:

EREEABRFEBRRERBITEN
B EBRBEREELFTWRIZHE
AHEERREEB 2B MEAL - 72015
F12A318 EREEAEZREZ
314,445,000 7T } 53,720,000 JT
o B B R2015F K20144F 2 FT 3%
M2014F 128318 & I
B (B ¥ & X1\ 257,855,000 T &
10,978,000/ 7T 79 Bl 2K B 0 2014 5F %
2013 ZigEEE -

= =
B =2 °

MR2015%F 12 A31 8 EWRBFBRRZ
RER DM (ABZEREAE)INT ¢

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FEIT

Within 3 months 3EAN 413,322 306,920
3 to 6 months 3z 61EA 228,750 75,918
6 to 12 months 62 121@A 455,626 32,086
Over 1 year FBiB 1 F 44,220 13,805
Over 2 years BiE2F 36,949 36,604
1,178,867 465,333

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

BEHEREEARD A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EWEBESRIFARERE(Z)

The Group's credit terms granted to customers range
from 30 to 180 days. On certain construction revenue
and equipment sales projects, the Group generally
grants project final acceptance period and retention
period to its customers range from 1 to 2 years
from the date of acceptance according to the sales
agreements signed between the Group and customers.

As at 31 December 2015, the maturity date of the
bill receivables was “within 3 months” and “3 to 6
months” (2014: Same).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bill
receivables approximate their fair values and majority
of trade and bill receivables are denominated in RMB.

Trade receivables and tariff adjustment receivables
of the Group that are not past due and not
impaired amounted to HK$1,187,885,000 (2014:
HK$343,887,000). These balances relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables and
tariff adjustment receivables of HK$359,147,000
(2014: HK$190,279,000) are past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no financial difficulty
and based on past experience, the overdue amounts
can be recovered. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables and tariff adjustment receivables is as
follows:

AEERTEPZEEHNF30E180
BAE - ETHIWARREHSERD
HAREKERBRRES  RHRANR
REBER PR 2 HEWRETIHE -
KU ATER B B 1 22 F R4 EE
D EWE B R -

M2015512 A31H @ fE U Z # 2 5
B#(3EAR]IEI3E6EA 1(2014 :
—5) -

R E SRR N ERER 2 RHEER
NAREERE - BABHEEESER
NMEWREHAAREE -

AEBEBBARFERECERE SHE
% EW B E TR A1,187,885,000
7 7£(2014 ¢ 343,887,000/8 7T ) » &%
LEBPREHARNERICHE R

o

il

MR2015%F 128318 BWE S ERXK
o & U8 E (B §8 & F0359,147,0007 7T
(2014 : 190,279,000 7T ) B % EA{E I

BREEZBIEP - BERNELSR
BEHFIRR AME - ZFRKE SRR
KEREERHBERZEREDONMAT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within 3 months 3EAR 38,670 95,043
3 to 6 months 3E61{EA 88,779 3,918
6 to 12 months 6= 121EA 127,067 39,389
Over 1 year BiE1F 104,631 51,929
359,147 190,279
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ma

B R M

23.

204

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)

There is no provision as of 31 December 2015 (2014:
Nil).

Included in trade receivables as at 31 December 2015,
there were HK$54,882,000 (2014: HK$46,953,000)
and HK$428,229,000 (2014: HK$43,485,000)
retention money held in respect of construction
revenue and equipment sales, respectively, in
which retention money of HK$47,109,000 (2014:
HK$68,331,000) were aged over 12 months based on
invoice date but not impaired.

As at 31 December 2015, the trade receivables
balances amounting to HK$381,846,000 (2014:
HK$103,191,000) were pledged to secure bank

borrowings wholly repayable after 5 years (Note 30).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is their fair values. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

23. EWESRIAREE(E)

2015412 A 31 EEHE (2014 + &) -

201561243180 B E 5 K&K
PREHEEBERARREHSHB
EHEERES D H A54,882,000/% T
(2014 : 46,953,000 JT. ) } 428,229,000
7 70(2014 : 43,485,0008 7T ) » HHh A
47,109,000 75(2014 : 68,331,000/87T)
BEZEZAMHCEERESREREIR2
fﬂ@éﬁi»ﬁ@ o

20159128318 BKRE SEXR
2 45 & & %8381,846,00078 £(2014 ¢
103,191,000 L) E K IBE A AR &
FREBEEZRITERZERME
30) °

RBER  ERARRZ & EERRA
EREQAEBE AREYLERSAEM
HIRIETELR ©

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

24, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

24, ANNIE - BERHEMERKER

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments TR IR 398,444 473,469
Deposits e 4,135 2,598
Other receivables E b pE U SR IR 272,377 493,495
Loans to third parties 1 1R 2 B3R 21,213 22,528
Value-added tax recoverable ] Y [B] 1% (F 55 488,050 180,313

Amounts due from customers for ERIEzREEF%
contract work (Note 27) (Maz27) 11,774 9,820
1,195,993 1,182,223
Less: Provision for other receivables JB - HAREURERIAR 2 R(E — (100)
1,195,993 1,182,123
Less: Non-current portion S ETRENEE D (384,051) (253,391)
811,942 928,732
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET

Denominated in: A3 E®ETHE -

— HK$ — BT 71,160 14,079
— RMB — AR 1,021,861 1,128,749
— US$ — Xt 102,972 39,295
1,195,993 1,182,123

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximate their fair

values.

Loans to third parties are interest-bearing at 9%
(2014: 9%) per annum and have no fixed terms of

repayment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25. MAABHEIAEE I SHEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBEIEAEBZZSHEERTE

include the following:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed securities FRARKRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong MREE LMD MEES 18,292 —
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. HERESEEER

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cash at banks and in hand ROTFEFAMRE 1,905,131 1,105,341
Maximum exposure to credit risk xa iz B 1,905,131 1,105,007

Denominated in: AT A EEETE -
— HK$ — BT 27,702 88,100
— RMB — AR# 1,852,778 898,124
— US$ — ETT 24,651 119,117
1,905,131 1,105,341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 26. ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ B (,é?)
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. ARKE EIARERKEMEK - R
However, under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control o kEREAINES IR E RINESIE
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale & 2 4508 - EE RMNESIERE o
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, IAREERBRTRCD EREEITINESE
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other BEZRITHBARBEREMEE -
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business in the PRC.
As at 31 December 2015, the weighted effective M2015F 12 A31H REEHR T4
interest rate on the Group’s bank balances is 0.37% BRZIMEERFMEA037% (2014 :
(2014: 0.28%). 0.28%) °
27. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 27. BEEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The aggregate costs incurred and BEAZBKAREER
recognised profits to date I 2,850,260 2,503,319
Less: Progress billings JB AR (2,750,282) (2,527,360)
Net balance sheet position for ongoing HEAR ZFEEBER
construction contracts R 99,978 (24,041)
Analysis: Fax)ige
Amounts due from customers for aRIEZERSE
contract work
— associates (Note 18) — BB RRI(HE18) 43,840 26,393
— JVs (Note 19) — BEENFE19) 92,295 60,639
— third parties (Note 24) — B=F (Mt 24) 11,774 9,820
Amounts due to customers for contract &R IIZZET £ %8
work (Note 29) (K1at29) (47,931) (120,893)
99,978 (24,041)
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ma

B R M

27.

28.

208

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (Continued) 27. BEAR(E)
Included in trade receivables (note 23), amounts 201512 A31H BBEREKRE S
due from associates (note 18) and amounts due A (K §E23) « FEUREE & Q&) ZOE (K
from JVs (note 19) as at 31 December 2015, there 1) REWAS L X IE(ME19)E
were HK$54,882,000 (2014: HK$46,953,000), 2 IREHBEBZREZS S A A
HK$1,604,000 (2014: HK$3,393,000) and 54,882,000/ 70(2014 : 46,953,000
HK$66,176,000 (2014: HK$55,093,000) retention 7T )~ 1,604,000 7£(2014 : 3,393,000
money held in respect of construction in progress, B gL ) M66,176,000% (2014 :
respectively. 55,093,000/87T) °
Included in amounts due to associates (note 18) as R2015F 12 A31H ' BERERNEE
at 31 December 2015 was HK$2,498,000 (2014: Nil) NEFEMNEI18) HAEZTEEB 2
representing advance received from customers in BT P 25 & 552,498,000 7T
respect of construction in progress. (2014 : &FT)
TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES 28. EHESZRIAREE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Trade payables BB SRR 2,910,400 1,945,432
Bill payables ENES 1,055,435 409,756
3,965,835 2,355,188

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
28. TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES (Continued) 28. ENESERREEE)
As at 31 December 2015, the ageing analysis of the R2015%F 128318 ' ENEBSEZRY
trade payables, based on invoice date, was as follows: BEEA DT (AR EZEFH AN T -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 3 months 3EAR 515,130 1,031,298
3 to 6 months 3Z6fEA 544,885 553,327
6 to 12 months 6= 1218A 912,284 22,508
Over 1 year BRI F 665,673 315,271
Over 2 years @2 F 272,428 23,028
2,910,400 1,945,432
As at 31 December 2015, the maturity date of bill H 1201512 8310 @ ERZ#E3H
payables was “within 3 months” and “3 to 6 months” BEIBEANIRI3ZEGMEA (2014 :
(2014: Same). —E) e
The carrying amounts of trade and bill payables ENESERREEZEEHERARR
approximate their fair values and majority of trade BEMRE MABDENESERER
and bill payables are denominated in RMB. BHAAREEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

29. PAYABLES FOR CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS, 29, EERESENES HtEAZ

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS B FELHEIE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Payables for construction in progress 18 B &k 2 FERTBREFR 353,682 115,081
Other payables and accruals H b A 5RE K FERT R 144,174 196,406
Receipt in advance TR ERSK 46,311 97,538
Amounts due to customers for contract &R LIEV ENEF 458
work (Note 27) (Btet27) 47,931 120,893
592,098 529,918
Denominated in: IATYEEEETE -
— HK$ — AT 7.416 60,026
— RMB — AREE 570,472 464,102
— US$ — X 14,210 5,790
592,098 529,918
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables AN B 2 H A FE AT 2R 0E R fE ST 2B T B
and accruals approximate their fair values. FEEAL AL EBEMRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
30. BORROWINGS 30. AR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings (Note (i) RITEIRMZZ ) 2,286,836 773,588
Finance lease liabilities (Note (iii)) RERERBEHF ) 1,061,005 585,168
Total principal amount ViNCF k] 3,347,841 1,358,756
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings (Note (i) RITEIRMZ ) 343,187 308,836
Finance lease liabilities (Note (iii)) REREEBE A i) 116,048 48,650
Total principal amount WiNC AR R 459,235 357,486
Total borrowings fER4EER 3,807,076 1,716,242

Notes:

Mat -

@)

(if)

Approximately 99% (2014: 96%) of the total carrying
amounts of borrowings are denominated in RMB,
and 3%(2014:0%) of the borrowing is subject to
fixed interest rate and 97%(2014:100%) is subject
to floating interest rate. While 1% (2014: 4%) of the
total carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated
in US$, 58% (2014: 11%) of the borrowing is subject
to fixed interest rate and 42%(2014:89%) is subject to
floating interest.

Total borrowings include secured liabilities of
HK$3,317,687,000(2014: HK$1,339,257,000), 99%
of which are floating rate bank borrowings and 1% is
of which is subject to fixed rate. HK$2,968,266,000
(2014:HK$1,296,158,000) of the secured
liabilities are non-current, while HK$349,421,000
(2014:HK$43,099,000) are current. These liabilities
are secured by the buildings and equipment under
property, plant and equipment and the trade
receivables of the Group.
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RATIE R 2 IRE 4B (E XV 99% (2014 :
96%) A A R % 5 B H 3%
(2014 : 0%) A E R E 58 - 97%
(2014 : 100%) LASF E R E & B - M
RITERZIREREZ1% (2014 -
4%) LA ETTETE - Eh EE F R
FEMZEHF R B DR B58%
(2014 : 11%)M42%(2014 : 89%) °

EREEpEAEREE3,317,687,000
#76(2014 ¢ 1,339,257,000587T) + ¥
BZERTER BEAEAGEF
2,968,266,0003%8 7T(2014 : 1,296,158,000
BIL) AIERE) - M 349,421,00078 T
(2014 : 43,099,000 7T) &R & %
ZEBUAEEDE  BEREZHET
ZIEFREB AR EYE SRR
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

30. 1BR(E)

Wit (%)

(iii)

The fair values of the non-current borrowings are
estimated using discounted cash flow calculations
based upon the Group’s current incremental borrowing
rates for similar types of borrowings with maturities
consistent with those remaining for the debt being
valued which is level 2 fair value. The carrying amounts
of current portion of the borrowings approximate
their fair values, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the lessor
in the event of default of the lease liabilities by the

(iii)

ERBERZATEEIRERESR
EWBTRETHE - WA BERED
HEEARERERE 2B ZEBHARE
HAER 10 48 — Bz SR B3R 17 4R 38 5 5KF
XERS2E - RBERZIREEER
ERFEERE  MREFZAZE -

EEEARREEES  AEEEEM
BRBEBEAHEA -

Group.
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum @EHE — KERERK
lease payments
No later than 1 year 195N 172,741 51,024
Later than 1 year and no later than REINTEESTFMH
5 years 691,954 410,413
Later than 5 years 5FE 586,703 398,782
1,451,398 860,219
Future finance charges on finance leases KAKFEMEZFHEERA (274,345) (226,401)
Present value of finance lease liabilities RtEHEGBBZRE 1,177,053 633,818
The present value of finance lease MEHEAECREZIWN
liabilities is as follows: T~
No later than 1 year 16K 116,048 48,650
Later than 1 year and no later than RE1EESFRH
5 years 530,502 336,332
Later than 5 years S5ELE 530,503 248,836
1,177,053 633,818
212 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED MEFEREBERA A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHmRME
30. BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. B (4E)
Borrowings at principal amount were repayable as ERBEFRCEREERALBEIEEN
follows: T
Bank borrowings Finance lease liabilities Total
BAER REHEEE L
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TEx TAT TEx TAT TEx TAT
Within 1 year 15/ 343,187 308,836 116,048 48,650 459,235 357,486
Between 1 and 2 years RE1ZE2ER 237,593 46,967 132,625 99377 370,218 146,344
Between 2 and 5 years REIEFSFH 762,164 195131 397,877 241,873 1,160,041 437,004
Over 5 years SELE 1,287,079 531,490 530,503 243,918 1,817,582 775,408
2,630,023 1,082,424 1,177,053 633,818 3,807,076 1,716,242
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest REEE R 7 INETRFERNT :

rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at
the reporting date are as follows:

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

6 months or less 6 EAUAT 833,792 1,526,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMB|ERME
30. BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. fBR(#E)
The carrying amounts and fair values of the non- ERBEFRCEREERALBEIEEN
current borrowings are as follows: T
Carrying amount Fair value
IREE AREHE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ETT FEIT FAET TET
Bank borrowings RITER 2,286,836 773,588 2,286,836 773,588
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE 1,061,005 585,168 1,061,005 585,168
3,347,841 1,358,756 3,347,841 1,358,756
The weighted effective interest rates at the reporting REEH 2 MEBRFIENT

date were as follows:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Bank borrowings RITIE 5.15% 5.74%
Finance lease liabilities MEREAE 4.90% 6.15%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. KX
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: EERITRME T @R
Nominal
No. of shares value
RGO EE HE
000’s HK$°000
Fhg FEIT
As at 1 January 2014: R2014F1818: 8,018,745 80,187
Subscription of new ordinary shares REGREE 0.01 BT
of HK$0.01 each (Note i) g (Hiti) 880,000 8,800
Issue of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 AT FE B AE M T B
each on exercise of share options M{E0.01 Bz Ed
(Note 32) R (HraE 32) 47,490 475
As at 31 December 2014: 7 20145§12H31R8 :
8,946,234,965 ordinary shares 8,946,234,965 K
of HK$0.01 each EREEO0.01E T
ZEBER 8,946,235 89,462
Subscription of new ordinary shares RIEFRAE0.01 BT
of HK$0.01 each (Note i) B (i) — —
Issue of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 AITEEAEMEITEM
each on exercise of share options HE0.01 Bz LAk
(Note 32) (Btet32) — —
As at 31 December 2015: 7 20156 12H31R8 :
8,946,234,965 ordinary shares 8,946,234,965 K
of HK$0.01 each EREEO0.01E T
BBER 8,946,235 89,462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31. BAR(#E)
Note: Biat -

216

@)

(if)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement executed
by the Company on 18 December 2013, a total
of 880,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of
HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.43 per share
was subscribed by Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation
Limited, a joint stock limited company incorporated in
the PRC with limited liability, raising net proceeds of
HK$378,400,000. The subscription was completed on
19 March 2014. During the year, such net proceeds
were used for the development of solar and wind
power projects and as working capital of the Group,
which included repayment of debt.

During the year, the Group purchased a total of
225,030,000 of the Company’s ordinary shares from
the market at a price of approximately HK$0.52 per
share, for a total consideration of approximately HK$
115,997,000. 151,500,000 ordinary shares were held
on trust as treasury shares, which will be awarded to
the relevant employees according to the vesting period
as set out in the share award scheme. 73,530,000
ordinary shares were held by the Group as treasury
shares and had been cancelled subsequent to the year
end.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

0)

BIEARER2013F12 5188 %L
ZREWRE - —RAPRER AT
N ZBRNBERAREERHERRG
BRAR([EERH]) - LLEK0.43
B ETBEREGREMBEO0OE
JC 2 i % 880,000,000 % © R B AT
8 378 ¥ %8.378,400,000 78 JT © Ik 3R
BEHOR2014F3819B8%K - ¥
ANEEN - MERBFHECARER
HKRRREER  REAREEZE
BE®  PIEEERESE-

NEEF NEBILERHS2HE
TZERAMBFREEARRZYE
7 % 225,030,000 - A EBEH 5
115,997,000 Jt ° 151,500,000 f% 2
TEBRAGETAEREERIEE B
ARETRANREEEEES 2 RH
LB ET & » 73,530,000 f% 2 & 8 A A
AEBMERBEGFERIEE - WRFERE
ZFEH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. KRBT RERESZ

()

Share Award scheme (i) BoERE:E
On 15 June 2015, the directors of the Company MN2015F6 150 - A AFESE
approved the share award scheme under which St E—ITBIRMEEE 2 - BIA
shares will be awarded to the Group’s employees HEAEE 2 BB ([ EE =t
as an incentive (“Share Award Scheme”). 2l1) - RERGN RENETE - NEE
Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award EIEE—E5EA - LAEBE IR 5
Scheme, the Group has engaged a trustee, for Bzt 2 R SR OEE T 2 a1
the purpose of administering the Share Award BEEZZERM - 2015F AR A
Scheme and holding the awarded shares before ZEEe 2 EZRKDEREE®
they are vested. During 2015 the directors of &2 2%561,700,0000% © ZE WK’
the Company approved an aggregate number 19 1 FA LA B2 B AR R AR 1) 22 R 51 &1 5%
of 61,700,000 shares under the Share Award FEETERZBEEES - RAE
Scheme and they will be awarded to the relevant BEAN YEERHCEBERES -
employees according to the vesting period set
out in the Share Award Scheme. During the
year, no shares were allocated to the employees.
Movements in the number of awarded shares HEIR D EERFSENEHAZ
and the fair value at date of grant were as DNAREFHIET -
follows:
2015 2014

As at 1 January W1HA1TH — —
Awarded B 4ERE

(fair value per share of HK$0.47) (B AAR1E0.47E7TT) 61,700,000 —
As at 31 December M12A31H 61,700,000 —

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(Continued)

()

(ii)

218

Share Award scheme (Continued)
The remaining vesting periods of the awarded

shares outstanding as at 31 December 2015
were as follows:

Fair value at date for grant

32. RORBERBRETR(E)

()

Remaining vesting period

B ST &I (4F)

MA2015F 12 A31H  ®WARITIE
LEIR D 2 FIspR FHAE ST -

Number of awarded
shares outstanding

i ARITHEZ
REAZAREE FIsr R T 5 B A
— HK$0.4738 7T — 0.25 years £ 24,680,000
— HK$0.47 7% 7T — 1.25 years 18,510,000
— HK$0.47 & 7T — 2.25 years 18,510,000
61,700,000

The Group recognised total expense of
HK$15,824,000 (2014: Nil) for the year ended
31 December 2015 in relation to share award
scheme of the Company.

Share Option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted
on 16 April 2007 as an incentive to the Group's
employees and business associates (“Share Option
Scheme”). This scheme shall be valid for a period
of ten years ending on 15 April 2017.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which option may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme of the Company may not exceed
10 percent of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The maximum entitlement of
each eligible participant in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme
of the Company in any 12 month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

(ii)

RNEFEPE E2015F12 A31H
IEFE RARERE 2 BRE
HRT #8585 15,824,000 7T
(2014 : &) -

BRET S

NN A 2 B IR R ET &l 72 2007
ARV6BEERM FERAHETAE
EEEMEBHEAT ZHEN([HE
MREEETED - WETEI 2B AT
& R2017F4B158ER °

BRREBEAREZERETER T
RHBREr R z&2RNHBE T
BHEBBAR AR B BER 82 R4
HEZETKRAZ10% - £ &K
SEEWNEM12ME A PERNTE
RIBAR R BB BIR L 2 B
RMERT RS TRIT RN AR
TEBEEBITRMEEZ1% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(Continued)

(ii) Share Option scheme (Continued)
Movements in the number of share options

outstanding and their related weighted average

exercise prices are as follows:

32. RORBERBRETR(E)

(i) MBIRMESEBI(E)

MR TR ER B 2 B B R H A
WMET T EEET

2015 2014
Average Average
exercise exercise
price per price per
share Options share Options
BR¥Y T
THE fE I v 1T1E(8 AL
HKS$ (thousands) HK$  (thousands)
FET (F#) FET (F17)
As at 1 January 2015 720156 % 2014 F
and 2014 1H18 0.837 254,160 0.755 314,610
Expired BEE 0.890 (104,140) 0.302 (380)
Forfeited BRM 0.800 (11,580) 0.833 (12,580)
Exercised 217f% — — 0.302 (47,490)
As at 31 December R20155 K 2014 F
2015 and 2014 12A31H 0.800 138,440 0.837 254,160

Out of the 138,440,000 (2014: 254,160,000)
outstanding options, 138,440,000 (2014:
216,655,000) options were exercisable.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

138,440,000 (2014 :
254,160,00017 ) i K 17 £ B &
# & 138,440,00015(2014 :
216,655,000 17 ) BB AR HE AT AT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. RSB ERERESS(E)
(Continued)

Details of the movement in the number of share B E 2 ZHHEESH T ¢
options are as follows:

Number of
Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  Numberof share options  Market price
share options ~ share options ~ share options  share options ~ share options  outstanding per share

outstanding granted exercised forfeited expired asat  atexercise

Name or category of  Date of grant of as at during the during the during the during the 31 December  date of share
participant share options 1 January 2015 year year year year 2015 options
#2015% #2015% SREHR

1418 AEE KER AER AFE  12A3B KR
HAfTEZ EftZ Efifiz BANZ BRE  HAfREZ L
SRAEZIER BRECRHAS  BMREHE  BEEHE  BREEE  BREEE CBREYE  BREME  o0HER

HKS
BT
Chairman
S
Liu Shunxing 4 January 2010 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 - N/A
e 201081548 MR
3 January 2011 15,000,000 — — — — 15,000,000 N/A
W011E1A3A el
Executive directors
#1788
Yang Zhifeng 4 January 2010 6,600,000 — — — 6,600,000 - N/A
ARl W10E1 A48 NER
3 January 2011 10,000,000 — — — — 10,000,000 N/A
W11E1A3A el
Wang Xun 4 January 2010 6,600,000 — — — 6,600,000 - N/A
If 201051 A48 iyl
3 January 2011 10,000,000 — — — — 10,000,000 N/A
W011E1A3A TR
Liu Jianhong 4 January 2010 6,600,000 - - - 6,600,000 - N/A
) 201081548 MR
3 January 2011 10,000,000 — — — - 10,000,000 N/A
W11E1A3A il
Yu Weizhou 4 January 2010 6,600,000 - - - 6,600,000 - N/A
R 01051 A4R TR
3 January 2011 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 N/A
W011E1A38 oyl
Zhou Zhizhong 4 January 2010 6,600,000 — — — 6,600,000 - N/A
e 1051 A4R TER
3 January 2011 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 N/A
01E1A3H TEH
Subtotal 108,000,000 - - - 43,000,000 65,000,000
gt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

Details of the movement in the number of share

options are as follows: (Continued)

32. RORBERBRETR(E)

BRERBE Z2BHBHINWT - (&)

Number of Number of
share options ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  Numberof share options  Market price
outstanding  share options  share options  share options  share options  outstanding per share
as at granted exercised forfeited expired asat  atexercise
Name or category of  Date of grant of 1January  during the during the during the during the 31 December  date of share
participant share options 2015 year year year year 2015 options
#2015% R2015% BRRG
1818 EE REE REE REE  12B3A RERE
HATEZ ERLZ gfifz &z BHE  HAFTRZ GEEE]
BEAREHER BREZRILES  BREZE  BRENE  BREERE  BREHE BREME  BREHE  205EK
HKS
AT
Subtotal 108,000,000 - - — 43,000,000 65,000,000 N/A
It ol
Non-executive director
FufES
Ko WingYan, Samantha 4 January 2010 3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000 — N/A
B 201051748 TR
3 January 2011 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 N/A
W11E1A3A AR
Independent non-
executive directors
BukHTES
Yap Fat Suan, Henry 4 January 2010 800,000 - - - 800,000 — N/A
L3 201051748 TER
3 January 2011 800,000 - - - - 800,000 N/A
W1E1A3E ki
Wong Yau Kar, 4 January 2010 800,000 — - — 800,000 — N/A
David,BBS,JP 201051548 TR
ERE 8BS, P 3 January 2011 800,000 - - - - 800,000 N/A
0115143 ki
Other employees
EthEE
In aggregate 4 January 2010 56,540,000 - - - 56,540,000 - N/A
ait 201051748 Delii
3 January 2011 79,420,000 - - 11,580,000 — 67,840,000 N/A
W1E1A3E ki
Total 254,160,000 - - 11,580,000 104,140,000 138,440,000
h
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME
32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. REOEBERERESR(Z)
(Continued)
Details of the movement in the number of share RSB 28 EHT - (&)
options are as follows: (Continued)
These options were granted subject to the following R AR TSEEE TR
vesting requirement:
On 1st anniversary of the date of grant R RIS BF 25%
On 2nd anniversary of the date of grant R AEE 2 AF 25%
On 3rd anniversary of the date of grant R RIS 3 EF 25%
On 4th anniversary of the date of grant REHASE4IEF 25%
The Group recognised the total expense of HK$26,000 AEEREZ2015F 12 A318ILEFE
(2014: HK$4,894,000) for the year ended 31 RARFRE 2 BREBRRAZ HBEA
December 2015 in relation to share options granted 26,0007 (2014 : 4,894,000/ 7T ) °
by the Company. Also, the Group reversed the WH EZE2015F12831HEFE
total expense which provided in previous years of N EEE i i B A SR B IR E AR RS B E
HK$7,000 (2014: HK$1,796,000) for the year ended & HBE%A57,000%T(2014 :
31 December 2015 in relation to the forfeiture of 1,796,000/ 7T) °
share options.
Details of share options outstanding at the end of the RERWRITEZERESTESEY W
year are set out bellows: T
Share options outstanding
Market price (thousands)
per share on HATEEREF4)
Exercise  dateof grant  Share option 31 December 31 December
price of options granted 2015 2014
sREH
RERE
Grant date Exercise period REAHZ WISE 20145
RiAH 8 %8 Rk RuBRE 128318 12A318
HKS HKS (thousands)
AT AT (F4)
4 January 2010 4 January 2011 to 3 January 2015 0.89 0.89 130,000 - 104,140
01051748 1E1R4EZ01551 738
3 January 2011 3 January 2012 to 2 January 2016 08 08 200,000 138,440 150,020
WI1ETA3A 012F1R382201651 728
330,000 138,440 254,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
33. RESERVES 33. f#E

The details of movements in the Group's reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 69 and 70.

34. DEFERRED TAX 34.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

4 > ) B B 55 60 B A
T0BZ A BNEDE -

EXERBDRAAEEINEREERR

ERNGEBERZEMN W E 2 HE
o
Ean

RIEFSHEEMEEMGHEBEZD
i N

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Deferred tax assets: RIEATSREE -
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered  — ELEFETEE
after more than 12 months R 12 18 A % Uk (18,920) (7,418)
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered  — EIEFTFEHEE
within 12 months #5712 18 8 AUk E — —
(18,920) (7,418)
Deferred tax liabilities: RIEFMEHERE
— Deferred tax liability to be — EEAERAE
recovered after more than R 12 18 A % Uk E
12 months 5,538 6,023
— Deferred tax liability to be — EEREHAE
recovered within 12 months #1218 A Ak — —
5,538 6,023
Deferred tax assets (net) EEFTBHREE(FE) (13,382) (1,395)

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

20154F %% 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHmRME
34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 34, EEBIEE)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities FRELEFMENEERABEZEZHN
during the year is as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EIEFTEREE
Unrealised gains Investment tax credits Tax losses Total
ARRNE REHEH LIPS @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FET TET FET TET FET TET FET TET
Balance brought forward ~ &R&4 3,384 8,810 4,034 4239 - 2,119 7418 15,168

Credited/(debited) to the 1B &/ (GF A )& diss
consolidated income 1)

statement (Note 11) 12,607 77 (186) (189) - (2,103) 12,421 (2,215)
Loss of control over REMBLF B

subsidiaries - (5,450) - - - - - (5,450)
Exchange differences EREE (691) (53) (228) (16) - (16) (919) (85)
Balance carried gmpg

forward 15,300 3,384 3,620 4,034 - - 18,920 7418
During the year, the Group has recognised deferred FRN - AEEREMBRARETRSZ
tax assets for unrealised gains on transactions BRI E LB 2 IRER KK L
between subsidiaries of the Group and investment tax RIELETHEE o

credits on government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B R M

34.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred tax assets recognised are expected to be
recovered after more than 12 months. The deferred
tax assets recognised relate to temporary differences
arising from transactions between subsidiaries of the
Group regarding the construction of power plants.
The credit to the consolidated income statement
represents originating temporary differences arising
from these transactions while the charge to the
consolidated income statement represents the
reversal of temporary differences as a result of the
depreciation of power plants. The deferred tax assets
recognised relate to investment tax credits arising
from tax benefits received only for investment in
specific assets. The credit to the consolidated income
statement represents originating temporary differences
arising from government grant recognition while
the charge to the consolidated income statement
represents the reversal of temporary differences as
a result of the amortisation of deferred government

grant.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward purposes only to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profit
is probable. The Group recognises deferred tax assets
to the extent of recognised deferred tax liabilities
and has unrecognised tax losses of HK$169,206,000
(2014 HK$149,590,000) to carry forward against
future taxable profit. The tax losses afore-mentioned
are subject to final approval by the Inland Revenue
Department in Hong Kong and PRC and can be carried

forward indefinitely.
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34.

EEBLE ()

EEFTEREE(E)

ERRBELCHAEERYPHNEB12
B AEWE - ERERRENIAEET)H
A 2 AR B\ 2B AR 1 ELPHY /BB R RIETT R B PR
EEZEREZRAE - 5T ALRA KRS
RITBIERBRZERGMELEZER
HER  MRGERERIKZESER
ERERTEMBLEREEZR - O
RELCHEERREBREERD TS
BEEL ZREVEINER - ST ARS
WaERPRARTERRTHDELY
RIEEZR - Mt ARG RERTRAE
TNER R R O 1 R R A T S B

BERIBEEDEREE  HIBEER
R+ DA R Be i 38 AR 2K JE AR s K 3R
ERANBANEERR  AEENE®
RELEHIBEABRRERRELCHIEE
B UARELCEXEBEEBEENK
5 R PR BB AR A m F 2 R e SR T 1E B 18
169,206,000 7% Jt.(2014 : 149,590,000
BIL) e FMBIEBEBRAGFEENER
B EERFAIEE - W] R H 4
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMHBRRME

34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

34, BREBIR(E)

ELEFEHAE

Unremitted earnings

KR ERFE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Balance brought forward B AS R 6,023 4,875
(Credited)/debited to the consolidated (1B &), EF A

income statement (Note 11) AWK (MWETT) (139) 1,158

Exchange differences BN = (346) (10)

Balance carried forward L 5,538 6,023

The deferred tax liabilities recognised relate to
temporary differences arising from the unremitted
earnings of JVs and associates. As at 31 December
2015, deferred tax liabilities of HK$32,571,000 (2014:
HK$103,533,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the undistributed retained earnings of subsidiaries

of the Group.

226

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

BT e

ERREERIBAEIREH 2
RERMEBEECEREZEFH -
72015128318 @ I #5 A& E
WBAR RN IKREBIEN 2B
RUMEHEMMBEREEMESHEE
/432,571,000 7c(2014 : 103,533,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRME
35. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT 35. EIEBFEE

Government grants are received from the PRC
government and the US government by the Group
as financial subsidies for investments in the PRC and
the US. Government grants from the PRC government
are recognised as income over 20 years based on the
expected useful lives of the fixed assets invested in
certain area of the PRC, while the government grants
from the US government are recognised as income
over 5 years as the relevant properties continue to
qualify as specified energy properties as defined by

the US Department of the Treasury.

The movement in deferred government grant during

the year is as follows:

BT B R B E R B R R B R
BB B BT 2 M IR G - 2K B R E
B2 #HERERERTEEIME
A BER 20 F A0 HREBEA - TR
B A5 BT 2 0 B B E 10 5% B B B AR
FIREHBEEERGRENAR TR
B 2 IR 5 F A D HIRERBMA -

FRREB B2 BT :

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$°000

FAET FET

Balance brought forward EETECE 21,435 16,952

Addition of deferred government grant & JNEAT#E B 3,975 5,863
Amortisation of deferred government BT 8 B

grant (1,900) (1,344)

Exchange difference M H =58 (1,332) (36)

Balance carried forward LR 22,178 21,435
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CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

STATEMENT
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEBREBZES
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$000
3 AT FET
Profit before income tax BRETE AR 548,984 391,897
Adjustments for: EHE:
Finance costs BIRA 9 115,475 105,722
Interest income FIS WA 6 (28,060) (16,870)
Depreciation of property, plant and n%  BERRENE
equipment 14 155,601 103,821
Amortisation of prepaid operating EEEHEER
lease payment 15 10,234 5,207
Amortisation of other intangible asset ~ EfhEFEEGLH 16 396 403
Amortisation of deferred government AT B AT B 8
grants 35 (1,900) (1,344)
Provision for obsolete inventory REFERE 20 10,510 -
Provision for other receivables A EKEETAE 10 - 100
Write-off of amounts due from a JV JEle A B R FIAM 3 13,848 -
Net realised gains on disposal of HERALBESARRL
financial assets at fair value CHAECCERMETE
through profit or loss 7 (14,576) (14,030)
Unrealised fair value loss on financial BOnBEIAERZ SR
assets at fair value through profit BEEZRERNABESR
or loss P =P S 7 14,404 -
Share-hased compensation AR BELE 2 F3 8 15,843 3,098
Share of results of associates [ =INa 18 (17,525) (7,645)
Share of results of Vs [ElEEEtEER 19 (68,284) (42,062)
Loss on businesses or assets HEREMERKAREEY
contribution to JVs BE 36(h) — 13
Gain on deregistration of a JV dEaErE ME 36(f) (426) -
Loss on disposal of an associate HERENRZBE 36(c) 38 -
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries KERBAR Yia 7 - (24,174)
(Gain)/loss on subsequent adjustment ARBTHEEEHEY
to consideration related to prior (ki) /BB
year's disposal 7 (546) 11,807
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENBAR M F8 36(d) (33,683) (140,103)
Exchange loss/(gains), net EREBE/ (Ka)  F8 7 1,204 (3,765)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HENE  BERFEEZ
and equipment Wz 36(g) (1,309) (27,740)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets ~ HEHBFHEZFRBEEY
held for sale W& 37 (3,244) —
716,984 344,335

BEHEREEARD A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

36. MEMFAZEHESRERE)

(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued) (a) REEKFBzRE(E)
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi3 FET FET
Operating profit before working capital ~ 2E& S EE 7 2 EL%E7 :
changes:
Decrease in inventories FERY 150,663 101,420
Increase in trade and bill receivables N E SERRZEEM (1,071,328) (111,776)
(Increase)/ decrease in prepayments, BENZE  REREME
deposits and other receivables WEE(EM) /B (97,505) 328,549
Increase in amounts due from AN R
associates (89,420) (13,924)
Increase in amounts due from JVs ElAErEFIBEN (49,431) (709,489)
Increase in trade and bill payables [ENESENREEEM 1,438,978 887,523
Increase /(decrease) in other payables A EN A R EEFE
and accruals 1,/ Gl ) 91,817 (276,528)
Decrease in amounts due to associates  JENEE A RIFUERD (25,858) (50,320)
Decrease in amounts due to JVs ERAEtEFERD (58,523) (146,693)
Cash generated from operations REXBHRE2HE 1,006,377 353,097
(b) Businesses or assets contribution to JVs (b) BEAAELECEKREE

During the year of 2014, the Group has disposed
of its partial equity interests in subsidiaries with
investments in wind power projects. Upon the
completion of the disposals, these entities had
not obtained the approval for the land use rights
and licenses to operate the wind farms yet. After
the disposals, these entities have become JVs of
the Group. Therefore, these disposals represent
the contribution of the Group’s assets to the
JVs. Details of the transactions are summarised
as follows:
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STATEMENT (Continued)

Businesses or assets contribution to JVs
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:

On 22 April 2014 and 18 December 2014,
the Group entered into sales and purchase
agreements ("JV-S&P Agreements”) with
Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation (“Huadian
Fuxin”), pursuant to which the Group disposed
of 51% equity interests in Yiyang Century
Concord Wind Power Co.,Ltd. (“Yiyang”) and
49% equity interests in Hubei Jinquan Wind
Power Co.,Ltd. (“Hubei Jinquan”), for a total
consideration of RMB41,220,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$52,022,000). Upon the
completion of these transactions, the Group's
interests were reduced from 100% to 49%
and 51% of issued share capital of Yiyang and
Hubei Jinquan respectively. Yiyang and Hubei
Jinquan ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group.
The disposals represent the contribution of the
Group’s assets of HK$106,044,000 to the JVs.
A loss on contribution of assets to the JVs of
HK$13,000 was recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

36. MEMEAZEESRERE)

(b) BEREGELXIEBREE(E)

BZEZ2014F 12531 HILFE :

R2014F4F22H % 2014512 A
18 B » NEEBEEFFEITERKMND
ERAF(EER®MN DI VEE
mE(aEtEEEm=R] B
I AEEREFGBE R S
BEBERAFIER]) 251%K
ERHIEERBENEEERAF
([t & R 1) 2 49% kg - KB
A AR #41,220,000T(HH &2 R
52,022,000 7T ) « R X % 7T K
% AEEBBEEBMHILERZ
A EABE100% D BRE49%
k51% - BEfsRHIEES R THA
AEBEZHBRAR - WELES
BHEREMEEZLEERMAEEE
106,044,000 JC > R 4R & K
RERBRIEELXEEERBRR

13,000 7T °
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mEMBRERME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36. GAMSECHEERERE)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Businesses or assets contribution to JVs (b)
(Continued)

The aggregated carrying amounts of the
Group’s net assets contributed to JVs as at their

respective disposal dates were as follows:

BERGELXZEBREE(E)

RIERLER  BERGEREL
BEAFE

m -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Assets EE
Property, plant and equipment WIE - BB R (M)
(Note) — 9,857
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Y d N NETE ]
of the Group — 111,342
Prepayments and other receivables  F8/15f 3R I18 & E fh fE U 308 — 141
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBeFEEAE — 136
— 121,476
Liabilities =N
Other payables and accruals H At 5 5K IE R FERTRIE — —
Amounts due to subsidiaries of FERT SR E 2B A RFIA
the Group — (14,632)
Amounts due to JVs FERT& & EERIR — (800)
— (15,432)
Net assets contributed BIRAFEE — 106,044
Note: HiaE

The amounts of property, plant and equipment shown
above are stated after adjusting the unrealised profits
or losses on transactions between these companies
and other group companies prior to the respective
disposal dates.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(b)
(Continued)

Businesses or assets contribution to JVs

The gain on disposal of businesses or assets

contributed to JVs as at their respective disposal

(b)

REBHER @ BERE

BERGELXZEBREE(E)

EhEZ

AEBEEFEERSSHEBAF

dates were as follows: FN
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Fair value of retained interest as JV BI{EEZDEZIRAER Y
RREE — 54,007
Considerations RE — 52,022
— 106,029
Carrying amount of businesses/ ERAER BEZ
assets contributed MR A — (106,044)
Realised profit on transaction AEBESGEREY
between the Group and JVs RHEERW = — 2
Loss on businesses or assets WAER BEZ
contribution (Note 7) B8 (K1 7) — (13)

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36. BAMSECHETRER(E)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Businesses or assets contribution to JVs (b) BERAELCECEBREEE)
(Continued)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, net REERBRERER  BREEEH
proceeds received from joint venture partners ZPTSHRIEF AR A T EIBAEK

were comprised of:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Considerations RE — 52,022
Cash and cash equivalents of the  FTHEMNBRARIZIRE N
subsidiaries disposed REEHEIER — (136)
Consideration not received and SRUCER I 51 A E A FE K8
recorded in other receivables ZRE — (35,064)
— 16,822
Consideration for prior year's AEEEWBEFELE
disposal received in current year EE2NRE 34,514 —
Net proceeds received from joint  #AEBHUEIFUIE 2
venture partners HEE 34,514 16,822
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REMHBRRME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(c) Disposal of an associate

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

On 15 May 2015, the Group entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with Tianjin
Hekai Technology Co., Ltd., pursuant to which
the Group disposed of its 25% equity interest
in Dongtou Energy Investment Co., Ltd.
("Dongtou”), an associate of the Group, for a
consideration of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$31,057,000). A loss
on disposal of the associate of RMB30,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$38,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the completion of this
transaction, Dongtou ceased to be an associate

of the Group.

36. MEMEAZEESRERE)

() HEBRELN

al

BAFE2015F 12531 HILFE :

M2015F 5/ 158 - ZIS £ 8
REGIBBBERARGIESR
W UL Kﬁlﬁ%ﬁ
ERNRRBERKEE AR
BD2Z255%BE REARARK
25,000,000 fc(*ﬁ%‘%m,ow,ooo
BIT) c BRREAE KRR ZLE
Bt N R 2 BB A AR 30,000
TL(HEE F 38,0008 L) - N5
TEAKE - RIRT B AREE 2B

A./\—J

& /uﬂH )%

The gain on disposal of an associate as at its REEEHER  DEBEE W
disposal date was as follows: wEIHEAT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consideration RIE 31,057 —
Proportionate share of the Group’s B4 1> 2 4% tb 5 FE 45 e B i
net assets of an associate TEBREEZAEEFE
effectively disposed E =D (31,952) —
Exchange gain realised from BELFEERZ
exchange reserve FTRL PN 857 —
Loss on disposal of an associate HEREPE L EE
(Note 7) (Hiat7) (38) —

234 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

36. MEMFAZEHESRERE)

(c) Disposal of an associate (Continued) () HEBMEQAT(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: B E2015F12531H It FE
(Continued) (&)

RiFalReRERY  HERED
EFEREFR BT

In the consolidated cash flow statement, net
proceeds received from disposal of an associate

were comprised of:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Total consideration BR(E 31,057 —

Consideration not received and RUGER A B 51 A E A U 50
recorded in other receivables HZRE — —

Cash and cash equivalents received BEDWRE K&
upon disposal REEHEIER 31,057 —
(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (d) HEMBEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015: BZE2015F 12531 HILFE -

On 14 January 2015, the Group entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with an individual,
pursuant to which the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in Changchun
Xinyuan Investment Co., Ltd. (“Xinyuan”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for a
consideration of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,696,000). A gain on
disposal of the subsidiary of RMB2,504,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,111,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the completion of this
transaction, Xinyuan ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Group.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015:
(Continued)

On 17 November 2015, the Group entered into
a sales and purchase agreement with Sany Heavy
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., pursuant to which
the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in Guizhou Ruiyang New Energy Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Guizhou Ruiyang”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for
a consideration of RMB6,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,074,000).
disposal of the subsidiary of RMB6,610,000

(equivalent to approximately HK$8,211,000)

A gain on

was recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the completion of this
transaction, Guizhou Ruiyang ceased to be a

subsidiary of the Group.

On 10 December 2015, the Group entered
into a sales and purchase agreement with
Wuhan Huitong Jiaye Investment Co., Ltd.,
Wuhan Xiangyi Rongsheng Investment Co.,
Ltd. and Beijing Jinhan Jiarong Investment
Management Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the
Group disposed of its entire equity interest in
Beijing Concord Fengguang Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Concord Fengguang”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of
RMB198,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$245,969,000). A gain on disposal of the
subsidiary of RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,361,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Upon
the completion of this transaction, Concord
Fengguang ceased to be a subsidiary of the

Group.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

(d)

HEMB LR (&)

B E2015F 12531 H 1 FE:
(&)

R2015F 11 178 K& EHHE

= —EREREEFRA ﬂJii‘é
B Bt AEEHEES
iéfMﬁ%@ﬁﬁd‘l\liﬁﬁﬁﬁabﬁw&
BERERAREMKE D 22
EopxiE - (B A AR 6,500,000
ﬁwa%m 074,000 7T) » HER

Wizl ERZHEMRBARZ
I zs B AR ¥ 6,610,000 L(HE
78,211,000 7T ) - MR H T
& BEMNmETEK A EE 2
BAsw] -

M2015F12 8108 » A% H &
REEBRXREARAR « HE
HERBAREERAFTNURERIER
CEERREEEBRARGVE
Bk - Bt AEELEESE
MEBARRBARLIEERR
AR HERK]) 2 2B %E
R (& B AR 198,000,000 7T (48
B 7 245,969,000 70 ) © MR R
HRAERERZHENB AR ZHK
= A A R 18,000,000t (48 &
722,361,000 70) - AR ZTEK
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015:
(Continued)

During the year, the Group de-registered
Jilin Yuhe CWP Power Engineering Co., Ltd.
("Yuhe"), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. The Group received RMB9,461,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,753,000)
cash from the disposal of assets prior to de-
registration. Upon the completion of respective
de-registration, the net assets of HK$11,753,000
had been deconsolidated from the Group, Yuhe

ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2014:

On 8 May 2014, the Group entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with Huaneng
Renewables Corporation Limited, pursuant
to which the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Jinzhou Century Concord
Xingda Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for a
consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,310,000). A gain on
disposal of the subsidiary of RMB116,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$147,000)
was recognized in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the completion of this
transaction, Jinzhou ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Group.
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(d) HEKMBLF(E)

B E2015F 12531 H 1 FE:
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On May 2014, the Group entered into five
sales and purchase agreements with Huadian
Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (“Huadian
Fuxin”), pursuant to which the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in Damaogqi Century
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.
Siziwanggi Century Concord Xiari Wind Power
Co., Ltd. ("Siziwangqi”),
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.
Wulate Zhongqi Century Concord Wind
Power Co., Ltd. (“Wulate Zhongqi”) and
Guyuan Century Concord Wind Power Co.,

("Damaogqi”),

Kangbao Century
("Kangbao”),

Ltd. (“Guyuan”) for a total consideration of
RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$56,793,000).
subsidiaries of RMB3,919,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,934,000) was recognized

A gain on disposals of the

in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of these transactions, these entities
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

(d)

HEMB LR (&)

B E2014F 12531 H 1t FE:
(&)

M2014F5H  AEBEEESTIRE
%HIE%QﬂZEE%%'%
CAEEREEZEMBA
ﬁTﬁ B NEEBRA T(Fh*
&) MFTFEBEERRNIEE
BRAR(INFEE]D  ER#
ERABEAERA ‘foﬁjw

SHEFFERERNEEERA

([BHEFREDRAGRBE Hﬂ
BEARAAER]D 223K
# - R{EAARKA45,000,0007T
(¥ % 1 56,793,000 7T ) » R
RiralmRcBERZ BARK
3,919 00075@9%%4 934,000
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On 10 June 2014 and 25 June 2014, the Group
entered into sales and purchase agreements
with Hua Shi United Investment (Beijing) Limited,
pursuant to which the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in Cangnan Century
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Cangnan”),
Yongchang Juhe Wind Power Co., Ltd.
(“Yongchang”) and Fuzhou Linchuan Century
Concord Qinglianshan Wind Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Fuzhou”),
of the Group, for a total consideration of

wholly-owned subsidiaries

RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,048,000). A loss on disposals of the
subsidiaries of RMB1,330,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,678,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Upon
the completion of these transactions, Cangnan,
Yongchang and Fuzhou ceased to be subsidiaries

of the Group.

On 13 June 2014, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with Turpan District
State-owned Assets Investment Management
Co. Ltd., pursuant to which the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in Turpan Century
Concord Solar Power Co., Ltd. (“Turpan”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for a
consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,310,000). No gain on
disposal of the subsidiary was recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of this transaction, Turpan ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Group.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On 11 July 2014, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with Beijing Hengyuan
Tiantai Energy Technology Co. Ltd., pursuant
to which the Group disposed of its 95% equity
interest in Jiayuguan Century Concord New
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Jiayuguan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of
RMB21,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,576,000). A gain on disposal of the
subsidiary of RMB19,445,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,540,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of this transaction, Jiayuguan ceased
to be a subsidiary and is accounted for at fair
value as available-for-sale financial asset of the
Group.

On 19 August 2014, the Group entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with Shenzhen
Energy Nanjing Holding Co. Ltd., pursuant to
which the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Gaoyou Century Concord Wind
Power Co. Ltd. (“Gaoyou”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,241,000). A gain on disposal of the
subsidiary of RMB 3,834,000(equivalent to
approximately HK$4,839,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of this transaction, Gaoyou ceased to

be a subsidiary of the Group.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

(d)
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On 14 September 2014, the Group entered into
a sales and purchase agreement with Wuxi New
Energy Technology Co., Ltd., pursuant to which
the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in Wulategiangi Century Concord Solar Power
Co., Ltd. (“"Wulategiangi”),
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of

a wholly-owned

RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,524,000). No gain on disposal of the
subsidiary was recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Upon the completion of
this transaction, Wulategiangi ceased to be a

subsidiary of the Group.

On 14 October 2014, the Group entered into
a sales and purchase agreement with Shanxi
Zhangze Electric Power Co. Ltd., pursuant to
which the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Shanshan Century Concord Solar
Power Co., Ltd. (“Shanshan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of
RMB19,078,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,077,000). A loss on disposal of the
subsidiary of RMB920,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,161,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of this transaction, Shanshan ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Group.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On 1 December 2014, the Group entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with Sky Dragon
Logistics Co. Ltd., pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its 20% equity interest in Topping
Centre Limited (“Topping”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of
HK$1. Management consider that the Group has
de facto joint-control of Topping even though
it has more than 50% of the shareholdings
because of board representation and contractual
terms. Subsequently on 28 December 2014,
the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Topping, pursuant to which
the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in Tianjin Green Energy International Leasing
Co., Ltd.
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of
RMB200,001,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$252,415,000). A loss on disposal of the
subsidiary of RMB5,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,258,000) was recognised

(“Tianjin Leasing”), a wholly-owned

in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of these transactions, Topping and
Tianjin Leasing ceased to be subsidiaries and
are accounted for under equity method as joint
ventures of the Group.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On 16 December 2014, the Group entered
into three sales and purchase agreements with
Huadian Fuxin, pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its 95% equity interest in Sanjiang
County Century Concord Wind Power Co.
Ltd. (“Sanjiang County”), Mashan Century
Concord Wind Power Co. Ltd. (“Mashan”)
and Rongan Century Concord Wind Power Co.
Ltd. (“Rongan”) for a total consideration of
RMB8&,550,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,792,000).
subsidiaries of RMB875,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,104,000) was recognised

A gain on disposals of the

in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of these transactions, these entities
ceased to be subsidiaries and are accounted for
at fair values as available-for-sale financial assets
of the Group.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

On 3 December 2014, the Group entered
into a sales and purchase agreement with
Suzhou GCL New Energy Investment Co.
Ltd. (“GCL"),
disposed of its entire equity interest in Delingha

pursuant to which the Group

Century Concord Photovoltaic Power Co. Ltd.
("Delingha”),

the Group, including 60% of the economic

a wholly-owned subsidiary of

benefits of Hainanzhou Shineng Photovoltaic
Power Co., Ltd. (“Shineng”) accounted for as
a joint venture in the consolidated financial
statements of Delingha, for a consideration of
RMB229,380,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$289,494,000). Part of the consideration was
a contingent consideration of RMB25,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$31,691,000),
payable upon the successful purchase of the
remaining 40% minority shareholding of
Shineng on behalf of GCL. A gain on disposal of
the subsidiary of RMB91,785,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$115,879,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Upon the
completion of this transaction, Delingha ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Group.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

In addition, during the year, the Group de-
registered Fuxin Xieli Wind Power Co. Ltd.,
Fuxin Gangneng Wind Power Co. Ltd. and
Qinghai Geermu Century Concord Photovoltaic
Power Co. Ltd.,
subsidiaries of the Group. The Group received
RMB74,314,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$93,789,000) cash from the disposal of assets

prior to de-registration. Upon the completion

which are wholly-owned

of respective de-registration, the net assets
of HK$388,410,000 had been de-registered
from the Group and a loss on disposals of
subsidiaries of HK$630,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement. As a result,
these entities ceased to be subsidiaries of the

Group.
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

246

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (d) HEHRBAT(E)
The gain on liquidation/disposal of subsidiaries, HEMB AR ZWE - FEAT -
net was as follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consideration: RAE -
Net proceeds received from TBEE S RIEERE
liquidation 11,753 93,789
Net proceeds from disposal of & BB A RIFT 1S 3R
subsidiaries HER 262,739 706,580
274,492 800,369
Carrying amount of net assets FTEEFEEZIRELE :
disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 12,829 1,075,350
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHESREE 223,608 —
Interest in a JV TN vl s — 150,485
Goodwill EES — 1,523
Trade receivables U E 5 8RN — 84,063
Prepayments and other A FRIE B HAh e R IE
receivables — 120,070
Amounts due from fellow R EE B AR 2B
subsidiaries of the Group 828 1,496,657
Amounts due from JVs WA & EFIA — 59,723
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReSEER 11,762 224,941
Trade payables BT E SRR — (50,233)
Amounts due to fellow R EEWEB AT 2508
subsidiaries of the Group — (186,819)
Amounts due to JVs A& ERIE — (44,550)
Other payables and accruals L FE 5 R IE K FEET IR (23) (46,060)
Bank borrowings RITER — (2,086,024)
249,004 799,126
Exchange gain realised from HIE R FEEHEER ZESWRA
exchange reserve 3) 12,446
Realised profits or losses on AEHEMNBARIREE
transactions between the Group TPEIRHEERZ
and subsidiaries and JVs ez (E518) 8,198 142,068
Realised deferred tax assets EERIEEMSHERE — (16,351)
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJtHESREE — 697
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HERB AR 2 -
net (Note 7) FEHET7) 33,683 140,103

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36. BAMSECHETRER(E)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (d) HEHRBAT(E)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, net RIEEREeRER  EIEBMHAM
proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries were BRIEFELS
comprised of:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Consideration RAE 262,739 706,580
Cash and cash equivalents received KiIBARBEREWIEES N
upon liquidation of subsidiaries HeEEIEE 11,753 93,789
Consideration not received and RUGER e 5T A EL A FE U 3ROB
recorded in other receivables ZRE — (229,081)
Cash and cash equivalents ARG M IS mMERERZ
derecognised from the ReEMRESFBEIAR
consolidated financial statements (11,762) (224,941)
262,730 346,347
Consideration for prior year's REERWBETFENE
disposal received in current year FIHEZRE 243,212 —
505,942 346,347
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(e)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2014:

Fuchuan was originally a JV of the Group, in
which the Group held 50% equity interest,
while Tongtai New Energy Co. Ltd. (“Tongtai"),
the former JV partner, held the remaining
50% equity interest. On 9 December 2014,
the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with Tongtai, pursuant to which the
Group acquired Tongtai’'s 50% equity interest
in Fuchuan, which became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration
of RMB558,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$707,000). A gain of RMB19,154,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,174,000)
was recognised when the unrealised profits on
transactions between the Group and JVs was

realised at the acquisition date.

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for the issued share capital of Fuchuan and
the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the acquisition date.

(e)

WS KB AR

BAFE2014F 12531 HILFE :

BEIRALEBZAERE  KE
EFAE)50%KiE  KEE
ZHRIBIERN  BRIERERA
AAEDEBESNHT 250%
f&#E - M2014F12 A9R + A&
BEEBRIIVEEHS Bt
REBRBBERFEBEEIZ250%
R BlRAEAEBR 22EN
BAF - KEARARKS58000
JC(F8 & 7 707,000/ T ) R UK
BT H  BRAEEMESGE D
XMzRHGREBREWRE /AR
19,154,000 (48 & # 24,174,000
EIT) ©

TRBAE)Z B BTRAIN
ZHRE - RS B IR E
EXRFFEREZAAER-

HK$'000

T

Consideration paid by cash ReIHIRE 704
Amounts due to acquirer before acquisition Wit s =5 TE B FE AN U O RROE

(Note (1) (Bt (i) 84,579

Total consideration BRE 85,283

Note (i): After the acquirees become subsidiaries
of the Group, the amounts due from/(to)
acquirer become inter-company balances
which are eliminated at the consolidation

level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36.
STATEMENT (Continued)

FEMEZRERERE)

(e) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (e) WEBHEBAT(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014: HBE2014F12531H It FE
(Continued) (&)

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed

YE i

TEA FRIB AN H Ath A 5RIR
RAekReEHEER

Ho At & 308 M BT R

Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Other payables and accruals

Total identifiable net assets AR EEFE
Goodwill BES

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the i
consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, A)
net of cash acquired was comprised of: N

Consideration RE
Consideration not paid and recorded in other — H i fE {5 538 2 R AHLE
payables

Cash and cash equivalents acquired mERekESEEIEE

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEEHB A7) - 3RS U EEHE

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

ARG ZBRGEZ EENAEZRE

HK$000
FET

76,326
8,652
2,614

(86,331)

1,261
73

1,334

RZBBRERERT  WENEBL
AIENREZR S WEFELRL

HK$’000
FET

(704)

669
2,614

2,579
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STATEMENT (Continued)

(f)

(9)

De-registration of a JV (f)
During the year, the Group de-registered
Mengdong kezuohougibaiyinnaoer Wind Power
Co., Ltd. (“Baiyinnaoer”), which is a JV of the
Group. The Group received RMB1,864,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,316,000)
cash from the disposal of assets prior to de-
registration. A gain on the de-registration of
RMB343,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$426,000) was recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Upon the completion of
respective de-registration, the net assets of
HK$2,316,000 had been de-registered from the
Group, Baiyinnaoer ceased to be a JV of the
Group.

Disposal of property, plant and equipment (9)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, net

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment comprises:

AHAERE

REE  AEEFHETHEHAEAR
SRIBER L EEAS SRANE
BEERARBEERER]) - A&
BN AT R E B E R
& B AR 1,864,000 C(HE R
2,316,000 7T ) - HERRERE W
Ik 2 B A A R 343,000
(FEE 7 426,000/87T) - HIAREE
HEME  AKBEHEEFEE
2,316,000/ 7T * B & /2@ THEK
BREBZAEDRE -

HENE BERRE

KRR RERT  HEYE -
BB MEREREFRFEES

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Net book amount (Note 14) BREFE (A5 14) 48,350 161,290
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEW % « BKE &R #E 2
and equipment (Note 10) Wz (ffaE 10) 1,309 27,740
Consideration for disposal of HEWE - BEREEZ
property, plant and equipment RE 49,659 189,030
Less: Settled with payables, OB AERSTRRIE - EoAh
other receivables and JEW R R TR BB 1B
prepayments (6,435) (72,606)
Net cash proceeds from HEWE - BERRE
disposal of property, FrSRIEFE
plant and equipment 43,224 116,424

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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REMBERRHE
37. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 37. BEESEZHERDEE

The non-current assets held for sale represent the
solar power plant built on a building situated in
the US. On 10 December 2014, the Group entered
into a sales and purchase agreement with PNC
Capital Inc. to dispose three solar power plants at
a consideration of HK$26,414,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, two solar power plants
were disposed. Management disposed the remaining
solar plant on 4 February 2015 and a gain on disposal
of HK$3,244,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Consideration of HK$21,521,000

had been received during the year.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
no gain or loss has been recognised for any initial or
subsequent increase in or write-down of the assets
stated at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The non-current assets held for sale was included in

the segment of investment in power plants.
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REMBERRHE
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. HARERE

252

The Group, via its wholly-owned subsidiaries, had
entered into joint venture (“JV") agreements with JV
partners in the PRC. Pursuant to the JV agreements,
the Group was required to pledge its share of
equity interests in these JVs as security for the bank
borrowings of each of the respective JVs.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged
its share of equity interests of one (2014: one) JV,
with total value of its share of registered capital held
by the Group amounted to HK$44,451,000 (2014:
HK$47,207,000) for bank borrowings by the Group's
JVs.

One of the Group’s JVs, Gansu Guazhou Century
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd., had entered into an
agreement to borrow a loan with principal amount
up to US$140,000,000. As at 31 December 2015,
the loan of approximately US$57,895,000 (2014:
UsS$68,310,000) was drawn down by the JV. The
Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to
the loan is equal to the drawn down amount. Besides,
pursuant to the Limited Guarantee Agreement and
the Equity Pledge Agreement signed between the
Group and the borrower, the Group has provided the
corporate guarantee with a pledge of 49% equity
interest in the JV amounted to HK$391,354,000
(2014: HK$415,618,000).

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2015 and 2014.
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FREMB|ERME

39. COMMITMENT 39. &iE
Operating lease commitments R ERIE
As lessee TERARBA
The Group leases certain of its offices and equipment RNEBRENAEUHKSTEE THAT
under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements. HETHAZNGHME -
At the reporting date, the Group had future aggregate RiFE R » NEBERER O] BUYK S
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEZRKRSERENTBENT

operating leases as follows:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
No later than 1 year BB 1 F 867 3,358
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 B8 1 FE BB F
years 40 1,118
907 4,476
Capital commitments BAREYE
(a) At the reporting date, capital expenditure (a) MRWBEHEEITEREDREEZ
contracted for but not provided for is as follows: BARRZIT :
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - HE K& B
No later than 1 year BB F 2,031,842 1,974,752
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REMBERRHE
39. COMMITMENT (Continued) 39. EIEE)

254

Capital commitments (Continued)

(b) The Group has entered into a number of
arrangements to develop power projects in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2015, total equity
contributions contracted but not provided for
were HK$757,641,000 (2014: HK$803,680,000).

Other commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group, via its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, committed with JV partners to
pledge the share of equity interests owned by the
subsidiaries in Fuxin Century Concord-Shenhua Wind
Power Co., Ltd., Fuxin Union Wind Power Co., Ltd.,
Taipusiqi Century Concord-Shenhua Wind Power
Investment Co., Ltd. and Wuchuan County Yihe Wind
Power Co., Ltd. as security for bank borrowings by the
Group’'s JV.

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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REMHBRRME

40. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Effects of transactions with non-controlling interests

40. FEFUEEBERS

B JE % 6 1A R T R

SRR AE

on the equity attributable to owners of the Company B A201 SEQJEJE%M AR
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows: T
Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET TFET
Changes in equity attributable to RREER ANELR RS2
owners of the Company arising from:  #{tEAR :
Acquisition of additional interests in WIEIE B MR ES
subsidiary Ll PNCId £ — (22,494)
Non-controlling interests arising on R EB 15 6 BB A RIZAK
partial disposal of a subsidiary 2 PRI e A 22,600 —
Contributions by non-controlling IR R E
interests 4,969 —

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions
were carried out by the Group with related

41. BEBAERS

() BUFHREMBHRERTAZBERRE
S AN RERBB T ET RS

parties:
Group
rEH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of goods and services to Mg R NAERE
associates and JVs (note (i) HE E%&H&ﬁ%(ﬁ/f&(/)} 345,236 803,885
Loan interest income (note (ii) BRRF B WA (H 52 (i) 5,372 8,907

Notes:

(i) The terms and conditions of sales of goods and
services were mutually agreed by both parties.

(i) The loans to JVs carry interest ranging from
3.92% to 6.72% per annum. The fair value and
the effective interest rate of the loans to JVs are
disclosed in Note 19.
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FEMBHRRME
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41. BB ARE (&)
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEAREEIEEHEN

Key management personnel are those persons AT IEEBAE BZEHMERENIR
having authority and responsibility for planning, BEIE - EE RS R EEES
directing and controlling the activities of the Z AT BFESN02014: £)BH
Group. It comprises six (2014: seven) of the TEERANQ4E : R)EESH
Executive Directors and six (2014: six) members EEEBKE - - BREIEBT AR
of Senior Management Group. The total SRR :

remuneration of the key management personnel

is shown below:

Group
rEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Salaries and other short-term FehkEMEEESREF
employee benefits 12,611 13,522
Share-based compensation AR BEE Z I 7 1,906
12,618 15,428
The remuneration of the members of Senior REES D e REERE 2 HMNE
Management Group by band is set out below: FIEnT
2015 2014
HK$1 — HK$1,000,000 17%7c — 1,000,000 7T 6 6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
42. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 42, HEHBREE

On 1 February 2016 , the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an individual, pursuant
to which the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Jiangsu Huize Power Engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Huize"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, for a consideration of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,873,000). Upon
the completion of the transaction, Jiangsu Huize

ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group.

Further to the repurchase of 73,530,000 of the
Company’s ordinary shares during the year ended 31
December 2015, the Company acquired 136,010,000
of its own ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each through purchases on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange at a market price of approximately
HK$ 0.34 during January 2016. All of the repurchased
shares, representing 2.34% of the issued share capital
of the Company, had then been cancelled in February
2016. The total amount paid to acquire these shares
in 2016 was approximately HK$46,420,000 and the
excess consideration over the par value has been
deducted from “share premium” in equity at the date
of cancellation.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other
significant subsequent events after the balance sheet
date up to the date of approval of the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

43. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 43, XA RSESBEREESDE
THE COMPANY

Balance Sheet of the Company BEEEER — KANQTH

As at 31 December 2015
201512 A31H

2015 2014
Note HK$000 HK$000
Wi FET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries i IENGIPA 3 1,299,972 1,407,096
Deposits oA 669 669
1,300,641 1,407,765
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE P B A Bl A 1,073,850 1,059,320
Amounts due from joint ventures B & & EMIE 798 608
Cash and cash equivalents ReMAEEMEER 16,435 24,961
1,091,083 1,084,889
Total assets EEHAE 2,391,724 2,492,654
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities VEIN=NE
Other payables and accruals HoAh A FRIB R AT K 5,635 8,820
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A R FRA 392,172 388,567
Total liabilities BEHAE 397,807 397,387
Net current assets RBEEFE 693,276 687,502
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERREBEE 1,993,917 2,095,267
Net assets BEEFE 1,993,917 2,095,267
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of ZAQTHEAAELER
the Company
Share capital N 89,462 89,462
Reserves i () 1,904,455 2,005,805
Total equity ERAH 1,993,917 2,095,267
The balance sheet of the company were approved by % ] ,éfFEA{; KRR F=A
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and were STRREEFERAETRER
signed on its behalf.
Liu shunxing Liujianhong
21 )i 5 SEA
Director Director
g ¥
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

43. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

43. ARREERBERREEF)

Note : Htat -
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AAFHFEBEZEH
Share  Contributed  Exchange Other Accumulated Treasury
premium surplus reserve reserves osses share Total
RVRE  BABH  EARE  RMRE  ZiEE EER ag
(Note (i)
(W )
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A FEr FEr AT &z FET A

Balance at 1 January 2014 R201451818 264,881 2,675,788 271,523 122,685 (1,699,861) - 1,641,016

Share-based compensation DR BREZ R - - - 3,098 - - 3,008

Exercise of share option iEEhE 20,954 - - (7,087) - - 13,867

Currency translation differences ~ SXERZE - - (3,738) - - - (3,738)

Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - (18,038) - (18,038

Subscription of ordinary share A ERR 369,600 - - - - - 369,600

Balance at 31 December 2014 R20145128318 655,435 2,675,788 273,185 118,69  (1,717,899) - 2,005,805

Share-based compensation NRhBREZRR - - - 20 - - 2

Interim dividend paid EffERE - - - - (89,462) - (89,462)

Currengy translation differences ~ EHER =28 - - (126,286) - - - (126,286)

Profit for the year TEEhE - - - - 147,676 - 147,676

Repurchase of ordinary shares for ~ EEE& T H#7 EBR

cancellation - - - - - (33,298) (33,298)

Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015812831R 655,435 2,675,788 147,499 118,716 (1,659,685) (33,298) 1,904,455

Notes: Btat -

(i)  The Company’s contributed surplus brought (i) ARFZHBANERRTEREBE
forward represented the excess of the fair value FEzEBSEAMKERERD
of the shares of the former holding company B 2 At (B EER H AR EGZ
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation ERMMBITZARTRMEE
in the prior year, over the nominal value of the ZEFE o
Company's shares issued in exchange thereof.

(i) PRC companies are required to allocate 10% (i FERARERE SRR

of the companies’ net profit to the statutory
reserves fund until such fund reaches 50%
of the companies’ registered capital. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of the companies, provided that such
fund is maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the companies’ registered capital. As
at 31 December 2015, accumulated losses
of the Group comprised statutory reserves
fund amounting to HK$206,416,000 (2014:

HK$152,413,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

44. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 44, EEH RS FEZR (BB B TE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF BIY(Z622E ) =383 % A 7
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. BEENZER)EH)(E6226E)
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION BENRE)

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s (a) EERITHARZFHM
emoluments
The remuneration of each director and the Chief FGRESRTHEE Y HFMOT :

Executive Officer is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2015: HZE2015F12 A31 BIFEE -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a EAEE(REEARNTIKEWE
person’s services as a director, whether of the NEDIZH R X 3 E U B
company or its subsidiary undertaking: el
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of directors
other services
in connection
with the

Remunerations  management
Employer's paid or of the
Esimated ~ contribution ~ receivable  affairs of

money value toa inrespect the company
of other retirement  of accepting or its
Discretionary Housing benefit benefit officeas  subsidiary
Fees Salary honuses  allowance (Note (i) scheme director  undertaking Total
HERALT
FEAT
SR CENEHEM
BRI BRES-B  ABESEN
fFteHRE BNEHRE ARAIRN fixfig
Name 4 fig it ke RERYE W0 hExts WHe  EHmEHE 5

BRSO HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO00  RKSOD  HKSO00  AKSOD  HKSO00  AKS00D
AT ar AT Tian AT T AT T AT

LuShuning ~~ EJIEE - 2261 374 - 1 17 - - 2,654
Yang Thifeng  BEE

(Note (i) (i) - 1925 37 - 1 - - - 228
Wang Xun i

(Mot (i) (W) 345 - - - f _ _ _ 36
Liv Janhong B[

(Note () (W) - il 3 - f 7 - - 2131
YuWezhou £

(Note (xj) (i) - 1,787 3N - 1 - - - 2,099
ThouZhizhong B2

(Note () (W) - 207 - - - - - - 207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

44. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 44, EEH RS FEZS (BB B TE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF BIY(E622%E ) £383 1R A 7 (I
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. BEEENRZERRFN(E622GE)
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION BREWHKE)(#&)

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s (a) ESERITHARZFHM(Z)
emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015: HE2015F12A31B LFE :
(Continued) (&)

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other services

in connection

with the

Remunerations  management
Employer's paid or of the
Estimated ~ contribution ~ receivable affairs of

money value toa  inrespect the company
of other retirement  of accepting or its
Discretionary Housing benefit benefit ~ offieas  subsidiary
Fees Salary honuses  allowance (Note (i) scheme director  undertaking Total
fERANT
ELSIT]
RES LROBHEM
SHEAN fHEs-B  AfESRR

ireRRE BAGAE AxNAER A

Name #2 ke B¢ OBRRE  REMY (20 MR hie  Ehhme £8
HKSO  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D

T 1T T 1T T 1T T T&r &L

KoWngYan, SER

Samantha (W2

(Note () 08 - - B - - B ) !
Wong YauKar,  EXE BBSP

Dai 35, 15 - - - - - B ) B
VapFatSuan,  E%iE

Henry 15 - - - - - - _ o
Shang L W 156 - - - - B - - *
HiangJan £

Motefil) (W) 156 - - - - - - - *
GoRiChin  BEZE

(Note (vi) (W) 132 - B B - - B ) B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

44. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 44, EEH RS FEZR (BB B TE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF Bl (6225 ) =383 1K % A 7 (1
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. SEEARER)EM6)(E6226E)
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION HEWHE)(Z)

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s (a) BEERTHREABZEHMNZE)
emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE2014F 12831 HILFE(E
(Restated): i)
Certain of the comparative information of ZAIRER SR THER YFEE =
directors’ emoluments for the year ended 201412 A31THIEFERED
31 December 2014 previously disclosed in EEMemE THERERREEM
accordance with the predecessor Companies LA EBCATENY(E 622 %)
Ordinance have been restated in order to comply HWERFHSHEMNRTE -

with the new scope and requirements by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a EBEE(TERARNTKEWE

person’s services as a director, whether of the NE) IR RS T S A 3k e U B
company or its subsidiary undertaking: %

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other services

in connection

Remunerations with the

Employer's paid or  management

Esimated  contribution ~ receivable of the affairs

money value toa inrespect of of the

ofother  retirement  accepting  company or

Discretionary Housing benefit benefit office as  its subsidiary
Fees Salary honuses  allowance (Note (i) scheme director ~ undertaking Total

HERANT

FEFAR

SR CENERRR

SHEAN BftEs-R  HHEZRE

fGireHEE BOENHE mifUEY Wk
Name i e B¢ BR%E  EEX () OEHER MHE  Ehdmse 48
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
FAT AT FAT 7T FAT 7T FAT 7T FAT

LiuShunsing BB - 2,01 - - 368 17 - - 2.3%
KoChunShun,  Z5IE

Johnson - 1,040 - - - 12 - - 1,05
Yang Thifeng  BEE

(ote ) (Hiét i) - 1,894 - - 15 - - - 213
WangXun T

(Note (ix) (i) - 878 - - 215 - - - 113
Liv Janhong [T

(Note (x) (Hity) - 1,784 - - U5 17 - - 2046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

44, BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.

44, EEWMRHE NS (HFB(Q K
Bl )(5£622F ) 383 & A A (K
BRESANHERAM(E6226E)

622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION BEEWEE) (&)

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s (a) ESERTHARZTME)

emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Restated): (Continued)

HZE2014F12A31HIEFE(E

i) (#&) -
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paid or  management
Estimated ~ contribution  receivable  of the affairs
money value toa inrespect of of the
ofother  retirement  accepting  company or
Discretionary Housing benefit benefit ~office as its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  allowance (Note (i) scheme director  undertaking Total
HERALT
EESET
R CENSHRM
BRI EhEs-R  AfEIRE
ffireRER  BOBAHE  mRAUEN fixfd
Name #4 fig B¢ BERE  BERY () MEHER KHE  EhwERe g
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000
T 77 Tir 7én T#r FET T#r 7En 7T
YuWerhou — £EH
(Note (x) (i) - 169 - - 5 - - - 194
ThouZhizhong  Bia
(Note i) () - 1252 - - 15 - - - 1497
TsoiTong Hoo,  £R%
Tony Note i) (i) 108 - - - N - - - 8
KoWingYen,  BER
Samantha (i)
(Note (1) 3 59 - - % 12 - - 738
Wong YauKer,  EXE BBS P
David, 8BS, JP 144 - - - 20 - - - 164
YapFatSuan,  EZfE
Henry - - - 0 - - - 164
Shang Li ok - - - - - - - 14
HuangJan &%
otefi) — (He() 14 - - - - - - - 14
Thou Dad Brit
(Note (i) (i) 3 - - - U - - - 60
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
44. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 44, EEPFZMERE(REBC(RQAHK

264

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’'s
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) It represents amortisation of the fair value
of share options measured at the grant date
charged to the consolidated income statement
over the reporting period, regardless of whether
or not the share options have been exercised.

(i) Mr. Tsoi Tong Hoo, Tony has resigned as a Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 21 January 2014.

(iii) ~ Mr. Zhou Dadi has resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 21 January 2014.

(iv)  Ms. Huang lJian, an existing Independent Non-
executive Director, has been appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 21 January 2014.

(v)  Mr. Ko Chan Shun, Johnson and Ms. Ko Wing
Yan, Samantha has resigned as an Executive
Director and a non-executive Director with effect
from 19 June 2015 respectively.

(vi)  Mr. Zhou Zhizhong has resigned as an Executive
Director with effect from 13 March 2015.

(vii)  Mr. Gao Fuchun has been appointed as Non-
executive Director with effect from 13 March
2015.

(viii)  Mr. Yang Zhifeng has resigned as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company but remains
as an Executive Director, and is re-designated
as the Co-Vice Chairperson of the Board of the
Company with effect from 13 Jannary 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRME
44. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ix)  Mr. Wang Xun has resigned as an Executive
Director with effect from 15 July 2015.

(x) Ms. Liu Jianhong, an Executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as the Co-Vice
Chairperson of the Board of the Company with
effect from 13 January 2016.

(xi)  Mr. Yu Weizhou has been appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 13 January 2016.

Save as those emoluments presented above, no
other fees or emoluments were paid, have been
or will be paid to the Independent Non-executive
Directors in respect of the current year (2014:
Same).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there
were no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration,
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office (2014: Same).

Details of share options granted to directors are
set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRHE
44. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 44, EEPFZMERE(REBC(RQAHK

266

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement or termination benefits during the
financial year (2014: Nil).

(c¢) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEHE

ATRAEEBEREVBRFREZEERE
E -BERMEEZBE  HIREZAEER
mEPBRE  YOEBHERIE -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
equities of the Group for the last five financial years,

as extracted from the audited consolidated financial

statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS e
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 31 31 31 31
December December  December  December  December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
2015 % 20144 20134 2012 20114
12A31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H
LEE IEFE IEFE IFFE IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TFET FET FET FET
Revenue and other WA R E At i A
income 4,360,010 3,575,022 1,929,011 1,124,640 977,139
Other gains, net Hibias - #58 33,585 170,252 187,742 200,092 305,788
Finance costs BERA (115,475)  (105,722)  (103,496) (85,985) (64,899)
Share of results EIEEE
— associates — BtE A A 17,525 7,645 892 7,278 1,391
— joint ventures — 5EE 68,284 42,062 (13,791) (6,123) 169,646
Expenses, net M - 55 (3,814,945) (3,297,362) (1,807,264) (1,126,830) (884,775)
Profit before income tax BRPI{STHATES 548,984 391,897 193,094 113,072 504,290
Income tax expense FriS 1t 2 (42,601) (73,786) (41,967) (72,160)  (132,081)
Non-controlling interests 3E1% &l M #E %5 (1,670) 923 10 (526) —
Profit attributable w A BN
to owners of the PN/NEIE 2SN
Company 508,053 317,188 151,117 40,386 372,209
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEHE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES EE -SERER
As at As at As at As at As at
31 31 31 31 31
December December December December December
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
R20155 R2014F 2013F  R20125F  R20114F
128318 128318 128318 128318 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BERR 14,420,325 10,790,091 9,851,199 7,508,026 7,501,493
Total liabilities BERTE (8,664,750) (5,034,470) (4,857,313) (3,053,028) (3,027,111)
Net assets BEFE 5,755,575 5,755,621 4,993,886 4,454,998 4,474,382
Equity attributable RARHEA A
to owners of the FE(EHER 5,635,262 5,654,275 4,971,451 4,454,006 4,474,382
Company
Non-controllin 7 A
, 9 i ® 120,313 101,346 22,435 992 —
Interests
Total equity WS EE 5,755,575 5,755,621 4,993,886 4,454,998 4,474,382

Note: The comparative figures in this summary relating to the
exchange gains, net which have been previously classified
under ‘expenses’, is now reclassified and presented under
‘other gains, net’ in order to conform to the current year’s
presentation for a better understanding of the Group’s
activities. This reclassification has no effect on the Group's
results, and the assets, liabilities and equities for the last five

financial years.
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